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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investrment Trust ple (the “Company” ar the
“Trust") was formedin 1905 gnd has heen a dedicated
property Investor since 1582 The Company 1s an
Investment Trust and ils shares are premium hsted on the
London Stack Exchange

BENCHMARK
The peachimark 1s the FISE EPRA/NAREN Developed
turape Cazped Net Tatal Rewarr [ndex v Sterhing

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seaks 1o acmeve 1ts abjeclive by investing m
shares and securiies of property comaaries and property
related businesses on an irtemnatioral basis, although,
with a Pan-European benchmark, the majonty of the
investments wi'l be wcated in thal geographical area The
Company a:50 nvests ininvestment property located i
the UK only

Fustner detalls of the Investmenl Policies, Lhe Asset
Allocation Cuidenres and policies regarding the use ol

2anng are set out 1n the Strategic Repoit on bage 25 and
the entire portfolio 1s shown on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BWO .nvestmant Business Limited acls as the Company s
alternatve irvestment fund manager (“AIFM ] wwith
aortfolic management delegated to Thames River Capilal
[LP ("he Portfolio tanager” o “the Marager”) Marcus
Phayie-tMudge has managed the porlicho since 1 Apnl
2017 and neen part of e Fund Mdagement team singe
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INDEPENDENT BDARD

The Diectars are all independent of the Manager and
meet reqularly to consider investment strategy, to momitor
adherence to the stated objective and investment policies
and to review performance Detaiis of now the Board
aperates and fulli!sits responsibiities are set out in the
Report of the Direclors on page 4°

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Fighhights for 1ne cutient year are set oui
opposite a1d Histanical Performarce can se found on
sage 3 Key Periormarce Indicators are set oul it ihe
Strategic Report on pages 26 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

Tre Company currently concucts its 2ifairs so that its
shares cap be recammended by Independent Finarcial
Advisers (7IFAS™) 10 the UK to ordinary retali inveslars in
accordance with the Financal Condual Authonty ("FCAT)
iules i relaton 1o non-mamstream investment oreducts
and intends 1o continue to do so The shares are excluded
from the FCAS restnctions, winich apply to ron-manstream
investiment products, because they ate shares 1 an
authonsed myvestment trust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder imformation and details of how to
mvest in TR Proserty Investmert Toust pc, inclading an
investmenl thiough an 154 ar saving scheme, car be
found on pages 117 and 122 This information can also be
found on the Trust’s website www tiproperty com
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Financial Highlights and Performance

aante sheét

Net asset value per share
Shareholders’ funds (£'000)
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m)
Net debt's

Share Price
Share price
&arket capi(alijtioi o

Revenue
Revenue earnings per share

Dividends?

Interim divigend per share
Final dividend per share
Total dividend pershare

Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total return3¢
Benchmark total returns

Share price total return®s
Ongoing Charges™*

Including performance fee

excluding performance fee

Excluding performance fee and direct property costs

Year ended
31 Mmarch
2021

417.97p
1,326,433
317.4
16.5%

392.50p

£1,246m

Year ended
31 March
200

12.25p

5.20p
9.00p
14.20p

+20.7%
+15.9%
+728.3%

+1.40%
+0.65%
+0.63%

Year ended
31 Maich
220 Change
358.11p +16.7%
1136,453 +16.7%
374 +0.0%
- 7.6% -
317.50p +23.6%
3 £1,008m . __-'Eéj‘lﬁ
Year ended
31 March
_ .. 220 (Change
uew 6k
5.20p +0.0%
8.80p +2.3%
LMo e
<11.5%
14.0%
o es
+0.80%
+0.61%
+0.59%

1 Net debt is the 113! vaiue of loan notes, loans (induding notional exposure to CFOs and Total Retum Swapj less cash &s a proportion of net assel volue

?  Qividends pet share are the dividends i respect of the financiai year ended 31 March 2021 An intenm dividend of 5 20p was paid in January Z021 A final diadend of
S.00p (2020: 8 80p) will be paid on 4 August 2021 ta shareholders on the register on 18 june 2027

The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 17 june 2021.

31 The NAV Total Return tor the year is calculated by reinvesting the diidends in the assels of the Company irom the relevant ex-dividend date Dividends are deemed
10 be reinvested on the ex-dwidend date as this 1s the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark and other ndices.

4 The Share Price Tatal Retuin 1s calcukated by resnvesting the dividends in the shares of the Campany from the relevant ex-dividend date.
5 Ongoing Charges are calculated in accordance with the AiC methodolpgy The Cngoing Charges ratics provided in the Company’s Key information Document are

calculated in line with the PRIIPs regulation which is ditferent to the AIC methodalagy
6. Considered (o be an Alternative Performance Measure s defined on page 98.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Historical Performance

For the years ended 31 March

201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 20@
Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)
NAVW 154 -85 215 224 283 8.2 g0 155 91 15 207
Benchmark® 152 89 18 149 233 54 65 102 56 140 159
Share Price(® 126 95 258 377 295 16 o1 255 62 168 283
shareholders’ funds (£'m)
Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1065 1M8 1256 1328 1136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 809 1010 1065 118 1256 1328 1136 1,326
Sigma shares® 139 118 - e - - - - - -

Ordinary shares

Net revenue {pence per share)

Earnings 6.94 707 6.74 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
600 660 700 745 770 835 1050 1220 1350 1400 14.20

NAV per share (pence) 20710 18360 21525 25494 31812 33556 35242 39564 41854 358N 41797

Shateprite(pence) 17710 15450 18630 24750 310.50 29750 314.50 38250 394.00 31750 392.50

Indices of growth

Share price®) 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179 222
Net Asset Value® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 191 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 110 n7 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPI 100 104 107 110 m 112 16 120 123 126 128
Benchmark™ 100 g7 99 105 126 130 134 144 47 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

(A) The NAY Total Return for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the pratocol used by the Company's benchmark and other indices. This 1s considered 1o be an Alternative
Perforrnance Measure as defined on page 98.

{8} Benchmark Index: composite index comprising the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR Index up 1o March 2013, and therealier the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Index. Source: Thames River Capital.

{() The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date
{0) The Sigma share ¢lass was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 Decernber 2012

(£} Dividends per share in the year to which thewr declaration relates and nof the year they were paid.

{F) Shate prices anly. These do nat retlect dividends paid.

{a) Crapital only values. These do nat reflect dwvrdends paid.

{H) FPrice only vaiue of the Indices set out in (B} above.
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Chairman’s Staterment

\
David Watson
Chairman

Whilst underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

Tie starl of this repaiting perod was very close to tne
recent COVID-19 nfluenced nadir of global equity markets
N March 2020 Siace then equity markets have been
geterminedly focused on the future rather than refiecting
on the more immediate economic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic As a result, 'm able to report
healthy retuins for the year with 3 net asset value {"NAY")
total return of 20 7%, well ahead of the benchmark tot3]
return of 15 9% The share price total relurn was ever
stronger at 28 3% as the discount narowed over the year

Stock markets have laken great comioit from the huge
arnount of central bank stimulus and state aid for hote
corporates and individua's Sirce November 2020, this
sense ol supoort has been augmented by opamism
[HowIng e announcements 4na subsequeni iollout of 3
range of vacane prograrmmes

Tre cisis has forces a dramaric charge in the way we work,
cansame and reax Dver e last year our monageiment (2am
has ponde 2d not 07ly the oace of these chanaes arioss a
wide range of oroperty seciors but also therr sustamahidity
once e woild -everis 1o Ine new ronnal’

Cuertheaast quaner of the hinancaal year under review
and nte the slart of the new one, we have seen very
dramalic share price movements as mvestors 1otated
fom companies offenng tre salely of secure Incoime
towards those offenrg greater nsk, paruculary where fe
compaies wers tading 2t large discaunts o therr asset
value Your Tanager s repo will examine n more detarl
v the poittalio st ucidie has evolved throdg™ these
hematic rotators



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Earnings far the year were 12 25p per share, 16% lowel
than the pnol vear eamings of 14 62p

The headiine earmings per share figure 15 shightly deceptive,
earmings before tax were 24% lower than the previous vear,
but a significant tax refund and some further prior period
withholding tax recovenas reduced the revenue tax charge
fram an effective rate of 11 3% 10 2020 Lo jusl * 9% for the
finarcial year to March 2021 Fuither detaris of this are set
out in the Marager’s Report

The Board has announced a final dradend of 200p per
shate, bringirg the full year dividend to 14 20p per share
(2020 14 00p) an overallincrease of 14% on e 100 yed)
drvidend The Board is conscious of the income aspnations
uf some of our investor base and, although this diacend
15 not fily covered. the Compary has significant revenue
teserves avalable As long as the Board has a reasorable
expectalion of ncome returming to previous levels 1 the
medium terrm, the Board 1s naopy to maintair a modest
level ol dividend progression
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REVENUE OUTLOOK

wilthin our portfolio, the manager anlicipales mcome

for the year to March 20727 1o be splitinto three broadly
equat parls with one third suflering a reduction and in
some cases significant cuts ar even suspensions, a thipd
wIth income returming to pre-pandemi¢ levels, ang the
balance offering some level of Intease. We do nol expect
tolal income levels 1o return to pre-COVID-19 levels within
the current fimanaial year although we do expect an
impraovemeat relative to 2020421

alter allowing for the proposec dividend, revenue reserves
will still amaunt 1o 12 18p per share qiving pleaty of
capacity for the board to supplement tag dividend agam

i 2021722 poviding a return 1o pre-Covid levels can
reasoiably be anbapated in the medium term

Ordinary Share (lass Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

200 [ Benchmark Total Return i} TR Property Share Price Total Retusn
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Chairman's Statement 1+
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AWARDS

The Trust was the winner 1n the Specialist Equities
category of the Qtywire investment Trust Awards. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising i a broad range of equities and alternatives.

CITYWIRE
WINMNER

INVEETMENT TRUST 2020
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QUTLOOK
- e O T Tt L ¢
i Jl | A
Lo f ([
! \ ! T
i X el
I
| | o i "
i R I
| AN L PR coael
' ! SR
RS ! I
- : I i
(I b
| H | e

[N

el ot
Pt
o

+ vt |

el

David Watson

oo

TROPLPErT 0

¥

e

STSTHET TR S

7]
pt
B
=1
™
=}
(2]
]
m
b
o
E]
B




3

Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Net Asset Value total return for the year to 31 March
2021 was 20 7%. ahead of lhe berchmark total retuin of
15 9% Al the intenim stage, | reporled that Continental
European property companies had significanty
gutperformed trer UK counterarts (returns of 17 3% v

2 1%) The second hall saw the complete everse The UKS
performaence m the second half was so stang that the

12 morth performance of 19 %% (in GBF) outperformed
Continental Euiope al 18 7% (N ELK)

The initialimpact of the pandemic on Eurapean real estate
equilies saw the benchmark fall 36% fram the pre-Cownd
peax of 19th February to <he trough an 18 kMarch 2020 Qur
financia’ year theretore siarted c.ose to these depressed
levels and the steady “ecovery sice then s reliected 0
the neallhy figures for the year undes reviews However 1l
15 worth ~obing that collectively the sector remains near y
15% elow the pre-Covid peak

Tris extiaoidinary year has clearly been like 1o other and
the cull ir performance of the different real estate seciois
{anc thenr respective isted compe nes) requires the same
adjeclive The year car be neatly draded into pre end post

Ine yattine annauicement

From #d'cn 1o Doober imvesiors focused or ownirg
susieinable, sancemic proof 1acame such as resicertal,
supermarkels anc healthcare aloagside logistics,
warehousing ard ingustnal where the underlying tenants’
businesses had (2 mamed open and It mMany £ases

wete threng Lo osyrer faong sectors such as retal
restagtents, hotel acd feisa2 were sturred We crvide our
UnIvese 230 131 BSTATe COMPANIES 1Mo 25
DESDOKE aothe T maeaths from the Loush or
13th whatch 2027 oJdr ogisics ndustaal group teturrad

=34 Ganan residenlial —A0ue, Tealircate 385 st

UK retai 1291 452 axd Fuiopean "27an ret)imed st T
concan 2l aso satferad falling 257

{bo~ dormesic ang 1v2rmabonal) € lassen

fpayy

How roT hovemDen g
Jateface as 1rvestors focused o7 e Lossiality of

3 7GrTa g e 0Uv 0ok post e vactins
graskirrougn nooun wvocld that meant buyi g van< N
Ceonsdrer fagng seciors Stocks exposel 1o thase




sectors had been standing at large discounts given the
market’s expectahon of furthes assel value declines and
they erjoyed sigilicant pnce iecovery Sliscks such as
Hammerson ang Shaftesbury. who had both carried aul
emergency capital raises (more on this later), enjoyed
0% and 85% price appreciatior from their respective
{pre-vaccine announcerent) capitel raise prices

The Trust was delensively poswtloned as we entered the
pandermc with overaeights to Furopean PRS {private
rentec sectony pathicially 10 Germany, supermarkets

(UK and Norgies). beaithcare (maimy UK) andg logistics /
industial acioss boln the UK and Luiope Mese exposures
drove muc of the relative outzer‘ormance fram March to
noverrher

Londoin exposed siacks suf‘ered particl‘arly as office
workers Tave not returned (we astimate office whlisation
rawes at (254%, versus a Continental average of over 50%)
and s combined with the coliapse i1 ounsim {2olh
domestic and international) has temporanly hollowed out
our globzl aty Qur LK office exposure was corcenliated
It decentialised offrces thiough CLS and Mekay whilst

we avoided London retail focused names such es Capeo
and Shaftesbury as wel as those businesses with shorl
occupational leases such as Workspace

As the ehe! freopening / reflation’ tade gathered
rmomenture, | closed aur underweght exposure to
Fuiopear shopping celies, hought back into some Cent:ai
London retail and renewed our exposure to office narkets
pariaculary those aties with the shorter commale times
Essentialy [ was sl shying away from the largest two
conJibations (Landon ard Pansy whist adding to smaller
ones such as &ad 1d and Dublin and maintaining exposure
o ceceniralised office sectors i tne UK, Sweden and
Gerrmany

[ne pancemic has wrned much or its fead’ and 15 owl
coner of ihe ecuity market it was the performance of
5155 property companes which was much weaker than
hisiory would have predicted Traditionally 3 safe baver,
these siocks did rot invally recover lrarm e darcy iows
will 1nvestors focused ar i the probematic el exposure
af the targest listed compames We cartinge 1o be
undenwvelgnl the qroup
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Another positive surprnse has been in self-starage which
reported very steady numbers through the warst of the
yeal, Whilst cur stock selection in the UK was correct
{Safestore total return «27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway success was Shurguard, the Continentai player
returming +48%, which we didn't awn. In ow delence, the
stock enjayed strong demand from index ackers as it
entlered varous henchmarks midyear

Most of 2020 was an understandably subdued

penod for MEA cororate activity with ane particular
exception, harwegian offices £ntra (where we were a
lop 20 sharehaides) was the subject of a aidding war
belwesn two Swedish isted players, Casleilum anc
Samhallshyggnadsbolaget (also known as SER) Whils!
netther successiully gamed cantrol, the share price totai
relurn was 57%. our most successiul invesiment In the
penoad

The portfoho has sore geanng This was recuced in
February end darch 2020 Hut has sabsequently returnec
to pre-pandemic levels. Wity nave geanng in volatle
*Imes’The Trust cantinues 1o lake advantage af 113
cosed ended steuctare ard holds o numper of (hguid
small cap st erks Tw: se well-iur companies (even whe-
exposed to outperforming subsectors) often suffer f-om
imited invesior attertion, being deemed too small As a
consequence, in nsing markets they often anderperfor
their iarger brethren (in marke: parlance thew ‘heta’ s less
than one} adding seme gearing helps cenpensate for
these lower beta names Our exdeneree s tnat over me
the mder\wng sreperty furdamentals will be recogised
and, 1f not, then the maket will take thern private or
nerge them logether. Our physical 2roderty exposure aiso
5|[5 aulside our bencameark and additional gearing ensures
that we are 100 urderexposed L0 eQUITES versus oul
benchmarl green thar a propartion of capital is pvested in
physical property

OFFICES

0f all the segments of the commesaial real estate

landscape, the futdre demend o offices remains the

hardest w0 forecast The two undeniable conzecusnces of
ne pandermic, for this assel class, has been the realisation

Nat 2m ploweos of corparates of all sizes can work

remotely (for long pencesy if required ard secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9
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the next generation of "bestin ciass’ office accommodation
will be utilised very differentiy with tenants having new
prionties Built into these demands wilt be the overarching
need for energy efficiency, carbon neutrality and
sustainaoility through the hfe cycle of the building

The take up figures for the last year (across the 15 major
aties we monitor) offers ittle comparative vatue given the
irability for businesses to physically relocate in many of
these markets from March 2020 Taking London as a case
In point, Saviils reported that West Fnd take up fell from
44m sq ftin 20719 to 17m e 2020 Sthce uuhsatron iates
tarough 2020 anrd nte 2027 nave vaned hugely A broad
rule of thumb was thal the larger the ty (and the .orger
the average coimimite Ume) the lower the office utilisation
sate Generally the smalier alies also had higher sevels of
comimuling Dy private Lianspo:t ol where workers wee
using averground public transport Scardinayian and Swiss
clies have seen almost normehsed Jtilisauon rates whiist
Lo~dor and Pans remain sub 30% Laoking ferward, whal
15 Important 1o Js s the amount of 2@w space which was
scheduled to complete [construclion was halled for very
short peaocs 1e nost markets) and whether there are
51575 of demand as we move 1nta the pos: vacane penod

_00kI"g across kurope as a whaole, the combines =Fec of
reducad leasing activity and consiraction compietions led
1o 1000ps rorease m vacarcy Lo an average of 6 94y (BhF
daley This single stalistic clearly indes a wide range of
levels Unsuipasirgly, wondon and Pans have expenerces
the greatesh increases from 5ue to pearty 8% but Dubar
o ects the veooden spooin with vacancy 1Ncreasing 1o
aver 975 This s a good example of & simall markel whers
a (tempotary) demand stiike meels a numaes of larges
compiencs ard refurbiskments bowveve e hislancai'y
ey lavels of v20200y 10 A, QUes J6or s the pancemic
mave 1nsulaies moest markets T mocest downwar

The deive

deterred Lar

v o news oifice oulldings heas 2lso nee
tice ar v io” fail burcirgs The e g

S0 Te’s ANrua YEenrger

Tall 3nlcimgs Surve

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 274 decline 1n planning applications for bulldings

over 20 storeys in 2020 when cormpared with 2019 we
weie surpised that the fall wasn't iarger but 73% of all
appheatiars were 1n the latler part of the vear and hints at
developer canfidence reqarding demand far new build

investment demand has remained very resilient almost
regardless of short-term weakness in occupational
markets The weight of capital seeking real assets is

a therre which wall recur through this report The nise

i1 the long end of the curve as the seflation theme
gathers momentumos proving very daimaging for fixed
income strucldres Hich quality oliices - offerirg large lol
sizes - with secure income delivenng 3 5-4% net yield

Is aliractve versus negative yielding sovereign honds
Further up the sisk curve. opporlumstic capital alse remains
very active and sled deveiopment specafhists such as
Gieal Poriard Estales and Derwent Londor Rave found it
fhard to deploy capital arudst fierce competizion

The 2021 (3RE EMEA IMvestor itentions Survey mighlights
Lordor as stb the most atiriacive aly for investment

in Euroe with an estimated €40-45bn of ¢clebal equity
lookirg o be deplumd M0 e market across a1 tyoes
of bulleings This s 1he hughes: figure since the survey
staiing wackirg demardn 2077 Wwhilst transaction
volumes slowed iast year, the first two months of 2027
(tradifionaliy a gqurel time) nave seer voiumes reach
£875m greater tha1 the same penod in 2019 Par: of the
Landor attrachiodt 15 that yields dudn't campress dunng
the 3rex ancetairy making e oty look much cheapes
iha~ otre” g Euroaeaw aties Post toe EL-UK Trade and
Cooperatior Agreerent we expect IS gap o narow

RETAIL
The &S00/ PO data ‘or ~e 12 “url 5o etk 2021 saw
AT etard yosery capita valuas fal 12 8% with 2 senous

accele ation 0 e d 20ne of >h>w| g e TN
wihich fell 25 5 meet re a3t T2 oty N e nte s,
icomTened g 21 e v AAtIan COMim.
betund e umes due 0 e recsrement 1y o< &t dedl
dence Essentally, 1 fast mavirg markets the 2uilismad

oo oui of date Siock marels g
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this and retail iandlords acioss the globe have been
rading at very large discounts 1o their {ne lenger valic)
last published fiquras

The woes of retail are well understood. The pandemic
has accelerated trends which were weil established
Reopening of economies will see faotfall 12ty Lo
shopping centres but the levels of sustamable rents
remain the subject of market forces In the UK Lthe loss
ol a huge number of well knowr prands either through
barkruplcy or retreat has resulted in average vacancy
levels i shopping cenlres reaching over 15% (M50 data)

This means Lhe negoliatior boot remains firmly on
lerants’ foal and we piedict a further 19% falis 1n rental
vaues The ore area where there are clear signs of snce
slabtisation s i retail warzhousing Cpen air with plenty
of free parking. this type of relail assel sits weliir 3
omni-crannel ervironment where retaller margins are
maxirysed thiougn cick and collect Alfordability 1s the
eteral watcnwaord and whilst there are some parks vath
very gt rents (ofien fasnion retailer leg) the majonty will
see modest cechnes 1 rental values Gccupancy cost ratios
e also not burdened by escalalirg seavice charges

ACToss Europe, the picture 15 more nuanced Valuers are
even more conservaive than therr UK counterparts and
ap| lahsaticn rates are vet to mave melendlly Insome
aurines, retalers nave been given huge emaunts of
govesnment support and as a result rental delinquency
15 geneally lower than in the UK In addition, many
shepping ceatres are archored by hype markets {which
have remained noenj anc not '—partmpn. stores {4 UK/
US corcent no wonger hit for purgose beyord o asrdiul
of tounst destinations sucr as Sellidges and Gaienes
Lalayelle) There have beer lowe- ievels of retaller
nankiuptey acioss Cantinental Eurape and we (ot
this dowen o lwo faciors less averrenting ard the UK
msuivency legislation Or this 1attes paint, a huge numbe:
of LK retailers have taken advanlage of the CVA (company
voluntary administratien) o 'orce landlo ¢s (generally a
aige creditan) o accep! cofpolate reconsiuctions which
unduy danage their irferesis A ecent brgh Court "uling
involving the overly iIndebted retailer New Look, remioiced
this tenart frierdly legislatior
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Investors iemain very arcumspect fowards this asset dass
Incomie Insecurity has resulted innvestors iequinng much
fughar inibal yields CBRE estirnate Ual UK privne shopping
centie yields have moved from 4.5% 1o 7% in the last

5 years with poorer secandary schemes 1n the high leers
or hterally ansaleable Retall warehousing has bucked the
depressing trend at least from an investor perspechive
lvestois are increasingly confident that they are able
lo measure tenant affordabiity and this 15 the key Lo
determiring pacing e the last couple of months we have
seen camrpetitive idding for 3 numper of retall warehouse
schemes, something nol seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

L<ancustal and logistics take up hit a record 597m sq

I 2020 Whest the pandeTic suppressed dermand 1 many
olher parts of the property markel, 1t cleafly stimulated
logistics and husiness activity which uithsec industnal
property Amazor agair accounted far a sizeable (20+)
portion of e actity and 1t was this Xl segrment (250,000
s ft) which was lhe major beneficiary of the suiging oniine
cemend The onane shase of retall sales rase hor 19 240
0090 ?79“—«- 1r 2020 qitting & new high of 36 3% in January
2027 as we 1eturmed (o ockdown This wiil scale zack as we
recpen but t he boost o online scale and efficency 1s here to
stay Supply Fas responded Sut has been mare than matched
by this demard As a consequence, supply Fas [allen to
734m st down 6% on the year, and this tighlening has
accurred 11 every size biacket

Rental growtn continues to march on but there has been
a hroadening of growth rates acinss the reqions Greate:
Lordon and the Fast Midlands recorded growth of over
7o whilst average rates aciass the country at 3 9% Sach
sreong renta growih, the secure income and the sositive
outtipox has driven both domrestic and iatemnational buvers
o pey recond prices for 1S secion whetner |' 15 last mile
urbar units, X_ ma boxes o tersaces of weli lotated
indusinal uiits Prime yields are 35 10 4% and eve
Incorre 15 nat delernng nvestors as evidenced by the saie
of our Bnstol distnbution unit 2t 4 5% imual yieic wita
35 vyears anexpired

noshonl

The same picture of tude healtn s evidert a00s3
Continental tarope According to BNR feke up irceased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 1L



Manager’s Report -~ ;i

1% 3crass the & largest Furopean economiegs and vacandy those which nave not (student accommadation, holefs)

ates dropped Lo 5 5%, therr lowest and all against a Skare price petlormance was a0 amplified reflection of
backdrop of a sharp contraction 1IN GDP Again 1t was a nat anly the undellying property peiformance bul afso
surge in e-commerce atd home debvery which drove tne dramauc shillin invester senument. Self storage
demand Pume yields across Europe tghtened 25bps 1n share prices have radiionally performed paary in
2020, malctung e UK with no sigas of decompression slowing economic condifions as the income 1s coasidered
even as e long end of the curve nses Investment short term and volatile However the pandemic has
demand 15 Lioly qloba: with US and Asian institutional focused mvestors minds or the emerging stiength of
capial competing with more domestic 'ong erm capital this secto whera a small group of operatois (maostly
all deterrined to paricipate 1 this stiuctufal saift listed cormpanies) have the finantial muscle o dominate
e price comparison wehsites. Another emerging trend
RESIDENTIAL has been the incieasing busingss usage of a product
As expedled the sector hias remained gy resiient taditionaly seen as the dorrain of privaie customets
during the panderic The i JOHl‘-' of our investmeris are Busiiesses have seen the mnents of immediate, hassle Tee
1N Gernan and )\r“Fd\Sh nousirg where rens ae :ub ect access Lo short o longer term storage The SUJpM chain
to state control The remaimng exposure 1s Fialand ard e distastior dunng e pandemic heightened the reed for
K where rerts ae openfmafken The foimer offer grealer pa(e as the mantra became & litt e maore ust i1 Ca5e and
SE?CHI'L‘,«' with rents hed to idesation whilst the tatter Attle Tess qust i ame” Sur self sto age groug returned
offers more opporturity Lo capiure markel growth but =464 from the low point ("8th Maicn 2CLVJ 0 e end
s the commensurate nskof vacanoy nises ard market of Dcteber However, o Novernoer 2020 to the end of
rents fall Dunirg the cnsis, e secunty of income and very  rarck 2621 they 1ave cailectively selurned just =4 1%
h@h DCCUDarey levels resulted 1in tme seclor retaimng rs A gssic exaimsle of 3 swatch 1 sertimen: as mveslo’s
popu'anty Genman housirg has expensnced price nses imn colated away lrom the Covid teldative warners’ gioup 1nto
girually all its sun-rarke:s the value names which had urcerperformned and looked

i ‘ vey cheap o mstonc metnes
As explanea earhern Berlmn remaned the out er

as lhe State of Berlin iposed 3 5 year 1211 heege N aother alternalives sub-secton vee expenenced the
(tMietendecke!) The subsequert Constitutional Court ruling, complele reverse Student accommaodatlion businesses
which confirmed that 1ert controls are determined at ike suffered a codanse in income and Unite “om only
Federal. not State level, came just after tae vear end 10 exaasuse) led the held in refunding ents which was the
mid-ApTI e are pleased with this cutcome and the share  correct PR strateqy but depleted e 'Op e The well
orices af woth Ceutsche wohnen (£ 4w of net assets) and docume tes difficulties for students thiougn e last
Phoenx Spree (2 57 of assets) resannned Dosmv? V. g dCAdeTIC Y RAN a0 [N COMT 2l 1 aliily, f07 e,
New CoTstrucuon of apau".ems I Berhn nad & bul oned e seas slucents to errall physizaly pa.rmr* yastn

ap as deve apers awdiled ne ogicome of the appea:
Berin "emalns e (nedpest tapid Gy In “,
e uf LOU £an it

2 seumet w It the sub-sector fa irg 487 netween 1517
q Euope Feliuay and 8 Match 2020 anc tren siag
: gt st =T from then Lo e end of Ooohes

It el o enl 3 ana
desiie ol 4 lefl-nimg 0ca

regaigiess of 12 side e“? I [wa) s 13 ol Kovems

thigugl e consequentia 0. ause Hw SUpply 0f nEwy relhad 300 25 the hkelihood of the reoue

mAMES ias been saitadly teng e 2oy 0N oo ed

ALTERNATIVES Supematkats nave Lol gsl 1o aliecl nvesic”

THIS grodn =0 te Fop they ed allemuor DJ7 exposure 15 glg™ SURe mae roome
(5peIma<es neallncare. self-sto age) it e €151 and RET (LK) 270 Gbus [Sweden anc Foland} Supermara;
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Income RET raised a total of £450m 1n three sepaiate
tiansactions through the year and now nas a market

rap nf nees £500m Qibus also raised capital (S

300m) 0 bwo tranches o make further acguistions The
larger supermarket operators have been able ta attract

customers through thetr oaline network which the hard

discountears (Lidl, Aldiy are not able o olfer Volumes

and margins will normalise Dost the pandemic but these

operalors have had the oppottunity 1o piove the resilience
of ther omri-channel model whl(h utiises last mile

distribution from ther network of stores 1115 ane of the

few parts o' the retail landscape where physical stores are
tiuly integral to the anane journey

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Prape:ty companies remamed busy on dent refinancings
treighout the pandemic and the huge ammount of central
bank support and governmert simuolys ensured a hedllhy
hquid market where pricing dil not weaken According to
FPRA, €15 2bn was raised 1n 209 at an average coupon of
18% and 2020 saw €15 600 al a cost of 16% These hqures
are not diweclly comparable as the mix of debt ofienngs in
each period was difterent but they are o clear indicator as o
the healtl and price stebiity in the dest nackets Cesman
tesidential companies were again busy with Vonovia aising
€2 500 in Tour transactions barrowang 0-yeadr money al 1%
Later in October. Geana, Europe's largest office REIT raised
€200m i a 2034 term bond at 0 86%.

Early 11 Lhe cnisis, we saw a number of strong businesses
rading at premisms rasse eguily capital for opportunistic
expansion. This was in sectors with clear underlyirg
demand, namety healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Primary
Heallh Proverties), set-storage (31g Yellow), loqistics/
mndustial (Londoriteting, Segio, VOP ) supermarkets
(Supermarket Income REIT. Gbus) and German 1esidental
(Vonovia, ADO Properties, LFG) The AutuImn saw
opooriunistic raises in Sweden and foiway (Balder,
Klovern and Norwegian Properies) a region which had
expernenced low fevess of lockdowr restrichions fdare
recently In February and Maich this year we saw “enewed
acliyity 17 the UK. as the vacome soligulimproved
sentimert with taises from lazget tealthcare, LXI. Tritax
Furobox and superTarket Income REIT agaim Contizentdl
Futopean :aises in 2027 have sn far beer confinec 10
heslthcare (Colimmao) and student accommadation (Xiar)
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Post the summer we saw the beqinning of an expected
surge of moie defensive raises as companies finally
carne under cashilow and valuotion pressure in the end
It was just a handful of retai locused names who had
been mismanaging ther balance sheets long before

the pandemic Hammerson's £500m raise effectively
recapilalised the nalance sheet with a 24 for 1 nghts ssue
accompanied 2y the {previously announced) departure of
the CEO completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Chan,
CEC and CFO In Iate October, Shaftesbury announced a
£300m placing anc open offer Looking Back their trang
was spectaculary undoriunate as the announcement of the
first vacanes came less than a forinight later

These game £9anging announcements immediately
altered expecanons and theie 1s nowhere better to
viustrate the point than the caroarate saga at Unibail-
Rodamca-westhield (LRW) URW had announced a €9br
‘Resel’ plan compnsing €3 5bn capital rarse, dradend
cancellation and a planred €4bn of cisposals A gioup
of activist snarebolders lead oy Lleon Bressler (the (ED
of Unibail frem 1992 1o 2006) launched a campaign o
oppose these AGM proposa s and launch an zlternative
trategy which did notinclude a deeply discounted capilal
raise They prooosed the sale of the LS (ex Westiield)
portfolio and a return to their roots as an owner of
pnme Europedn smp ping cenlras [heir iming was
fo:tunale, with the 10th |\|overmb=_r AGE coming just
alter tne yacane announcement and the impravement in
Investor sertiment even for deep\y indented businesses
Essentiaby convinung irvestors that t\“e‘; didn’t neeq
lo p good money after bad’ and thal the seli nelp
tegy would succesd They wee :urc_tssm 17 their

campaign anc sharekolders voled aganst the ‘Reset’
plan This led o the depa—ure of the Chairman, {EO
and CtQ and the pror-othion of existing sene: managers
to ;he Board The share prce. which had troughed at
€35 per share, subseguertly doubled am\(* the closing
of short positions This corporate tale =eatly encapsulaes
Ihe dramatic charge It 1nves o, senlimen (and prIcINgG
of previously unlovec businesses) which we saw from
Noverrber onwarcs

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES
Turnover (puichases and saies draded by two) (otal ed
f453m equaling to 36% of the average net assels over
the pennd This was broadly in ine with fast year's

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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Manager’'s Report .»

We ncreased the capacty on our 1CBC loan facility duning
the vear and the rernaining loans wete renewed al
exisling levels we did see small increases on mdrgins
on some renewals We alsg looked at the potential to
lake out new or exlend our wonger-tern debt Our Euro
cdenominated loar note s due far repayment i 2026 and
the Steriirg note 10 2031, however the flexility of the
short- term faciliies 15 vaiuanle 1n more volatile markets

nd has cerfamly worked weil far us n the carrent year

We conninue 1o explore new oplions i al markets

OQUTLOOK
As economies emearge fom ihe gip of tre pandem
nvestors have focused on assessing whelher the domage
{or glowyib} was temporary, fange; iasting o sermanent
Redl eslale investors 472 70 excephon and the ange
ol aremiums /S discounts 1o nel asset values of listed
compaties Fighights the breadth of expeciations across
tne progerly scecirum the Jificulty s thal thee 1S ro
precedertior the oiofre of ecovery 17 12nant demand
201055 so much of ths asset dlass Cleally exsting
stiuctural shifts nave been accelerated and new anes have
Merged which mey prove moare penanent than e
me hkLls cuenty exoect all of this dncedainty leeds s o
faus onncorme susldl ﬂabwlllu and tose markels whete -
I*dermanc does 2o - suzoly 1s corslramed

whilst tenant demand s hard 1o gauge we do beneft
froet @ nenigh firgnarg ecvirarment Debl maials are ¢
,evenif the .ong
IS 1o
Jaiding

ac(,omrr*odaung as they have ever seen
end of the cumve 15 nsirg We see ~o reason for 4
SACEN AR e N o nffa dcnary Cressgies a

g

EJrﬂ

WTICT IS b
20ly f2nta graw: *; Lo ecanomig
SRERUDN S 10 e an oy

3307 sULLAINan 2 2

SO AT 0 TN The KD

Ha secinl fparticy's

Gt he guant, of §
qrow - profte Tr’e

A0 co2iition o.er

Jlids Dt ais
15 715¢ = N Garmeary o1
o' amendd ihe curre!

rent
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federal law resulting in local aties geling maore control
aver rents however the —ent freeze in Barhn (over the
last 18 montrs) resulled i a reduchion in the rumber of
available apastments as well as a slowing in the pace of
new apartreent delivery We trust that common sense
wiil prevarl aver poittical dogma Eisewhere, undervalued
tncome stieams are evident in supermarkels and in

2arts of the peallhcare market Alongside ndex-linked
sustamability we wall a'se maintain exposure (o the
grealest growt™ opporlundies The structural siftsn
cetall behaviour are suii ongomg Evolution in the spead
af delwvery and post pandermic supply chain dyaamics

Wil dove growt™ aciass the logisucs lardscape [rom "big
Box tolast mile’ we wall conlinue to owr the developers
where we see Increases 1n e value of landbangs as wel!
as growing development masqins Investor gemand for tre
ead product shows 10 5190 of abating

affice markels will te naim volatile Busiresses will spene
e working ool their —zquirements 11 3 past pangemig
wirld ‘retecuon aad colianoe 2ban will crive aHice usdge
Tasks hat wan e fullll ed withou! physical interactios wi
he timelslied for remote working A new Ddlance will
develcn with one sJie fire cerlainty, the preTiam 2eing
ateciec to hestir cass newdy bult space wilh [omp‘;ele
siyjironmental Gedentias Developes wall 1espond

this ¢emens ana wa _xpr(- an acceleration 1 buildings
peng e tdied for r2fochishment earaer than previcus'y
envisaged Lbsa.&scer& ol the easung office stock wwll
actelerste

W |

Posi e yaar erd nedrly May, SUMadwen Prope es
anraunced tralar ofer oF 547p petsiare from

LA 245 prerriur to the ast sunlished NAY
supoort of e board TS (oTipany 1as & arge
Wene 2 tigh qua'iny logisics 2ort oo and

CIC 'R Gh
SR Taelato I IN=ISTUT N oIty R CTL NG pta A ot tadieg
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Portfolio

Distribution of Investments
as at 31 March

N 20 2020 2020
) £000 % £'000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 304
UK Investment Properties o 83,07 5.9 94,510 81
UK Total 478,715 342 446,698 385
Continental Europe Securities
-quoted 921,801 658 708597 611
investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1000 1155295 996
~ CFD {creditor)/debtor (141} - 8,698 07
- TRS creditor? B - - (3.808) {0.3)
Total Investment Positions 1400375 1000 1,160,185 100.0
Investment Exposuse
as at 31 March
L N - £000 % £000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 28.9
~ CFD exposure’ 45,41 2.9 32,257 2.6
- TRS exposure* - - 6,598 0.5
UK Investment Properties 83,01 55 94510 78
UK Total 524,156 34.0 485,553 39.8
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 582
- (FD exposure® 100,560 65  244n 20
Totalinvestmentexposure® 1546517 1000 128621 1000
Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March
2 2020 2019 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Total investments £1,400  £1,55m  £129%m  £1,316m  £1145m
Net assets £1,326 £1,536m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK quoted property shares 28% 31% 33% 3% 29%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally valued) 6% 8% 8% % 8%
Net Cutrency Exposures
as at 31 March
2020 2020
Company Benchmark
L %
GBP 270 26.8
EUR 53.0 531
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 FA
SEK 129 12.9 1.0 11.3
NOK S 1A 0.8,
1 Netunrealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet {creditor)/debtor.
2 Netunrealised loss on total return swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheet credior,
3 Gross vatue of CFD positions.
4 Gross vaiue of TRS position.
5 Total investments fustiating marke! expesure inclyding the gross value of CFD and TRS positions.

W UK Securlties

B UK Property
Continental Europe

[ tquities
B UK Property

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Investment Portfolio by Country
as at 31 March 2021

Market
value
. . %
Austria
€A immobilien o 9092 06
) 9092 06
Belgium
warehousing and Distribution de Pauw 24,11 18
Aedifica 16,502 1.2
Cofinimmo 13,677 1.0
VGP 8,070 0.6
Xior 5926 0.4
Care Property 4,841 03
Montea 2,329 0.2
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 1,923 0.1
Wereldhave 2r -
78,286 56
Finland
Kojamo 17,500 12
Citycen ) B 2170 0 02
e o w670 0 14
France
Argan 53,987 39
Gecina 24,036 1.7
Covivio 13,457 10
Klépierre 10,364 0.7
Altarea o 1351 01
- o 103,195 14
Germany
Vonovia 145,982 10.4
LEG 63,904 45
Deutsche Wohnen 54,499 39
Aroundtown 39,306 2.8
VIB vermoegen 37,980 27
TAG Immabitien 33,294 24
Alstria 881 0.6
Deutsche Euroshop N 5283 04
e o 389,052 278
yeland
Hibernia REIT 20,998 15
Irish Residential Properties 2,990 0.2
e 23988 7
Netherlands
Eurocommercial Properties 25,077 18
Unibail-Rodamco-westtield 14,499 1.0
NSI S 2,099 03
43,675 EX
Norway
Entra L 16,199 1.2
%199 12
Spain
Arima Real estate 21,102 15
Merlin i 19,907 ) 14
n003 29

18 TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Sweden
Kungsleden
wihlborgs
Cibus
Fabege
Castetlurn
Fastighets Balder
Nyfosa
Catena
Samhalls
Pandox

Switzerland
PSP

United Kingdom
SEGRO

Derwent London
Safestore Holdings
Landsec

Stenprop

Phoenix

Unite Group

Sirius

Picton

CLS Holdings
Londonmetric Property
McKay Securities
Secure Income REIT
Supermarket income REIT
Tritax Eurobox

PRS REIT

Assura

Target Healthcare
Primary Health Properties
Atrato Capital

Capitai & Regional
Capital & Counties

Direct Property

CFB Positions
{included in current liabilities)

Total investment Positions

Companies shown by country of listing

Market

value

Y%

36,061 25
23,390 17
18,201 13
17,594 12
16,805 12
16,216 12
12,008 09
8,933 0.6
3,737 03
2,690 02
155,635 o ma
4,999 30
M99 30
60,357 43
33,584 2.4
32,193 23
31,327 2.2
30,477 2.2
25,213 18
25,143 1.8
22,241 16
21,330 15
20,077 1.4
19,903 14
18,104 13
15,551 11
9,614 07
7,634 0.6
6,189 0.4
5,194 0.4
4,418 0.3
3,848 0.3
1,468 0.1
1,062 01
n7_ ol
395,644 283
23,071 59
(141) 0.0
1400375 1006



Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

31 march
- 20N 2020
Shareholding value  £146.0m (£144.4m)
zzgzéﬂ‘éf“mem 9.4%  (11.8%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.7%)
Share price €55.70 (€44.36)

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

31 March
- 2020

Shareholding value £67.8m (£38.7m)
% of investment

portialint 4.4%  (3.2%)
% of equity owned 0.6% (0.5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p)

LEG

3. LEG {(GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value  £63.9m  (£75.3m)
% of investment

portfoliot 4.1% (6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €122 (£102.7)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EURS6.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria (5%). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
partfolio. The company is involved in the
whaole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%) and its recurring sales pregram
(5%). fFinally, the residential sector is
subject to strict regulations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia's management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them to benefit from critical political
goodwilt in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms, The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return (computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) 2qainst +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

Netes

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total portfolio of £13bn
(split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly expased to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirernents to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

in Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outlook (and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent coliection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values {£.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at £Y20}. We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is @ German residential company
facused on the econemically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. It is
ane of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and C
locations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform stilf within strict
and conservative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less expaosed to regulatory risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EURS.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sgm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macro-economic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liabilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum target set at 43% for 2021),
an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. in 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +106%.

= |he percertage of rvestmert poittoho positions set ot ¢bave nclude exposures through CHD for both the ndividus: pos tors and he particha
=g nvestirent Borfoho by Courtry pusibers sel out or page 18 are the phys £l no dings ohy nciuided :n the nvestmerts hewd ot fau vaoe o the Balaree Sheet 1he
poft or guy positicns ar the CFD contracts [ e onot the nvestment sxpesuie) are 2lsa showr ¢r page "8 ard are ncudes nthe Balance sheet as deblors o orec tors

n tne Currert assets
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments - o =

DEUTSCHE
™ WOHNEN

4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
{(GERMANY)

31 March
_ _2020

MARGAN

5. ARGAN {FRANCE)

31 March
2020

gecina

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 march
— 2020

Shareholding value £54.5m  (£36.4m) Shareholding value £54.0m (£46.8Bm) Shareholding value  £53.9m (£47.5m)
% of investment % of investment o % of investment o

portfoliol 3.5%  {3.0%) portfolio 3.5%  (3.8%) porthofiot 3.5% (3.9%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%) % of equity owned 3.5%  (3.5%) % of equity owned 0.7% (0.6%)
Share price €39.78  (€34.71) Share price €304 (€67.§l Share price €N7.4 (€1207)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Berlin (76%

of the total portfolio FV). The company
owns a high-quality portfolie consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a combined
value of £26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its develapment expasure
with a total investment cost of EUR6.5bn
(27% of GAV) split between build-ta-hold
(EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline) and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).
in a context of the implementation of
the rental freeze in Berlin, the company
showed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in kine with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin portfolio was valued
at £UR2,853 per sqm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the positive unequivacal dedision
fram the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year tofal sharehaider
return has been +62%.

Argan is & French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
heen listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has been to build a
portfolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little
te no risk on the letting side. fn 2020,

the portfolic value amounted to EUR3bn
{100% exposed to France, 27% expaosed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the Nosth of
France and 13% around Lyon).

The company delivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRY per share up 19%

YoY and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
company to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +307%

Gexina is the largest office iandlord in
Europe with a portfolio of more than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region (97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris city
{60% of the total office value). It owns
also a portfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets (of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly located in

the Paris region. Finally, the company
awns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris ¢ity. The rnanagerment is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn {17% of GAY) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
tontinuation of the total return strategy
which has heen implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets

to aystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
¢reation (EUR1S per share). In 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financiat position of the company is very
solid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 77 years.

The five-year shareholder total return has
been +21.6%.

notes

2 me ERICENAGE Sh vESITEr SDOUL G508 [ LTS SR SU ADGve ir Ok expostiey thicugl (RS or Both tra o wiie sos lois arc e potte §

-ite n Dy Dourfly 2ostor s sef Sut s uege "Bajet 15 CMy rouled ¢oite fveEslner s Ted gtz :
gt cos Loy or 1he (-5 tortieely | 8 N0t 'Fe ruest ment expisoe) ae 2lsl showr on Lele T8 C 2 Mo LCed 1P 42 df L SFE
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KLEPMERRE

7. KLEPIERRE (FRANCE)

31 March
_____ _...200

Shareholding value £51.3m (Nil)
% of investment

portfaliot 3.3% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price _€19.89  (£1757)

safestore
8. SAFESTORE (UK)

31 March EERIYE
2021 2020

DISIP

Swiss Property

9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

E\RNEGGR 31 March
o ) 2021 oy ___2_(129__
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Shareholding value £44.0m (£279m)
% of investment

porttolio® 2.8%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6% {+9%)
Share price 796p (éﬂpl

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total partfolio vaiuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), Italy
(18%), Scandinavia (17%) and Iberia
(10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID crisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. Gn

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchered
by food retailers contrary to UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges {partly driven by enline
tompetition). The financial position of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

& net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEQ of Simon
Property Group which awns a 21%

stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

Notes

Safestore is the UK's fargest self-storage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards London and the South
East {c.60%). In addition the company has
& large footgprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities {through bath JV structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particutarly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

Sharehoiding value £42.0m (Em)
% of investment

portfolio? 27% (2 3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20 (€120.70)

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerland’s
leading real estate companies owning
properties valued at around CHFB.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland’s key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% aof the company's
exposure (Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has cansistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported salid results in 2020 with £PS
(excl revaluation) stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents {11% of current}
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

> The percertege of nvestrrert portfolio pos t.ons set oLt above include exposures threugh (FO lar beth the indivicue positicns zac the coittoho
=The rwestimert foitfcio by Lourtry pesitiors set sut on page "8 ere the physcal be.dings only aclucec nthe irvesimerts ne ¢ at fe: vaiwe o the Balance Sheet Tre
pichitor css pes tors ar the CFD ronfiacts { e ol the rvestiment exposuie) aie diso sPown on page 18 and are incoded i the Balaoce Sheet s debtors o crec tors

I the Lurept assels
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments 1

KQL.JAROUNDTOWN ‘

10. AROUNDTOWN (GERMANY)

31 March
. 2020
sharehoiding value €39.3m  (£20.3m}
% of investment
porttoliot 2.5%  (L7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%}

Share price €6.07  (€4.55)
Arpundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that awns a
£UR24.50n portfolio. It has a diversified
commercial postiolio with expasure to
Office (60% of the commercial portfolia),
Hotels (28%), Retail {9%) and Logistics
{3%). The majerity of its exposure is

in Germany and the Netherlands (86%
together). The company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
porttolio has grown significantly since
Aroundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in eatly 2020 of listed German
peer TLG Immoabilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisory board deputy Chairman) who
founded the company, still owns 2 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group (down from 27% pre TLG deal). in
2029, the company ¢losed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the portlolio with a disposal
pipeline of EURS0Gm while buying

back shares for 2 maximum amount of
EURS00m. The five-year total shareholder
return has been 58%.

+ TME perErtags ot ARNAT LY
<IPE ryesiren Poitio g oy 551 CNy

ot ter css gyt oes oo the JFD corte-cts f
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VI B Vermogen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
, __ 2020

Sharehoiding vaiue £38.0m (£22.9m)
% of investment

. 5% k
portfalio? 2.5% (19%]
% of equity owned 5.5% (4.1%)
Share price €29.25 (522.80)‘

vIB is a German company developing,
buying and holding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
regions ¢f Southern Germany. The
cornpany pursues a develop or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid financiat structure, The real estate
portfolio (EUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties (70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
{11%), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
comnpany benefits from a higher yielding
portfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior EPS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
growth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. In 2020, the company maintained
a solid momentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAV per share growing by 5%.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 93%.

85€ B 2(8 tho physce FCLTGEChiy 1T Cas o ipa
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DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UK)

31 March
. 2020

Shareholding valye £37.6m (Nil)
% of investment

portfoliot 24% %)
% of equity owned 1.0% (09%)
Share price 3228p (3270p)

Derwent London is 2 London Office
owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolic covering ¢.5.5m sq f¢, focused
primarily in the West End and “tech belt”
(0ld Street, Clerkenwell etc.y areas of
London. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-14, which bath brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left ongaing uncertainty
over future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
we believe the rale of the olfice remains
important however, and think that
Oerwent London is the best placed London
office landlord to weather the CQVID-19
storm given a) its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b} the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities (£.100bp), which
we helieve will support valuations even
a5 ERVs soften and ¢} the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Sohio Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value {*)

w
as at 31 March 2021 3
Residential §
and o
) ~ Retail  Industrial  Ground Rents Other E
west End of Lendon 42 9% - 14.5% 0.6% 58.0% =
tnner Landon”™ 1.6% 3.2% - - 32.8%
South West o - 9.2% - - %%
Total - 44.5% 40.4% sk 06%  100.0%
“Inper London defined as inside the North and South Circular.
Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio Contracted Rent
as at 31 March 2021 as at 31 March
Gross rental income
0'to 5 years S A% eard S © £3,000,000
5 t0 10 years 7% Years 2-5 £10,000,000
10 to 15 years 53% Years 5+ £19,000,000
15 to 20 years 0% o -
20+ years S S 6%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Ferrier Street industrial £state, 10 Centre, Gloucester Business
Road, London W2 Wandsworth, London $W18 Park, Gloucester GL3

- e

Mixed Use Sector Industrial Sector Industrial

Sector
Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehold
Size (sq ft) 64,000 Size {sq ft) 36,000 Size (sq ft} 63,000
Principal  Waitrose Ltd, Greham & Green, Pr-mc;pal Kougar Yool Hie Ltd Principal  Infusion GB
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers o Lockdown Baker B
The property comprises a large mixed- Site of just over an acre, 50 The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
use block in Bayswater, constructed metres from Wandswarth Town units occupied by two tenants and sits
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to railway station in an area that is on 3 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
approximately 2 acres on the north predominantly residential. The estate Park is located to the east of junction
east comner of the junction of Bishops comprises 16 small industriat units 1A of the M5 and one mile to the
Bridge Read and Parchester Road, generally let to a mix of small to east of Gloucester City Centre. The
close to Bayswater tube station and medium-sized private companies. property also has easy access to the
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The Planning permission granted in A7 providing good links to the M4
commercial element was extended December 2019 for a mixed-use via junction 15.
and refurbished in 2015 with a new employment led redevelopment,
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling. The index, caiculated
by FTSE, is free-fioat based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

‘The Company’s business model follows that of an externally managed
investenent trust.

The Company has no employees. its wholly non-executive Board of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative
investment Fund Manager (“AIFM”) with portfolic management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

further information in refation to the Board and the arrangements under the
Investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 41 to 43.

In accordance with the Alternative lavestment Fund Managers Directive
{(“AIFMD"), BNP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
8NP Paribas also provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.
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Strategy and Investment Policies
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the pertormance of the Manager in meeting the Trust's objective against
the folfowing Key Performance Indicators ("KPI1s™):
KP1 Board monitoring and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Direciois regard the out-perlormance of the + The Board reviews the performance 1n detall at each
Company’s net assel value Lotal retyrn in performance meeung and discusses the resdits and outlook with the
in comparison with the benchmark as being an overall Manager

measure of value delvered to the shareholders’ over the

longer-teim Qutcome

1year 5years

NAY Total Return” {Annualised) 20.7% 77%

15.9%  43%

Benchmark Total Return (Anrualised)
NAY [0%al Retuir § talcl dled by re-ivestirg the ¢ videnas i the assets anc
tne Campzny from the 1e evart ex-divicenc fale Dvicerds ~ie deerped to be
re-investec on the ex-¢ videncs cete for the berchmark

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

Tre prnapal objective of the Company s a total return - 1he Board 1eyviews statements on income receved 1o date

objective. however, the Fund Manager also aims 1o aind ncome forecasts at eacr meelng
Zewver g reliaple dvidend with growth over the Jonger
term Outcome
1year 5 years
Compound Annua, Dividerd Growth 14%  M2%
Lompound Annuar RP 15%  2.6%

T lhe ting divaend nothe time ser es div.ced by the i igh divigerd nthe
senod ranec 1o the power of * cvded by the rLimper of yeacs o the seres

The Discount or Premium at which the Company's shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst expectation af nvestment performance 15 @ key - The Board iakes cowers at @ach AGW to buy-5ack and

driver of the share prnice discount ai prermium 1o the Nel Issue shaves When (onsidering the ments of shdre buy-
Asset Value of an investment fust over the longer-term, Nack ar 1ssdarce, re Board iooks al a number of faciars in
(here are perods when the discount car widen The acdition (o the short and lorger-term discour? or pigmium
Board s aware of the vulneranthty of a seclor-speaalis! 1o NAYV 10 assess whether achion wow.o be benefiaal 1o
Hust 1 a change of investor sentiment 1gwards that s~areholcers averall Pashicular attention 1s said to e
sector or lo peneds of wider marke: unceriamty, anc the current marke! sentlrmeny e setentialimpect of ary
Imact that can have on the discount snaie buy-nack acily on re iguidiny of the stares arn

ot Grgarg Cha, ges aver e fanger ter

Outcome

Tyear 5years

e diseaurt 10.2% 6.3%

Tatar mumned of shares repuichased Nil 150,000

" Average dary discount throLghout the pence of share prrce ¢
NAV wih ncere Souice B oombers
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KPI
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Bodid 15 conscious of expenses and aims to deliver a
balance between excellent service and costs

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges incudes any direct
property costs in addil:on to the management fees and
alt other expenses incurred i running a pullicly listed
company As nn other inyesiment rusts hold part of ther
portiolioin direct property (they etther held 100% of their
portfolie as property secunties or as direct properly), in
additien Lo Cngaing Charges as defined by the AIC, this
statistic 1s showr wilthout direct property costs to allow

a clearer companson of overall administraton cosls with
other funds investing in securiies

The 3oard Mmonilors the Gngoing Charges, 1N comparisar
o arange o other nvestment Trusts of similar size, both
sroperty seclor speaalsts and other seclor specialists

Board monitoring and outcome

Expenses are hudaeted for each financal year and the
Boaid 1eviews regular repeits on actual end forecast
expenses throughout the year

Outcome
5 years

1 year

Ongoing charges excluding
going tharg 9 0.65%
performance fees

0.65%

Ongoing charges exciuding performance

‘ 0.63%
fees and Direct Property (osts ’

0.62%
The ongoing charges are competitive when compared Lo
the peer group

Investment Trust Status

The Comazary mast continue to operate in arder to imee:
the requirements for Section 1158 of the Corporalion Tax
At 2000

The Boaic reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeting which set oul the requirements outlined 1
Sectior 1"58

The Directors beleve 1al the condiions ard ongoing
requirements ave been met in respect of the year to
31 Merch 2021 asd that the Company will contirue Lo
meet the requirements

The KPls aie considerec 1o be Alternative Performance Measuies as defined later 10 the Annual Repo't
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

in delvenng long-tem returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitar the nsks that have been taker
in order to achueve that return The Board has included below details of the principal and emeiging nsks and uncertainties
facing the Company and the appropniale measures taken i order o mitigate these 1isks as far as practicable

The Board aiso considers new and emesging rsks adding appropriate momitonng and imitigation measures accordingly

The impact of the (OVID-19 pandeimuc, the response af hinancial markeis, the unknown duration of tne pandemic and
engoing mpacl on economies arpund the wolld together with operational changes in response to government guidelines
continues o ncrease some of the nisks isted befow 1 comparnisoin with onor years

Risk Identifi Board monitoring and mitigation

share price performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are lsted on the tondon -+ The Board monttars the jevel of discount or premiun at
Stock Fxchange and the share price (s defermined by wiic the shares are irading over the siort and longe:-
supply and demand The shares may tade a3 discount term

07 preimium o the Company’s underlying NAY and this

=3 < o s Tl b s 1 4k s I o
FISCOURE OF SFRMELM May fuctiate over time The Boarg encoulages engagement valh the skarenalders

The Soard receives rencrts at each meeting an the actvity
of the Company's brokers, PR agent ang meetirgs arc
events gliended by Lhe Fund Manager

The Company's shares are avarlable thiaugh the BMC
share schemes and the Company pacticpales ir the active
markeling of these schemes The shares are alsa widely
avatiable an apen architectare olatfoirs and can be neld
directly tough the Lompany's registrar

The Board takes the powers to poy-back and [ 1ssye ,
shares at each AGW

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

The Company’s parteho s actively managed 1o addiion - The Marager's objecive 1o 1o oalper‘orm tre berchmark
to mvestrrent secunties the Company also inves!s in The Board regulary 1eviews tne Compary s 'ong-teim
commerrial property ans accoroingy, the portloho reay stoalegy anc mvestment cuice ' nes and the Menager's
not ot aw or outserform ine reluin of the bencmark relatrve posiicns against trese

+ The Managemenl Engagement Commities ieviews (ne
sanager’s perfarmance arnually The Board mas Lhe
powers (0 Change (he Manage If deemed acpronate
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Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Company’s
portloho

Although the portfoliois diversilied across a number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate 15 locused
on a single sector and therefore the portiaho will be
sensitive towards the property sector as well as globai
equity markets more generally

Property companies are subject 1o many factors which
can adversely affect their investment nerfarmance, these
include the general economic and hnancal environment
in which their tenants operate interest “ates, availabihity
of nvestment and developrrent finance and requlations
1ssued by governments and authanties

Although we have now exited the buropean Lrion the
structare of ow futuie 1elationship with Continental
Eurape s still evolving ard there couwd he animpact on
accupation across each sector

The COVID-19 global pandemic dominated the financial
yeal [his has changed the way we live and waik.
creating unprecedented uncertainty regarding (e umpact
or economies and property markels around the worll
both i the shart and ionger term

Any streagthening on weakering ol Sterling will have

2 direct e pdact as a proporuon of our Baiance Sheet is
held in non-GRP denominated currencies The currency
exposure 15 mainrtamed in hne wath the benchmark ard
will change over fime As al 31 March 2027, 72 1% of the
Trust's exposure lies to currencies other thap GBP

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receives and considers a requiar report from
the Manager detaiing assel allocation, 1nvestment
decisions, currency exposures. geanng levels and rationale
in relation to the prevailing market conchtions

The report considers the potential itnpac! of Brexit and tne
Manage s 1esponse in positioning the portfailo

The sepoil considers the current and potentiat future
impact of the COYID-19 pandemic and the ongoing
implication for the property market and valuations overall
and by each sector
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties contimued

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings 10 the underbying partfong putting .
pressure on the Company’s ability to grow the dividend
could resant from a number of lactors

lower earmings aind distributions in investee
compantes CoMpanies in some property seclo:s
cortinue to be negatively impacted by the COVID-19
pancemic Companies in some serlors cancelled or
reduced diaidends duang the last linanaal year as a
precaubionary measure 1o protect their balange sheets
N tre short lerme Although most have returmed to
paying dradends, some are at a fower level than
nreviously and others are continuing to withhold
dviclends,

-+ prolonged vacanaes it the direct oroperty sortfoho
and lease or reniai renzgobiations as a tesult of
COVO-19,

strengthe ing Stering reducing the va.ue of overseas
dradend recernls 11 Sterling erms The Campansy

has seen a matenal greass i the level of earnings
I recent years A siymificant facorin this was the
weakani:g of Sterang folmnng the Brexit decision
steding sirengthenad in tne 135t quarter of the
Wnancial vear Tris nay conlnoe af (everss again

1N the near ar mesium 1erm as the longer lerm
imphcetins of Brexn and the LOVID-19 sandernc and
e mpeacl on the LK and European econonmes are
undessiood Strergtheming of Sierung woud lead to a
Fain edrnings,

- adverse changes in the tax trealmeni of divicends or
otherincorie eceved By the Company, anc

+Lnanges 1t the iring of dividend seceipts from

yestea Compantas

The Boaid recerves and considers reqular income
forecasts

income forecast sensitivily to changes 1n FX rates 1s also
manttored

The Compdny has supsiantal revenue reserves wiich cap
be drawr upon when required

The Board will continue to monitor the impact of COVID-19
and the long termamplications for income generation
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Risk identified

Board monitoring and mitigation

Accounting and operational risks

Cisruplion or lailure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties and
the risk that these suppliers provide a sub-standard
Service

The nmpact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
nperalinnal response from the manager and scrvice
sloviders has been dosely momitared

Third party service providers ploduce perniodic reports to
the Board on their conliof envireniments and business
continuation provisicas or a regular basis
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the Management Engagement Cornmittee considers the

performance of each of the service providers on a regular
basis and wuosidets ther ongoing appointment and terms
and condiligns

The Custodiarn and Depository are respansible for the
saleguaiding ol assets in the event of a loss of assets
the Depository must retuin assels ol an wdentical lype
ar corresponding amount unless able to demonstrale
tnat the Inss was the result of ar event beyond thenr
reasonable caontrol

somtonng the quality and timeuness of service as
seryice providers respond to COVID-9 requlations and
guidelines, in particular with widespread home woring
and consideratior of the durabiity of the arrangements
Many organisations are now planming to incorpoiate
home working Intc therr operational structure as a
permanent ‘eature

Financial risks

IFe Company s Investment actlivities expose I 1o a
vanety af firanaial ns<s which incfude courterparty
credil nisk, hquidilty nsk ane the vatuatior of friancial
instruments Any impact of the COVID-19 pardemic bas
been considerad

Detals of these nisks together with the policies for
madnaging these nsks are found in the holes to the

Financial Statements in the full Anqual Reports and
ACCOUNES

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HMW Reverue &
Customs as an inves:ment trust, subjec: 1o cantinuing
to mee: the relevant eiqibility canditions As such the
Company 15 exemnpt from capital gains tax on the profits
realised from the sale of investments

Any breach of the teevant ehgibi'ity conditiors could
leac to the Compeny losing myestment st stalus and

Belig sdDject o oo ation tax on capral gains realised
wiikin the Corrpany's poitinho

The Investment Manager monitars the investment
paitloo, income ard proposed divigend levels Lo ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not hreacked The
resi1s are reported 1o the Board at each meestirg

The ircome forecasts are veviewed by the Compary's (ax
advisor through the yvear who also reports to the Board
on the year-end tax position and ieports on CTA 20170
comphance
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continucd

Risk Identified . Board monitoring and mitigation

Legal, requlatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rujes and Discloswre Guidance and Transparency
rules, faillure to meet the requirements under the
Alternative Investiment Funds Directive. the provisiars
of the Campanies Act 2006 and atrer UK, European
and overseas legisiation affecting UK companies
Failure \o meel the requined accounting standards )
make appropriate disciosures 1n the ntenry and Annuai
Repaorts

The Board receves reqular regulatory updates from
the Manager. Company Secretary, 'egal advisors and
the Auditors The Board considers these repoils and
recommendations and takes action accordingly

The Board receives an annual repoit and update from the
Depository

Internal checkhists and review procedures are i place at
Service pmwde[s

Inappeopriate use of gearing

Geanng. either thiougn the use o! pank debl or thiough
the use of denvalives may be utilised from tme to ime

Whist the yse of geanng s intended to enbance the NAY

tatal retarn, 1t will have the opposite effec when the
feturn of the Company’s investment portfolio s regaive
or where the cost of debts migher than the return frarm
tne portfolio

The Board receives requint reports from the Manager on
the levels of geaimngin the parliolo These are considered
agamst the geanng hmits setin the Investment Guidelnes
ard alse i the context al current market condinons and
sentinent Tre cost of debt s monitored and a halance
soughl belween term, cost and fiexbilily

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Yoss of portfona marager or ather key sta’l
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The Chaimar conducts regular meetngs wilh the Fund
Management team

The tae basis protecis the cone afrastracture ard gepth
and quaiiy resources. The fee stucure INceriivises
outperformance and s fundamentat in the ability to12fan
key staff



Viability Statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporale
Governance (ode, which requires the Company o assass
the prospects ol the Company cver the longer term, the
Directors Fave assessed the piospects of the Campany
over the coming five years This penod 15 used by the
Board dunng the strateqic planning process and the Board
consider this penod of time appropnate for a business of
oul nature and size

This assecsimenl lakoes account of the Company s cursent
position and the policies and processes lor manaqing the
prncipal and ermerging qsks set out on pages 28 to 32 and
e Company’s ability to continue i opewatwon and meetits
habihties as they fall due over the penod of assessment

In raking this statement the Board carned oul a robust
assessment of the pnincipal and emerging ns«s tacing the
Company mc\udmg those that migt threaler 1ts business
model, future perfarmance, soverncy and liquidily

In reaching their canclusions the Diectors have reviewed
flve-year forecasts for the Company walh sensitivity
anawsls 10 a numaer of assumplions, avesiee company
dimdend growth, interest cate, foraign exchange rate, Lex
rale and asset value growth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company kas a long-term investment shiateqy
Jnder which 1t invests man:y i readily 12alisabie,
Sabhcly hsted secunnues and which resindts the level of
DOMFOWINGS

Gf the current portfodg, 50% coule be hgwddted within
five trading days and 59% within 10 tradmg days

Or a Group basis, Cunent assels exceed current
habiites at the Batance Sheet Date

The Compary invests In "eal estate elated companies
which hold rDaI Dslafe assets, and invests i commercial
real estare directly These investiments piovide cash
receipts i the fom of dradends and renta income

The Comipany 15 able to lake advantage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust structure and able to holcd a
proportion of i1s portfolio n less ligud direct progerty
with a views to long-term outperformance,
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Al the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 million undrawn o its revelang loan facliies

The stiuclure has also enabled the Company to
seclire long-term financing FUR S0 million loan aotes
Issued in 2016 are gue to mature at varin 2026 and
GBPS mution foan noles issued on the same date are
gue 10 mature at parin 203

Ihe impact af COVID-19 un the UK and Ewopean
commrercial property markets emains a consideration
This resulted 1n a reduction in dividerd receipts from
Investee companies In the year to 31 Masch 20271 wath
some comparies withhalding o reduang deadends
The majorrty of campanies nave retuinec 1o paying
dividends, althaugh same at lower tevels than before
“L pandemic As a resdlt an improvement v inceme

anticipated In the forthcoming year The longer
termmpact or some sectors s stlt difficult to assess.
Powever the company nas low exposure (o these
seclors

The direct property parifoho fias been well positione
1iespect of the COVID-19 cnisis and rertal coliecion (o

date has Geen 1obust We have very lmited exposul

to retan a1d some smaller accuplers in the Fospitality
sectol, however, pverall the expecied drop in income
from the diect portiolio wn 2020/21 was not malens|
and likewise 15 nol expected (o be in the forthcoming
year

The expenses of the Company are rediclanle and

Tocest in companson with the gssels Reqular and
robust momtonng of revenue and expendilure ‘orecasts
are undertaken throughout the vear The Company
could sutfer a reduction i earnings of 95% and stll be
ahle o meet 1ts labilities as ey fe 1 due
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Viability Statement coitinged

e Company has no employees and consequently
daes not have redundancy or other emoloyrment
related habihties or responsibilibies

The Company retains utle 1o 1ts assets neld by the
Cuslodian which are subject to further safeguards
imposed on the Depositary

The impact of Brexit and COVID-13 have been
considerad i terms af the potertial effect on Steiling
72% of the portfoilo s exposad o currencies clher than
Ste-ling

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

2edl Estate wil conunue 10 be an mvestable sector ol
international stoc markets and irvestors will contnue
to wish 1o have expasdare 1o that sector

Ciosed-erded Investnent Trusis will continue 1o be
wanted Ry nvestors and 1egulation of lax legisiatior
wiltl ~0t change o ar extent 1o make the structure
Jnattractive n campanson 1o cthed iryestment
products

The periormance of 11e Company Wil (oatinge to be
satisfactory Shauld the perormance be less tran the
Board deems to he satsfaclory, 1t has e appropriate
nowers 10 eplace the mvesiment Maiager

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company's business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to cperate
aver many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Soaal and Governance ("ESG) faclars

car present both appartunities and threats to the
perfoimance we aim to deliver to our shareholders The
Board 15 therefore comimitted 1o taking a 1espansible
approach on ESG matters This covels the Company’s own
responsifilities on governance and reporling and, the most
matenal way m which the Company can have an impact,
through responsible ownesship of 1he investments that are
made on 1ls behalf by its Manager

As g long-lerm inveslor, governance and sustainahility
consideralions have always been embedded n our
Manager’s Investment Process ESG risk assessments

and cansiderations ace integrated into the detaled
fundamental Investment research ard analysis thal takes
place on any polential investment tefore 1ts considered
for inclusion 10 ihe portfolio anc continues an ar angaing
hasis for all investments held

This approach 1s m hne vath the definiion of an Article
& Fund under the EU's Sustaimanle Finance Disclosure
Regulations Whilst this s currently kuropean not UK
requiation it is nonetneless 2 widety uiihsed defintion

There are two fundamenial consigerations to nvestment
in sraperty companigs the assels themsalves and thew
maragemert The Manager see<s to 1avest 1 suslananle
assets whichk are managed by quality teams in a well
qoverred corporete structure As aresull, there bas

been a lorg-standing and strong cultare of stewardship
In the Manager’s investment approack The Manager
beueves thal engaging wilth companies 15 best in the
firstinstance. rather ham sirply divesiing or excludicg
Imvestmant opportumities. However, there are inslances
wiere gavernance matters nave driven a decision not {o
lvesl 1 a company As one of the largest teams 1nveshing
in Pan-European reai estate equities, our Manager meels
with a sigmilicant ~umbes of the management teams of
mvestee and potential Investee companies each year and
has a robust record af engagement with an agenda of
reduang nisk. improving perfonmance and encauraging
best pracuce  Woulsi likely ar elevaled number reflecting
thempact of Covid, avel h.e course of the year. our
maragement team partiapated in 380 mdivicua or group
meetings with companies ard ther management teams

Corporate Goveriance disclosure equirements have
Inceased transparency enarmously In recens years
and enabled iInformed engagenenl, wii soCd and

employment practices alse gaining increased focus and
disclosure Environmental measures are now rapidly
coming to the fore and with wider disclosure requitements
being placed upon our investee companies, as a result the
Manager 1s able 1o scrutimise more easity other measures
such as chmate change and sustainabildy pohcies and
oulcomes
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Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board aiso recognises the impaitance of the
Company’s own Governance and disclosures The
Company’s comphance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporate Governance 1s detailed in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 44 of this Annual Report.

Urder Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there 1s the
requirement Lo delail information about employee and
hurnan nghts, induding information atbeut any pohices

1 nas e reletion to these matters ard effectiveness

of these policies As the Trusl has no employees, s
requiiemert does nol appily The Company 1s ral within
e scope of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because 1t
Fas rot exceeded Lhe lurnover threshold anc is thersfore
not obliged to make a stavery and human trafficking
statement Tne Drectors are satishied that, to the best o
their krowedge, the Company's principal suppers, which
are listed on page 108, comply with the provisions of the
UK saoders Slavery Acl 20715

The Board currently comprises thiee male Directars and
two female Direclors The acliviies of ihe Nomination
Committee 10 relaton 10 the board changes are referred
to 1 the Nominanon Committes Repart or sages 51 and
52 Ihe Board’s dwersily policy 1s outaned 15 mare detal
in the Coporate Governance Reporl The Manager has an
equa' opportuaily policy which s sel oot on its websiie
WWW DITI0.COM

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The 3oard has approved a corparate governance voting
policy which. in its optnion, accords vath current bes:
pracice whilst irammtaining a pamary focus on finanaal
returns

The exertise of volirg nghts attached lo the porticho
has been delegated to the Mrm ager Where practicable,
all sh auﬂwo\dmgs were voted a0 all comoany meelirgs
1 the finanaal vear in accordarce with 3M00AMS

QW CoTporate q0\ ernance pohass Tus ensures tat

a strong, consisteat approach 1s taken 1o oioxy voung

TR PROPERTY {NVESTMENT TRUST 3%



Cotporate Responsibility .o .
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As can be seerin the chart above, the fund’s portfchio
welghted carbon inlensity was broadly in line with that of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider

global equity index  This 1eflects the facl that for propeity,

this 15 targely measuning the impact of cngomng emissions
from runming a bulding whereas the wider index ncludes
operating companies will manulacturing capatuhities and
the need to distribute goods waildwide

Far the property sector, the focus s currently ar the
energy elficency of bulldings once they are occupied.
but we expect in time more atlention will be paid o
the carbon emilied in getting them built and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a large propertion cf a
building’s emissions over its lifesgan

The message 1s that thisis sull an area where 1t 15 difficult
to make fully informed deusions The assessments from
the various dala provicers reach different conclusions

as they do not all score i a cansistent way We expect
this toimprove anc change bul itwill be a jouney Our
Manager 15 dedicaling a lot al resource 1o the analysis

of the information avallable and also has the henefl

of the kanwleage of BMOs award wanmag Responsible
invesiment Team As dala coverage nmproves, our
Manacer will in tuim be able Lo engage wilh our investee
companies an envionmental matlers and report to our
shareholders in more deptn

Direct Property Portfolio

The fanagemean: team recogmses tne importance of
sustaimabiity 1n aur business and 10 the direct property
assets which we invest in, hold and manace or behalf of
our Investors. Praperty IMpacts upon the enviroament,
the health and wellbeing of accupiers, and the
cotmmunities 10 which they are situatec. Sgecific issues
relevant to vnysical properly irvesimen: portfolio include,
for example, responsible and sustainable refurbishment
practices, elfioent use of resources throughaout ther”
aperation, and desigr ard services (o support the health
and wellheing of cccuplers and local communities

Environmentai Audits are conducted on a.d our bundings
prior to puichase The Company will take remedial

action or enforce tenant obhgations ta do so wherever
appropnale In manaqing Fnvirgninental, soaal and
Governance 1ssues acrass the direct portfalo - ow
Manager engages with occupiers, external managers and
suppliers  As a respansible steward of the Campany s
assets. our Manager s committed to 1IMproving
sustamatihity characteristics through interventons that are
carefully planned and executed
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Our Manaqger has strong, direct ielationships with
occuplers and 1s comimilled Lo working with them o
develop the dala, medsurement 1ocls ana resources Lo
set and achieve meanngful sustainability targets for the
assets i the portioho - As sait of this, and working with
the porlioho property managers, a Sustainabihity Roadmap
is being impemented which targets biodiversity net gan
across the porticho by 2025 impioving energy, water and
wasle eficiency, transthioning lo 100% 1enewable energy
ard reducing greenhouse gas emissions in ine wth
climate soience

By order of the Boarc

David Watson
Charrman

3,une 2021
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DAVID WATSCN
Chairman

Appointed:
April 2012

Experience:
David became Chairman follewing
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board's
Senior Independent Directer when he
strmultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, a
position he was appointed to on 1
January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group plc,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
oOfficer of Aviva General insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

tias had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services industry.

aa

KATE BOLSOVER
Non-Executive Director

Appainted:
October 2019

Experience:

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and J.P. Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Directoi of the mutual
fund business, and latterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring's mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American Investment Trust plc until
2016, Senior independent Director of
Montanare UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow’s People until
2017

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skils in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as SID and
Chair in a number of boards have built
significant experience in shareholder
and invester engagement.

Other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Cormpany.
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skills and Contribution to the Board:
From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and refevant
skills of the investrent industiy to
the Trust. Kate’s role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder
engagement.

Other Appointments:

Kate is currently Chairman of
Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Senior
Independent Birector of Invesco Bond
income Plus Limited. She is alse a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Giffard & Co Ltd.

SARAH-JANE CURTIS
Non-Executive Director

Appointed:
January 2020

Experience:

sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyaors.
Sarah-jane was previously Business
Director at Bitester Village for Vatue
Retail. Before this, Sarah-Jane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grasvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolONE,

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

Other Appointments:
Sarah-Jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
a consultant to value Retail PLC.



SIMON MARRISON
senior independent Director

TIM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed: Appointed:
September 2011 January 2018
Experience: Experience:

Simon joined the Board of the
Company on 28 September 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at LaSalle investment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Europe.
Simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
tondon. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
LaSalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Europe.

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investrnent industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finaily as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
refevant skills in investment
management.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Other Appointments:
Senior advisor for European Real Estate
at KKR {Kohlberg Kravis Roberts)

Other Appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is aiso Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.

Al chirectors are (ndependent ol the manager and are members ol the Audit Comimitiee
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Managears

MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

el

JO ELLIOTY

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Hendersan,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc (Hens) in Land Management

from Reading University.

A?L

Geuorge Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008, He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previously at niche Gty investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and

Law from City University.
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Jo Elliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corpotate Finance Manager
with London and Edinburgh Trust pic and prior to that was
an investment,/treasury analyst with Heror Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc {Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988, jo is 3 Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

Alban Lhonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSC in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. In 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from £5CP-EAP.



Report of the Diroctors

The Direclors present the audited financial statements of
the Group and the Company and their Strategic Repart
and Renort of Qiredlors for the year ended 31 March

2021 The Group comipnses TR Property investiment Trust
plc and its wholly owned subsidianes. As permitted by
leqisiation, some matleis normally included in the Report
ol the Directors have been ncladed i the Stralegic 2epart
because the Board considers them to e of strateqic
importance Therefore, 1he review of the business of the
Lompary, recenl evesnts 41d outlook can be found on
pages 4 10 35

STATUS

The Company 15 an nvestment company, as defired in
Section &33 of the Compames Act 2006 and operates as
aninvestment trust i accordance wilh Section 1158 of e
Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares
with a nominal value of 25p each which aie prermium
listed on the Londor Stock Exchange

The Company has recerved confirmation from HA Revenge
& Castoms that the Compary has been accepled as

n approved investment rust for accounting penods
commenang or or after 1 Apnl 2012 subject w the
Campany contning to meet the ehgbility conditions of
Secion 1758 Carporatior lax Act 2010 and (e ongoing
requnesents far appraved companies in Chapter 3
af Part 7 Investiment Trust (Approved Company) (fax)
Requlations 2017 {Statutory irstrument 2071/2959)

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
corcacted and will conhinue to conduct its affairs so as

to maintair investmert trust status The Company has
also conducied ils affars, and will continue to conduct

(ts affairs, i such a way as Lo comply with the indiidual
Savings Accounts Regulations The Ordinary shares can be
held in lrdeadual Savings Accour:s {ISAS)

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

At 31 March 2021 the net asseis of the Company smaouried
to £1,326 million {2020 £1.136 mullior), on a pel share
bases 41797p (2020 358 11p) per share

Revenue edimings per shae for the vear amounted (o

2 252 {2020 14 62p) and the Directors recommend the
paymen: of a final dividend of 2000 (2020 & 80p) pe-
share Hnrging e tolal dividend tor the year Lo 14 20p
{2019 1400p) In armving at therr dracend propesa:. the
3oard also reviewed the income forecasts for the year (o
Mach 2022

Performance detalls are set out in the Firancial Highlights
on page 2 and the outcame of what the irectars consider

to be the Key Periormance indicalors on pages 26 and 27
The Charman’s Statemert and the Manager’s Report give
full details and analysis of the results for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BALK ACTIVITY

AL 3T March 2021 the Company hac 317,350,980
(2020 377.350,580) Ordinary shares i 1ssue

Al the AGM 10 2020 the Directors were given powe! to

buy back 47.570,911 Crdinary shares. Since this AGM the
Directoss have not bought back any Ordinary shares at

the nominal value of 25p each under this authority The
oulstanding authonty is therefore 47,570,911 shares
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This authorty vall expire at the 2021 AGM The Company
wili seek 1o renew the power 1o make market purchases
of Ordinary shares al this year's AGM

Since T Apnl 2027 io the date of this repor:, the Lompany
nas made no madarket puichases for cancellation The Board
has not set a specilic discount al which shares will be
repurchased

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

Details of the manager-ent arrargements and fees are
sel out ir the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee becinming on page 53 Total fees paid

fo the Marager in any ore year (Management and
Persformance Fees) rdy 1'ol exceed 4 99% of Group

Equity Sharehoiders  Funds Tolal fees payadle for the
year 10 31 March 2027 amount o 1 2% (2020 0 8%) ol
Group Faunty Shareholders’ Funds Included in this were
performance fees eaired in the yeal erded 31 March 2021
of £9,555.000 (2020 £2,683.000).

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND [ERS

The Group and Company fnanaal statements for the year
erded 31 Maich 2021 nave been prepared on a going
concer basisn accordence with Internationa: financial
Reporting Stardards (IFRS), which compnse standards and
nterpretations aparoved by the international Accounting
Standards Board {ASB) logether watn mterpretabons

of the Internatioral Accounting Standards and Standing
Intarpretatrons Commitiee approved by Lhe inte mationa:
Accounting Stancasds Committee (IASC) ivat remain m
effect, 1o the extent that they have heen adooied by the
Europear Unon and as regards the Group and Company
financial staterrents, as apphed 10 accordance wilh the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The accounung policies are set oul 1 note ™ o the
Francial StateTents ol pages 73 10 77

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUSYT i,



Repors of the Divectors (0w o

FINMAMCOIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's Financal Instruments comprise ils
investment poitfoho, cash balances, bonowings and
dentors and creditors thal anise directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaring settlement. profit

or 1055 baiances on dervalive instruments and accrued
income and expenses The financial sk management
objectives and pohcies ansing from (s finaroal
instruments and exposure of the Company to risk are
disclosed 1n note 11 to the finanaial statements

GOING CONCERN

The Directors” assessment of the longes-term viability of
the Company 15 set oul on pages 33 and 34,

In assessing Going Concern, the Board has Made a delaled
assessmert of the ability of the Company and Group 1o
meel 1S liabiiities as they 1ail due, inctuding stress and
lquichty tests which considered the effects of substantia!
falls i investment valuations, substartial reductions

in revenue ceceved orc ieductions in market qudity
inclucing the effects and potential effects of the conunued
economic Impact caused by the Coronavius pandemic The
Board 15 satisfied with the operational resilience of service
providers gesprie COVID-'% and conlinues o mondor the
performance tioughoat e pandermic

In hght of testing carmed out. the gverali leve s of the
investmenrt hquididy neld by the Company and the
significant ret asset partfolio position, and despite the
smail nes cunent llabdity posiion of tre Pareat Comzany
and Group, the Diectors are satished that the Compeny
and the Group have adequa*" finarcial resources to
cantinue 10 opetation ‘or al ieast the next 12 months
forowirg the sigming of te finanad! statements a1d
tnerefore 1L1s eppropriate (o adopt (ne gomg concern hasis
of accounting

INTERMAL CONTROLS

The 3oard ~as overa’l -esporsiDiily for 1e Groues
systems ohinterral controns a~d for revigwirg ther
effecliveress Tne Portinlin Warager s responsibie fo- (e
day to day nuestment m éwage*-r‘e-rf dﬂusms ar et
af the Group Accounting and compan tanal service

Feve o been outsouced

Thentena cortiols g 19 e sure thet e assels of the
Gragp ate sategJarced, 2rope” accounhirg ecoids are
mamtaned, anc ‘T‘ﬂ fmanaal mformation usad vathie
e ousiness and 1of publication s reabe Contil of the
sks icennfieg, coy enmj fira~aial, gperationa’ cophas
ard ns¢ matagement, s ervedded 10 e cantas of
118 Groap by a senes of reguler investment serfo-marce
ard attithutian stateme-ts, iranazi and 71k a~alyses,

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

AlFny ard Portfalio Manager reports and quarterly control
reports Key nisks have been identified and controls put 1n
place to mitigate them, including those not directly the
responsibiiity of the AlFRL or Poitfolio Manager The key
risks aie explained in maore detatl in the Strategic Report
on pages 28 1o 32

The effectivenass of each third party provider's inletnai
conirols 1s assessed on a contiruing basis by the Compliance
and Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager,
lhe Admamislialor and the Company Secietary Each
maintains its own system of mterndl conlrols, and the Boaid
and Audit Commuftee recerve regular reports from them

The contiol sysiems are designed to provide reasonabie, bul
not ahsolute, assurance agamnst matenal misslaterrent or
loss and lo manage, rather than eliminate, fisk of falure o
achieve objectives

As the Campany has no employees and its operatiora
functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Committee does rot cunsider 1L niecessary “oi the Compary
to establish its owr internal audit fuaction Instea, the
Audil Committee selies onnternal contiol 1epoits recaved
from its pnncipa: service praviders to satisty itsel? as to the
contols in piace

The 30ard has establisbed a process foridentifying.
evalJating and manacing any major isks fa(ed by the
Gioup. The Board undertakes an annual review of the
Gooup's systern of internal controls in e with the Turnow
guidance Busiiess 15k have diso Ueen an J|‘ sed by
the Board and recarded 191 3 nisx map that s seviewed
regularly Each quarter tne Board receives a fowa*
enort {fiom each of the ALy Partiolio & anager. the
Administiaior end the Company Secelary detailing the
steps ta<er (o monitor the areas of ns<, irc'ucing thase
hal are not disectyy their ressonsibniy, and which repart
he details of any <nown internal contro! failures

The Boarg also torsicers tne fiow of 1n‘prmation and the
grachinn selween the (hind Darly service provicers amo
e comralsin place W enisuie aCCJracy ang tGr“u\e‘er*ess
af te recording of 2ssets ardinco™e Tne 30a7d recary
2 =pp” from e Porfolio Manager sething oyl the k;;;

contrals 10 ppeeuor

¢ Boatd also has airect acgess (o
Seliee ane setviees Jrovrded D',‘ it ;
e, rnuch s rominated tenasentative. 1s

25ponsit e ‘or ersJnig that t“" %3 Pmd Committes

LIoCecures a2 Sinat ap olicaze red. yaniens
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wals nave nesn i place thioughout the p:-rmc‘-
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Key nsks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure robustintena contrals and
monitanng procedures are in place in respect of these
rsks on an cngomng basis

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING {THE VAGM 1}

The AGM will be held on 27 July 2021 at 2.30pm at the Royal
Autorrohile Club, 89/97 Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5hHS The Notice
of AGM 15 sel out on pages 100 and 107 The full texi of the
resolutions ard an explanation of each 15 contained 1n e
Notice of AGM and explanalery notes on pages 104 to 107

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were no contracts subsisling dunng or at the end

of the yvearin which a gueclor of the Company 15 of was
malenally interested and which 1s or was significant in
relation o the Company’s business ~o Directar has a
contsact of service with the Company Further details
reqarding the appomtment letters can te tound on sage 52

DONATIONS

Ihe Company made no political or charitable danatipins
dung the year (2020 £nil)

LISTiING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company corfirms that there ae no items which
require disclosure under Lisung Qule 98 4R inespect o
he year ended 31 March 2021

VOTING INTERESTS

Reghts «ng Obiigatons Atiaheng 10 50

Subject to apphicable statules and atner snaeholders nghts
shares may be issuad with such fights and resticlions as
the Comoany may by ordindry resolution deade. of (¢ there
Is no sucn mesolution or so far asat does not make speafic
pravision) as the Board may dedde Subject o lhe Arlicles,
the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders aghts,
urissued shares are at the disposal of the Board

‘v'cwm

tagenera’ ieeling of the Company, when voting s
mdu‘ame\ by way of 3 pall, each share affords 1's cwne
ana vole
Restiictians on Vot ng

NoT 1-*1b€' shia | e enutled 1o voleaf he has oeer

served with ¢ restachion nelice (as delired 1 the Ajficies)
after fawhr; o provide the Company watn im‘ormation

concerrirg interests 1 those shares iequired 1o be
providec under the Comipanies Act 2006

Ooasiinas for Yormng Ruagnts
Yotes are exercisabie atl the general meeting of the Company
in respect of which the business >eirg voted upon 1s being

heard Votes may be exercised in person, by proxy, orin
relation 1o corporate members, by corporate representatives

The Articles provide a deadhine for submission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {or such sharter Lime
as the Board may determine) before the meeting {not
excluding non-working days)

Transter of shares

Any shaies in the Company may de held In uncertificated

forrm and, subject 1o the Articles, title to uncertficated shares
10y be translerred by means of a relevant system. Subject

to the Arlicles, any member may transfer ail or ary of his

cerliicated shares by ananstrument of transfer in any usuai

formn arin any other form which the Board may approve.

significant voung Rights

At 31 Mairch 2021, no shareholdars held over 3u of voting
ngnss on a discrebiondry hasis However, at 31 March 2021
the following shareholders held aver 3% of the volirg
fghts on a non-discietionary basis

Shareholder : g

Brewin Dolphin Utd ) ) 11.1%
Retail Investors - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 51%
Hargreaves Lansdawn Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 31.8%
Charles Stanley Group ple 3.0%

' See above for further irformatior on the velng ughts ol Didingry shaies.

Sirce 31 March 2021 to the cate of this eport, the
Company has not been micrmed of any notfiable changes
with respect to the Crdinary shares

Artictes 0f Asye
The Cormpany s Aracles of Assaciation may only e
amenced by a speaal resolution at a General Meelrg of
e sharehoiders

AT

Amnerdments to the Atticles of Assoaation will e
proposed at the 2021 AGM and further delalls are sel oul
or page 06 1o 107

Corperate Jupenagnie

Full details are given 1 the Coroorate Governance Report
an pages 44 to 50 The Corpurate Gavernance Repor: farms
ot o this Dieclars’ Repaort
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The Board of Directors 15 accountable to sharehalders fol
the goverance of the Company’s affairs.

This statement describes how the pnnap:es of the 2018
ediion of UK Carporale Governance Code ("the Code”)
isued by the Financial Reporting Counal {tne "FRCT) 10
2018 have heen appled {o the affairs of the Company The
Code can be wiewed at www.frc org.uk

Application of the AIC Code’s Pringipies

In applying the prnapie of the Code, the Directors

have also taker account of the 2079 Code of Carporale
Governance publishned by the AIC (the "AiC Code™), of which
the Company 15 a member The AIC Code establishes the
framewark of best practice speafically Tor the Boards of
investment trust compamcs Furthermare the AIC Lode
has full endorsement of the FRC, which means that AlC
nemners who report agamst the AlC Code, on the whote,
meel ther obiigations under the (oce and the related
discosure requirements contaimed in the Listing fules The
Al Code can be viewed at weanw iReaic oo gk

The Direclors believe that duting the penoc urder reviewy
they have compied with the main prinoples and relevant
pravisions of the Corde, insolar as they apply fo the
Company s busmess, and with the provisions of the AIC Cede

Tympliarog siatement

The Gireciors nole Lhat e Company did not comply with
tre following provisions of e Code in the year ended

31 March 2027

Provision 9 Due to the nature and stucture of the
Cormrpany the Boare of non-executive aneclors does no?
fee 1m1s apprapriate to appoirt a ¢nel execuiive

Provision 24 Tre Board beieves that all Directors,
wcluding the Chairman, should sit on sl of the Board's
Cormitiees

Prowision 26 As the Comga™y has ro P”’p oyees and Its
aperatioral functions are uncertaser by third parties. the
Audit Committee dees ol corsider 1L aspropnace ‘on the
Compary o estabash s ownorlernal 2uce farcaon The
Company’s seryite orondars provice 3assiaace of they
=frecve 1menel processes and canins

Provizion 32 Tne 302rd 2025 10t hawe 3 separaie
Remyresation {ommities The “urcions of &
Remu-eration (ommities ase (ained gut by he

Matagemertbagagerrent Corimities

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Compositan and Indapendance af the Bogrd

The Bodare currently consists of five directors, all of whom
are HOD*GXEEUUVE The 8pard's incependence, including
thal of the Chairman, has been considered and all of the
Dmclors are deemed to he independent in character and
have no relatonshios or aicumstances which are likely to
affect thew jJudgement

The Board subscnibes o the view expressed 1n the AlC
Code that long-serving Cirecions should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majonty 1t does not
consider that the lenath of a Director's tenure, e 1solation,
educes s of her ability to acl independently The
Board’s policy an tenuie 1s that cortinuity and expesience
add significantty Lo the strength of the Beard althougn
the Board believes in the ments of an argeing and
progressive refreshmenrt of its camposthor

(v arsity

The Board -ecognises the benefit of diversily 4ad as of the
date of s report the Soard corsists of thiee men and
WO WOMmen

Diversity 15 teke mto account as part of the recrutnen
appoiniment azd succession planning process and

‘e Board 15 also aware of the developing corporate
governance wit™s regard to ethriaty of indradual

Directors Tne Boasd s committed to appointing the most
appropiiae candidate. 12qga-dless of gender o1 olher forms
of diversity and therefare ro targets have been sel against
which wo report

Poers -J?' the Ciralinrs
Subject to the Company's Articles of Assoniation, the
Companies At 2006 arc ary direchions given by speaal
resolution, the yusiness af the Company 1s managed
by the Board who may exerase alt the powers of the
Company, whether relating to the maragemen: of the
susiress of the Company or not Ir paricular, the Board
ny exeraise A e powers of the Comoany 10 boraw
Tocey and to martgage of charge ary of its andesLakings,
ls anc ucalied capra ans 19155
debentuies ard olne  secunilles ard 1o gre secdiiy 1o

ary ceat, haziht, o0 obligation of the [urﬂ,rm [0 a™y o

BlisN \":"r:\', 2556

Thete are N3 06T 2005 OF 4 FaNCETETTs witlh 1170 A ues
ach affecn, alter or e anate usor 3 Ccangs of et o
p-' e (O“W,Ja“




DIRECTORS

The Chairman 1s Mr Watson and the Serior Independent
Directar s &1 Marnison Mr Watson succeeded Wi Seaborn
as Charrman wher. he retired from the Board of Director
following the AGM on 28 July 2020 M1 Marmison succeeded
Mr Watson as the Senior Independent Director on this

date The Directors’ Diogiaphies, oA pages 38 and 39,
demonstrate the breadth of investiment, commeraal and
orofessional expenence relevant w therr positions as
Directors of the Company

Duectors’ retirement by rotation and re-election 1s subjec:
to the Arlicles of Assoaiation In accordance with the Code,
all direclors will be subject to annrual re-elecion

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curts, Mr Gilibarks, M1 rdamson,
Mrwatson will all retire at the fartncormirg AGM I
accordance with the Code and, being ehgible. will offer
themselves for re-election A Directars ale regarded as
being free of any corflicts of iveest ard no ssues e
respect of mdepencerce aise The Board has concluded
that all Direclors corunue (o make valuabs2 contnbulions

BOARD MEETINGS

and believe that they remain independent in charactei
and judgement

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of
office In an event of a takeover bid

BOARD COMMITTEES

I1he Board has estaohished an Audil Committee, a
Normination Commuttee and a Management Engagement
Cammuttee, which alsa carmes out the functions of

a Rermuneration Committee Al the Directors of the
Company are non-execulive and serve on each Committee
of the Board 1t has been the Company’s pohcy Lo

include all Directors on all Committees This encourages
unity. clear communicatior ang orevents duplication of
discussion belweer the Board and the Commitlees

The rcles ang responsibilities o each Commultee are set
aut an the individual Committee reports which follow Lach
Corrmiutiee has witien terms of eference which clearty
defire 115 responsiiities and dulies These can be foand
or the Company's websile, are available on request and
will glso be availabie for inspection at the AGM

The aumber of meetings of the 3eard and Commitiees neld dunng the year under revievy, and the attendance of

ndvidual Directors. are shown below

David watson 6 [ 2

Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2
Simon Marrison 6 6 2
Kate Belsover ) 6 2
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 2

2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1

in adatien to fermai Board and Commutiee meetings, e Direcicors also attend @ numzer of nformar meetings Lo
renresent the Nterests of the Company, and to discuss operational Mmatkets and succession planning

THE BOARD

The Boa:d 15 1esponsible lon the ellective stewardship ol the Company’s a*fars Certain strateqic 1ssues aie imomiored
by the Board a1 meelirgs agdnst o -ameworc whicn bas been agreed wath the fdanager. Additioral meetings may
be arrarged as requied The Bodid Fas a foinal schedule of matters speafically reserved for its decision, which a-e
categonsed under vanous headings. inciuding sireteqy, management structure, capita., firancial reportirg, internal

conols, geanng, assel allacation, share price discount, contracts, investment pollty, flnance, risk, 1mvestrent restrichions,
performance, carporate goverrance and Board membership and apoomnimerts

In order to enable ihem Lo discherge their responsibilities, all Directars have ‘'ur and timesy accass 1o re evant irformation
At each meeling, the Board ~eviews the Company’s investment performance ard conside s finanual analyses aad othe
repoits of an operabiondal nature The Board monilors comphance with the Compary's obsectives and 15 1esponsibie for
setting assel alocather and investment and geanng hmits within which the Portiolio fanager has discrebion to act and

thus supervises the management af the imvestment ponfeio, which s contractuzlly delegated to the Portfolio Manager

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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The Beard has responsibility for the approval of
Investments 10 unguoted INvestments and any
nvestmerts in funds managed or advised by the Partfolin
sanager it has also adopled a procedure for Directors,

in the furtherance of then duties. to take mcependent
professional advice at Lthe expense of the {ompany

CONFLICES DF INTEREST

In line waith the Compames Act 2006, the Board has the
power Lo authonse any potential conflicts of interest that may
anse and impose such mits or condiions as it thinks fit A
registzl of sotential confhcts 15 maintained and 1s reviewed at
every Board meelng Lo ensure all getads are kept up-to-date
Approprate authonsation will be sought prior to the
appomiment of ary new Directar or if any rew conficis anse

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHDLDERS

Shareholder relations ate giver gk prionty by the Boatd,
the AlFM and the Portfoho Manader The znme medium
by which the Company communicates with shareholders
15 througn the Intenm and Annual Repolts which & to
provide sharenoiders with a clear understanding of the
Company’s activities and their resuits This information 15
suppiemerted by the daily calculation of the Net Asset

of the Compary's Crdinary shares which 15 pubished
on the Londar Stack Excharge

[his information 1s alse avallab'e on the Company s
website, www trproperty com together vl a menthly
factsheer and Manager comimentary

L5 the intention of the 30aid that the Anrual Report ard
Accounts ang hotice of the AGM be jssued to sharehoiders
S0 as w0 provide at least twenty working days rotice of
the AGH! Shareholders ualshmq o ‘odge ¢uestions in
acvarce o' the AGM. or to contact the Boa[d at any other
lime, are invited to 20 50 by withng to the Company
Secretary at the reqistered acdress qiven or page "08

al presetaiiors are glven to holh sharekolders a1e
Af"e1i=,a§‘ls fo.owimg the pubhicaton of the anrua esuis

A mMeet Irgs Detween e Lo
rechred to the Board

[
T

ager ang sharehclde s ee

SECTION 172 COMPANIES ALT 2005

sectar 172 of the Comrpa
toactin

L2006 requines drecion
qoad farh ard 17 3 war s the rs: ey
to ororote the success of the C'-Ppgﬁ' Ir accoidares

wth e -C_]UI[FFTI”T' of the Cormaaries {iscel areous
Repoing) Reguiaiions 2018, E‘h)',, me Lompan,
explars rovy the Crectors have discrarged their duty
e secion 172 dung the enaiting penod Fufiting

15 cut, naturaly, supeGats tme Company v actienrs its
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lnvestment Chjective and helps to ensure that all deasions
a'e made In & respensible and sustamnable way

Upon appoiniment, Directors aie provided with a detarled
in¢luction outhining ther dUlkS, \eqally and requiatary, as

a Director of a UK public kmited company and continue o
requlariy recerve relevart technical updates and traming
Uncer their letter of appomtment. the Directors also have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
opporlunity to seek independent professional advice in the
furtherance of their duties as a director, at the Company's
expense The Company has o schedule of Matters Reserved
for the Board which cearly descnbes the Board's duties

and responsibilities r addition, there are also the Terms

of References of the Board’s Commuttees which outhne

the responsipiities thal are delegated from the Board

The Terms of Relerences are “eviewed at ieast annually 1o
consider any 1equlatory and best practice deveiopments

DECISION MAKING

The impartarce of stakehoider considerations,
particularin the coniext o decision-making. 15 IE}QLIHH!‘;
brosght to the Board’s dtlem]on Oy e Company
secretary and taken imta account al every 3oard
meeting, and a napel reminding Direclors of that s
labled at the stait u[ evely Board meeting The Boaid
considers the ummr at any matenat decision wil’
nave on all relevant st akc—ho\ders lo ersyte that 1tis
making a decsion ’!‘at promates the long-teim saccess
of the {ommpany. winether this be, for example, 1
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' Shareholders

Shareholder suppaort is
essential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term stsateqy of the
business.

The Manager

Holding the Company's
shares offers investors a
liquid investment vehicle
through which they can obtain
exposure to the Company’s
diversified portfolio. The
Investment Manager’s
pesfarmance is critical for

the Company ta successfully
deliver its investment strateqy
and meet its objective.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, including institutional and retail investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with

Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

Annual General Meeting - the Cornpany welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Shareholders at its AGM. Shareholders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to thern directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action of makes changes, when and as appropriate.

Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to shareholders. These publications provide infarmation on the Company and
its portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financial position.
This is supplermented by daily publication of the NAV an the Stock Exchange and
menthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Company is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

Shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or cencerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senior Independent Director is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channe! of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relatienship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
line with the Company’s investment abjective. Important components in the collaberation
with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on zll key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. in addition, the Chairman reguiarly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrater, the Reqgistrar and the

Depositary and the Broker

A range of advisers enables The Board maintains regular contzct with its key external pro\nders and receives regular

the Company to function as reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
an investment trust and a the regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
constituent of the FTSE 250 to  taken into account. The Management Engagement Comnmittee formally assesses their
ensure it meets its relevant performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the
obligations. key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately

remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service provider 35 appropriate.

Lenders

Availabitity of funding and " The Board needs to demanstrate to lenders that it is & well- managed busmess capable of
liguidity are crucial to the consistently delivering long-term returns.

Corpany’s ability to take

advantage of investment

opportunities as t they arise.

Regulators

The Company can only The Board reqularly c0n5|ders haw it meets various regulatory and statutory obllgatlons and
operate with the approval follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any goveinance decisions it

of its requlators who have makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

a legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
sharehalders.

Investee Cempames

Portfoho companies are The Manager communicates regularly with porttoho compames and is an engaged
ultimately shareholders shareholder (on behalf of the Company).

assets and “hm taoard The Baard manitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives regular feedback
recognises the importance on meetings with the management of portfolio companies and voting at their general

of good stewardship and
communication with investee
tompanies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strateqy.

meetings.
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dvidends. The Board recognises the importance of dividends
to shareholders and after careful ieview of the Company's
revenue forecasts and reserves togelher with the investment
autlock wath the Manager, the Board decided thal,
notwithstanding the exceptional market conditions, it would
draw on the revenue reserve to support the dvidend

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

During the year the Board continued te focus on the
perfarmance af the Manager in achieving the Company’s
investment objective within an appropriate nsk lramework.
Following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic N March
2020, the focus widened to consider the potential impack ol
{OVID-19 on the Company {including portiolio activity, nsks and
opportunities, geanng, revenue forecasts and the operations
of other third party providers) to ensure that the portlolio had
sufficient resilience together with the Company’s aperational
struciure to meet the unprecedented arcumsiances

DIRECTORATE

The Board’s policy on tenure was reviewed duning the

year The stability of the Board dunng one of the most
challenging penods was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made to the Board in O¢lober
2019 and January 2020 Therefore. no changes were made
lo the Board compasition dunng the financial year However,
the Board 1s mindful of the importance of having 4 suitable
succession plan especially as David Walson has served on
the Board since 2012 and Simon Marmsen since 2011,

CULTURE AND BUSINESS (ONDUCT

The Board 15 1n agreement that having a good coiporate
cuitare, particularly inits engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders wall a1d delivery
ol 115 long term strategy The Board promotes a culture
of openness, in ine with this purpase through ongeing
engagement with 1ts service providers and the Manager.

The Directors agiee that establishing and maintaining

a heaithy corporate cultuie within the Board and in its
interaction with the Manager. Shareholders and other
stakeholders wall support the delivery of its purpose, values
and stiategy The Board seeks Lo promote a culture of
openness, debale and integnity through ongoing diaicgue
and engagement wilh its service providers, panapally the
faanager the Board stnives to ensure that its culture s n
line with the Company’s purpose. values and stiateqy.

The Company has a number of pohaes ard procedures
In place to assist with maintaining a culture of good

govermnance including those relating to diversity,

Cirectors’ conflicts of interest and Directars” dealings in
the Company’'s shares. The Board assesses and monitors
comphance with these policies as well as the general
culture of the Board reqularly through Board meetings and
in particular dunng the annual evatuation process which 15
undertaken by each Directar {lor more information see the
Board evaluation sectign on page 57)

The Board seeks tn appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluates therr service on a regular basis
as descnibed on page 53 The Board considers the culture
of the Manager and othes service providers, including
their pohaes, praclices and behaviour, through reqular
reporting from these stakeholders and in particulas duning
the annual 1eview of the performance and continuing
appointment of all service providers,

8
=
™
=]
=
»
x
o
m

EMPLOYEE, SOQIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Board recognises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detall information about human rghts,
employees and community 1ssues, including infarmatian
about any poicies it has 1n relation to these matters and
the effectiveness of these policies These requirements,
practically, are not applicable lo the Company as it has no
employees, all the Dueclors are nen-executive and it has
outsourced all operational functions Lo third-party service
providers Tnerefore, the Company nas not reparted further
N respect of (hese provisions

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY

Directors” and Officers” hability insurance cover 15 1n
place in respect of the Directars The Company s Articles
of Association provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemnily for Directors 1n respect of costs
which they may incur relating to the defence of any
proceedings brought agamst them ansing out of then
positions as Directors, 1n which they are acquitted or
Judgement |s given in their favour by the courl

To the extent permitted oy law and by the Company’s
Arlicies of Assoaation, the Company has entered Into
deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each Director of

the Corrpany in respect of habtlities which may attack to
therm in their capacity as Directars of the Company These
provisions, which are qualifving third party indemunity
provisions as defined hy section 234 of the Companies
Acl 2006, were introducad in January 2007 and currently
remain in force
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DIRECTORS  STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Direclors who were members of (he Board at the ime
ol approving the Directors’ reporl are listed on pages 38
and 39 Having made enquines of fellow directors and of
the Company’s auditors, each of these Oirectors conhrms
that.

to the best of each Dieclor's knowledge and belief,
there 15 no information {thatis, Information needed by
the Company's auditors N connection with prepanng
then 1eport) of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware, and

each Cirector has taken all the steps a Direclor might
reasonably be expected to have laken {0 be aware of
relevant audit information and 1o establish that the
Company's auditors are aware ol that information.

This informatian 1s given and shauld be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of Seclion 418 of the
Comypanies Act 2006

By order of the Board

Daved Watson

Chairman

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman: Mr Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and 1ts Comimitiees and miake
recommendations in refation to structure, size and
composition, the balance of knowledge. expernience
and skill ranges;

Consider succession planning and tenure polcy and
aversee the development of a diverse pipeline,

Consider the re-election of Direclors, and
Review the autcome of the board evaluation process

The Nornmation Commitiee meets at least on an annual
basis. and mare frequently as and when 1equired and last
met in March 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Cammittee discussed succession plannming af the
Board, the tenure and diversity pohcies

The Commuttee annually reviews the size and stiucture

of the Board and will continue 1o 1eview SUCCession
planning and further recruitment and take nlo account the
recommendations of external Board evaluations.

BOARD tVALUATION

Followirg the engagement ol Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to facilitate an independent evalualion
of the effectiveness of the Board, 1ts committees and
the performange of each director for the year ended

31 March 2020 The annual evaluation for the year ended
371 March 2021 was camed out by the Company. This
took the form of questionnaizes loflowed by discussicns
to rdentify the effectiveness of the Board's achivilies,
including its Committees

The Chanman alsa reviewed with each Director their
mdividual performance, contnbution and commitment
The appraisal of the Charrman followed the same format
and was led by Simon Marrison. The results of the
evalualion process were presenied 1o and considerad by
the Board There were no significant actions ansing from
the evaluation process and il was agreed that the current
cemposition of the Board and its Committees reflected a
suitable mix of skills and experience, and thal the Board
as a whale, the individual Crrectors and its Commitlees
were funchioning effectively

Aller careful consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Governing Board mMembers’ Tenure and Reappointment, all
of the direclars, wll be offering themselves for re-election
at the foithcoming AGM Itis considered that each of them
ment 1e-election by shareholders. Further information on

each directors skills and then contribulion o the Board are
outhned in the directors” biographies on pages 38 and 39

in accordance with the provisions of the Code, 1t 1s the
intention of the Board to engaye an cxlernal faahtatur Lo
assistwith the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evalualion will be carmed oul for
the year ended 31 March 2023 The Board will continue to
complete an internal board evaluation annually within the
INlervening years.

BOARD'S POLICY ON TENURE

In ine with the update of the Code In 2018, the AIC has
updated its Code of Corporate Governance 1 2019 The AIC
recommended, under Provisian 24, a different approach to
tenuie i relation to Invesiment companies, considerng
how they differ to chairs of operating companies, where
the Board does not have a chief executive. The Board Look
into consideration the approach and intraduced the Policy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment’
This policy authnes the Company’s appraach to tenure and
reappointment of non-executive directors it ighlights the
Boards belief that the value brought through continuity
and expenence of Directors with longer penods ol service
15 ot only desirable, but essential In an Investment
company. The Board did nol feel that it would be
appropriate to set a speaific tenure hmit for indmidual
Directois o1 the Charman of the Board or its committees
Instead, the Board will seek to recruit a new Director on
average every three years sg as regularly to bring the
challenge of fresh thinking into the Board's discussions,
ensuring that on each accasion that the Board enters into
new Investment commilments, at least nalf the Board
members have diect personal expenience of negotiating
previous commitments with the Manage-.

DIRECTORS TRAINING

Wwhen a new Direclor 1s appointed, he/she 1s offered
training to suil thei needs Directors are alsa provided
with key information on the Company’s activiiies on

a regular basis, including requlatory and statutory
requirements and internal controis Changes affecting
Directors responsibilinies are adwised to the Board as they
anse Directors ensure that they are updated an requlatory,
statutory and industry matters.
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the period under review was a fixed fee of
£3,745.000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pd based on
the net asset value (determined in accordance with the
AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, June,
Septembet and December, payable quanterly in advance

The fee arrangements have been reviewec by the Soard
for the year 1o 31 March 2022 and the fixed element of the
fee and the ad valorem rate will remain unchanged

The Board continues Lo consider that the fee shucture
aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager as
well as being highly competitive

The fee arrangements will continue Lo be reviewed on an
annual basis

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addition 1o the managernent fees, the Board has agreed
to pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of
an accounting penod 1 certain performance abjectives are
achieved

A performance fee s payable 1f the tolal return of adjusted
net assels {after deduction of all Base Management
Fees and ather expenses). as defined 111 the 1MA, at

31 March each year outperforms the total return of the
Company’s benchmark plus 1% (the "hurdle rate”), this
outperformance (expressed as a percenlage) 15 known
as the "percentage outperformance” Any lee payabie
will be the amount equivalent to the adjusted net assels
at 31 March each year multiplied by the percentage
autperformance, then multipiied by 15% The rmaximum
performance fee payable for a penod 1s capped at 1 5%
of the adyusted net assels However if the adjusled

net assels at the end of any penod are less than at the
beginning of the penod, the maximum performance ‘ee
payable wilt be hmited to 1% of the adjusled net assets

It the tolal retar of sharenolders’ funas for any
cerformance oenod 1s 'ess than the benchmark for the
welevant performance penod. sucn underperfarmancs
{expressed as e perceniage) will pe carmed ‘orward to
fuiyre perinrmance pennds

[ ary fee exceeds the cap, such excess periormarce
{expressed as a oeicentage) will be cared lorward and
apolied o offset any percentage underperiormarce

in future serfor —ance penads 'nthe event 1hal the
cenchrark s exceeded bul the hurdie s not, tnat
outpeformance of the bencrmark can be used to offset
past or future ungerperformance Tnese amounts ¢ar

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

be used for affsel purposes only and therefore cannol
have the eflect of creating a fee i a year where a lee
wiould nol otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in that year At 31 March 2021 there 1s a carry forward of
outperformance ol 18% (2020 18%)

No fee will be payable urless the adjusted net assets
cutperform Lhe huidle rate, after taking Into account

any accumulated percentage undeiperformance

brought forveard at the beginning of the financial vear,
Performance fees earned In he year ended 31 March
2027 wesre £9659000 (2020, £2,683,000) Total fees

paid 1o the Managerin any cne year {(Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity
Shareholders” Funds Total lees payable for the year 10 33
March 2021 amount to 1.2% (2020, 0.8%) of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Panbas was appainted as Oepositary on 14 July 2014
In accordance with the AIFMD The Depositaly’s
responsibiliies include. cash monitoiing, segregalion and
safe keeping of the Compairy's linanaal instiuments; and
maonitonng the Company's compliance with 1nvestment
and leverage requirements fhe Depositary receives

for its services a fee of 2 0 basis points per anaum on
the first £150 million of the Company’s assets, 14 basis
poIfts per annum on assels above £150 milhon and
below £500 million and 075 basis points on assets above
£500 milhon.

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS FEES

Custody and administravor Services are provided by

BNP Panbas and Company Secrelariai Setvices by uink
Company Matters The fees for these sevices are chargec
directly lo the Company and are contained within

other admimistrative expenses disclosed in notes Lo the
accounts

David Warsan

3 June 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Report

iNTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneration Polcy, in accordance wilh the requirements
of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2013, An
ardinary resclution for the approval of this report will be
put to the members at the foithcoming Annual General
Meeling.

The iaw requues the Company’s Auditors, KMWG LD

to audit certain ol Wne disclosures provided. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such.
The Audilar's opinion 1s included in the ‘Independent
Auditar’s Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC metin Marcn 20271 and considerad the iesulls
and feedback from the board evaluation alengside
olher factors The MEC also considered the frequency of
remuneration increases for the Teust, feedback from the
market and investors on the level of frequency and the
current impact of the cutbreak of coronavirus (COYID-19)

Following the MEC meeling in March 20271, 1t was agreed
that the current level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remamed appropiate It was also agreed that the
Non-executive Director’s fee would remam at £35.000 per
annum with effect from 1 Apnl 2021 11 was further agreed
that the Directars holding the roie of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Semor Independent Birector would continue
to receve an addiional £5,000 Lo reflect the increase in
therr respansibilines Moreover, 1t was agreed that Lthe
Chairman's remuneraton woula remain al £70,000

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s palicy 15 that the fees payable to the
Directars showd reflect the tme spent by the Board an
the Company’s affairs and the respansibilities borne by the
Directors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of
high calibre to be recruited The policy 1s for the Chairman
of the Board, the charrman of the Audit Commiltee and
the Senios Independent Directar to be paid mgher fees

than the other Directors 0 recegnition of their more
onerous foles This policy was approved by the members
al the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’ intention 1s that this
will continue for the year ending 31 March 2023

Ihe Directors are remunerated in the lorm of fees,
payable monthly in arrears, to the Director personatly or
to a third party speohed by that Director There are no
long-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or
pensinn artangements and the fees are not speahically
telated o the Direclors’ performance, either individually or
collectively
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The Board consisls enurefy of Non-executive Directors,
who are appomted with the expectation that they will
serve for a penod of three years. Directors’ appointments
are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the
Board as a whale None of the Oirectors have a contract
af service and a Director may resign by notice 1in wting
lo the Beard al any ume, there are no nouce penads. The
terms of then appointment are detailed in a letter to them
wher: they join the Board As the Directors do not have
service contracls, the Cornpany does not have a policy on
fermination payments.

There 1s no notice penod and no payments for 1ass of
office were made during the peniod The Company’s
Articles of Assotiation currently mit the lolal aggreqgate
fees payabie 1o the Board to £300,000 per annum.

Shareholders views in respact of Directors’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company’s AGM and are laken
into account m formulating the Directars remuneration
policy Al the last AGM, over 99.6% of shareholders voled
foi the resolutisn approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Report (0 4% against). At the 2020 AGM. over 99% voled
for the resolution approving Lhe Directors’ Remuneration
Folcy (0 4% against), showing significant shareholder
support

The components of the remuneration package for
Mon-executive Directors, which are comprised i the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are set aul
below, with a descniption and approach to determinaticn.
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[ other

ixed Fees ‘ Addrirtiiionaleiees

| Expenses Fees
The aggregate limit for the Additional fees may be paid  The Ditectors are entitled Board members are not
Fees for the Board as a whole  to any Director who fulfils the to be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in role of the Chairman, who expenses properly incurred benefits, share options,
accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  leng-term incentive schemed
Association, which is divided  Board or who is appointed with shareholders or other or ather non-cash benefits or
hetween the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise taxable expenses.
they may deem appropriate.  Director. in connection with the
Annual fees are set to These fees will be set dl.scharge of their duties as
reflect the experience of at a competitive level to Directors.
each board member and reflect experience and time

time commitment required commitment.
by Board members to carry
out their duties and is
deterrined with reference to
the appointment of Directors
of similar investment
companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPDRY
For the year ended 31 Maich 2027, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chanman. £70,000 (2020, £70,000)
and all olher directars £35.000 (2020 £35,000) An additional £500015 paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Lommillee Chanman and Semor Independent Director The actual amounts paid to the Diectors duning the financial yvear
under review dre as shown below

AMOUNT GF EACH OIRECTGR'S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED}

The fees pavable n respect of each of the Directars who served dunng the financial year were as folows

31 March 2020

£
David Watson®™ 60,461 40,000
Simen Marrisont? 18,410 35,600
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn!® 21,333 70,000
Total i o 232,204 208,872

Qi fees are at a fixed -ate and thece 15 1o venabie rer-unerabion Fees are pre-rated where a change taxes nlace dunng
a financia: year There weie ro payments o tnrd pa-ties included 1n the fees referred to in the table above There are no
futher fees to discose as the Compary has no emplovees, chiel execuive or exscullve direciors

ARpO Mtec s Cherrer oo 28 Ly 2020
f apported es Ser o reepercer b Uecton or 78 Ly JUAG

refrer =5 Cherrar or 728 Ly 202U
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COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares, lor the len years ended

31 March 2021, the percentage change over each pernad

In the share price lotal return to shareholders compared

to the share prnce total return of benchmark, which the
Board considers Lo he the mosl appropriate benchmark

for investment performance measurement purposes An
explanation of the perlormance of the Company 15 given in
the Chairman’s Statement and Manager’s Report

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class
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Il 1R Property Share Price Toled Return 8§ Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Tote Returr 2ssuin ng nvestment ol £1.60C an 31 Maich 2011 ard
reinvestiment of all div cends {ext uding dealing expenses; {Source [hames
R ver Capital)

Berdhrrar< fotal Return assurming notional irvestment into the 'noex of £1.00G on
31 Maich 2011 (Source 1hames Rver Capital)

DIRECTORS INTERESTS {N SHARES (AUDITED)

Ihe interests of the Cirectors in the shares of the
Company, at the beqinning and at the end of the year, o
date of appointment, If later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2020

David watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsaver 2,360 2,360

Sarah-jane Curtis - -

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this 1eport, there have
been no subsequent changes ta the Duectars” nterests 1n
the shares of the Company

Relative Impostance of Spend on Pay

£000

Dividends paid 44,429
Directors’ fees 32

five year change comparison

Over the last five years, Directors’

out 0 the table below

Chairman 70,000
Audit Committee

Chairman 40,000
Senior Independent

Director 40,000
Director 35,000

For and on behaif of the Board

David Watson

3 June 2021

2020
£000 Change
43,794 1.4%

209 11.0%

pay has increased as set

2018
£000 Change
70,000 0%
35,000 14.3%
35,000 14.3%
30,000 16.7%

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT TOMMITTEE
Chatrman Wi Gillbanks

KEY RESPONSIBELITIES
Review the ifernal finanaal and non-tinancal contrals;

Revtew reports from key third party service providers,

Consider and recommend (o the Board for approval the
corttens of the draft Intenim and Annual Reparts;

Review accounting pohiaes and significant inancial
reporting judgements,

Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company’s
compliance with financial reporting and regulatory
reguirements,

The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the interim and final dividends, and

Corsidenng the impact of providing non-audil services
on the external Auditor’s independence and objectivity

Repiesentalives of the Manager s internal audit and
comphance depariments may allend these committee
meelngs at the Committee Chairman's request

Repesentatives of the Company's Audinor attend the
Committee meeings at which the draft Interim and
Anrual Report andg Accounts e revtewed and are given
the oppartunity to speak to the Committee members
without the presence of the ep.esentatives of the
rhanager

The Board recagnises the requitement for the Audit
Commitlee as a whole to have competence relevant

to the sector and at least ane member with recent and
relevant finencial expenienca The Chairman and Mr
Watson are Charlered Accountants with extensive and
recent experence in ihe Firanaal Services frdustry The
ather imemoers of the Commitee have 3 combination of
aroperly. inanaal, investment and busiress expenence
rrough senior positiors held throughout therr careers

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
fanng the year the Committes met hwice wit™ 3l
rmembers at eacn meet~g and censidered e ‘ollowing

Lonsige 2107 of the Risk Map, any cnarges to the
nxelihoad o irpact of nsks anc consequentia.
changes reawrad to Board tomtanng and mitigation
siocedurss Corsideration of a1y new or 2™IeIgNg

TR PROPERTY {NVESTMENT TRUST

fisks and inclusion in the Risk Map f appropriate. This
has incdluded consideration of the orgoing COVID-19
pandernic and impact across a range of nsk categones,

The Group's Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports thereon,

The ISAE/AAE and SSARTE reports ol Lherr equivalent
from BMO and 8NP Paribas,

Whether the Company shouid have its own internal
audit function,

The External Auditor's Planming Memorandum selting
oul the scope of the anaual audit and proposed key
areas of tocus;

The reports froin the Audnors concerning their augit
of the Finanaial Statements af the Company and
Consideration of Significant 1ssues in relation to the
Financial Statements,

The appropriateness of and any changes (o, the
accounting poliaies of the Company, n¢luding the
reasonableness of any judgements tequired ny such
aohaes,

The Viabihty Slatemert and considerabion of the
preparatior of the Finanaial Stalements on a Going
Concern Basis laking accourt of forwarg fooking meome
farecasts, the hquidity of the investiment ortfolio and
dent profile,

The financial and other disciosures in the hinancal
Stalements,

Thenformation presented n the Intenm and Annud
Reports Lo assess whelher taken as a whaole, ne
Reparts are fair, balanced and understandable and the
informmation presented wit enahle the shareholders to
assess the Corrpany’s position, performance, business
model and strateqy,

The pe-formance of the exterral auditors, to approve
their audit fees and consicer the assessmer: of
Indesendence,

The ieview ard subseruent prozosa W the Boerd of
e renm and final deacdends, end

The revieve2l of the Commuttee’s Terms of Reference.
BISUNNG irey "emald appropiate and compuant wits
the 2078 UK Larpoiate Governarce {ode



Report of the Audit Committee ro0 s o

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has overall responsibility for the Gioup's system
of Internal Conlrols and for reviewing their effecliveness
Key nisks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Comimittee to ensure (hat robust internal controls
and monitoring procedures in respect of these are in place
on an ongoing basts Further details can oe found on

page 78 1o 32

The Audil Commitiee received and considered repofts on
internal Controls from the key service providers. o areas
of concern were mghlighted

The Compary’s Risk Map was considered to idenhfy any
new nsks and whether any adjustments were required Lo
existing rsks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place in respect of these rnisks The impact of COVID-19,
the response of financial markets, the ongomg impact

an economies around the world and operational changes
made by our service providers In response Lo government
quidelines were considered and the nsk map aduusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and controls 1n place within the
BMO Gioup and other sigmificant service providers, the
Bodrd has concurred that there 1s no current need lor the
Company to have a dedicated internal audit function

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TQ THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committes has considered this report and financial
statements and the Vigbilily Stalement on pages 33

and 34 The Committes considered the Auditor’s
assessiment of nsk of matenial misstatement and reviewed
the mlemal contiols in place in respect of the key areas
identified and the process by which the Board manitors
each ol Lthe procedures lo give the Committee comiort

on these nsks o an ongoing basis These nisks are alsa
highlighted n the Company's Risk Map

carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Group's mvestmeanls aie
priced for the daily NAV Dy BNP Panbas The quoted
assets are priced by the Administrator’s Global Pricing
Platform which uses independent external pricing
sources The control process surrounding this s set
oul 1 the BNP Panbas AAF 01/06 Internal Controls
Report and testing by the reporling accountan! for the
penad repoited 10 31 December 2020 did not reveal
any sigmificant exceplions The quarterly control repont
{0 the Board from BNP Panbas covenng the period up

fo 31 March 2021 had no significant 1ssues to report
In addition the Manager eslimates the NAV using
an alternative pnang source 0n 3 datly basis as an
Independent check.

The auditors agreed 100% of the histed investments
of the portfoho o externally quoted pnces and
independently recerved third party confirmations from
mvestiment custodians and found the carrying value of
listed investments [o be acceplahle

valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Coampany) - The physical property
portfolio 1s valued every six months by professional
independent valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfohio on the basis of
Fair Value in accordance with the RICS valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA
1valuations for Inclusien in Financial Statements,
which apply the delinition of Fair value adopted by
the international financial Reperting Standards IFRS 73
defines Farr Value as-

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
liability settled. o an equity instrument granted could
be exchanged, between knowledgeable, wiliing parties
inan arm'’s tengih tansaction”

In undertaking thew valuation of each propetty, Knight
Fraitk make their assessment on the basis of a coflation
and analysis of appropriate comparable investinents,
rental and sale transactions, together with evidence

of demand within the victmity of each property. This
information is then apphed to the properties, taking
into account size, location, terms, covenant and othe
matenal factors.

The board has reviewed reporls from the Manager and
the external valuer and determined the valuation to be
reasonable.

The Auditors have set out ther detailed festing and
pracedures in respect of the Direct property vafuation
and concluded that they found the Company's valuation
of investment properties to be accepiable

There has been nothing brought 1o the Commitiee’s
attentior 10 respect of the finanaal statements for the year
ended 31 tarch 2021, which was malenal or significant or
that the Commitiee fert should be brought to shaieholders’
altention

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

g B




AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company’s exlernal auditor, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company's auditors al the 2016 AGAM
The Commitlee expects o repeal a lender process no
later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the falfawing
31 March year end, in line wilh the latest Corporate
GOVErnance provisions

Dunng the year, KPMG presented their Audit Plan for

the vear end al the intenm Committee meeting and the
Comrmittee considered the audil process and fee proposal.
The Committee also reviewed KPMGTS independence
policies and protedures including quality assurance
pracedures it was considerad that these policies are fit
for purpose and the Directors are satisfied hat KPMG are
independent

Total fees payable to the Auditor in respect of the audit for
the year to 31 March 2027 were £80,000 (2020 £80,000),
which were approved by the Audit Commitlee,

the Commitlee has approved and implemenled a pohicy
on the engagement of the Auditor 1o supply non-audit
SeIvICes, taking o account the recommendations of
the ACcounting Practices Board with a view 1o ensuning
that the external Auditor does nol provide non-audit
services that kave the potental Lo impan of appear to
impan the independence of ther audit role 10 addition,
the Committee reviewed the actions put in place by the
Auditor to ensuie there was a clear separalion betweer
audit and acwisory services The Committee does ot
beheve there o be any impediment 1o the Auditor’s
ebjectivily and independence

The fees far non-audit services for the year (0 31 March
202V were nii (7020 ni)

Full detans of the Aucitar’s fees are provided Ir note 6 to
the accounts on page 79

The Board noted that M Ke by, the current partner vwas
appointed for the 2017 vear-ead audst and wall copinuge

as partner urly untl the conc'usion of the 2027 year-erd
audit Mr wetcrant will replace Wir Xelhy as audit pattner
07 e 2022 year-enc audit & Merchant has considerable

expenience i the Finano2l Services seclor and the audr of

lovestment Trust Companies

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Following each audit, the Committee reviews the audit
pracess and considers its effectiveness and the qualily
of the services provided to (he Company Within this
pracess, the Committee takes into consideration theis
own assessment, the self-evaluation of the auduar and
the Audit Quality Review Report produced by the FRCin
order to monitor the progress of the Auditol’s performance
comparabie with its peer and the targets set by the fRC.
The review following the completion of the 2020 Audit
concluded that the Commillee was satistied with the
Auditor’s effectiveness and performance

The Cornmillee fell that KPMG had run an elfective

and efficent audit process with appropnate challenge
subseguently, 3 resofution Lo re-appoint XPMG LLP as
the Compdany's Auditor will be put Lo shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM

T'm Gidhanks

3 June 201



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statements

The direclors are responsible for prepanng the Annual
Report, the Straleqic Report, the Directors Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
requlations

Company law requiies the direclors to prepare Group
ang Parent Company hinancaal statements for each
financial year Under that law they are required 1o
prepare the Group hnancal stalements In accoidance
with international dccounting standards in confermily
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
appiicable law and have elected Lo prepare the Parent
Company hinanaal statements on the same basis. In
addition the Group financial statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules to
he prepared in accerdance with international tinanaial
Reporuing Standards adopted pursuant Lo Regulation (EC)
Na 160672002 as st apphes in the Fuiopean Union.

Under company iaw the directors must nol approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied thal they
give a true and fair view of the state of alfairs of the
Group and Parenl Cornpany and of the Grous’s profit or
loss for that penod In preparing each of the Group and
Barent Company financial statements, the diectons are
required 1o

select suitable accounting polices and then apoly them
cansistently;

make Judgements and estimates that are reasonahle,
relevant and reliable,

slate whether Lhey have been prepared in accordance
with inlemmalional accounting standards in confonmity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ard,
as regards the gioup finanaal statements, International
Financial Reporling Standards adopted pursuant o
Regulation (FC) Ng 1606/2002 as 1t applies in the
European Union,

assess the Graup and Parenl Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as apphcable,
matters related 1o going concern, and

use the qoing concern basis af accounting Jnless they
anthber 1niend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company o to Cease operations. or have no realistic
alternabive but 1o do so

The directors are resgonsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficier! to show and expiain
lhe Parent Company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any ume the financeal position

of the Paient Company and enable them to ensure thal

its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are responsibte for such intemnal control as
they determine 15 necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from matenal
mysstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of
the Group and Lo prevent and detect fraud and other
srregulanties

Under applicable law and iegulations, he direclors are
also responsible far prepaning a Strateqic Report, Directers’
Reporl, Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporale
Governance Statement that complies with that law and
those requilations

The direclors are responsible for the mamntenance and
integnity of the corporate and finanaal information
included on the Companry's website Legistation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial stalements may differ fram legislation in other
Jurisdrctions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Fach af the directors confirms that to the best of ther
knowledqe

the financial statements, prepared in accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets habilines. finanaial position
and profit o joss of the Group and Parent Compeny and
the undertakings included n the consohidation laken as
a whole, and

the strateqic repart includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
nosition of the issuer and the undertakings included

in the consohidation taken as a whole, together with g
descniplion of the pnnaipal risks and uncertanties that
they face

The Directors consider the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and pravides the mformation necessary (or shareholders
to assess the group's postion and performance. business
model and strateqgy

By order of the Board

David Watson

3une 2027
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KPMG

independent auditor’s roport

to the members of TR Property tnvestmaent Trust ple

1. QUR OPINION 1S UNMODIFED Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Additing (UK) (1SAs (UXY'} and apphcable
law Our respansibiities are desciibed below We believe
thal the audit evidence we have obtained s a sufficent
and approprate basis for aur opimon Our audit opINIon 15
consistent with our report to the audil commitiee

We nave audited the financial statements of TR Property
ivestment Trust Pic {"the Company ™) for the year ended
31 March 2021 which compnise the Group Stalement of
Comprehensive Income, Gioup and Company Stalements
of Changes in Equity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related
notes, including the accaunting pohces i note 1

Y QUIF DRAION:

— The hinanaal statements give 4 true and fai view of ?:;ﬁggluga:tements £14.9m {2020:£12.5m)
L i ‘
the state of the Company's afiairs as al 31 March 2021 as 3 whole 1% {2020: 1%) of Tetal Assets
ard of the Group's return for the year ther ended, Key audit matters s 2020
— The Group finanaal statements have been praperty Recurring risks valuation of direct
’ property investments iy

prepared 10 accordance with Uk-adopted imernational Carrying amount of listed
accounting standards. investrments "
we were first appointed as auditar by the Directars on

2 hovember 2016 The penod of lotar uninterrupied
engagerent is fol tne S linancal years ended 31 March
2021 We have fulilled aur ethical responsibiliies

under, and we remain independent of the Corpany n

— The Parent Company fnancial statemenis have been
property prepared in accordance with Uadopled
interTational accounting standards and as applied 10
accordance with the prowisiens of the Comparies At

2006, and accordarce with, UK ethical requirements including the

— The financial slatements have been prepared 11 FRC Fthical Standaid as apphed to histed pubhic interest
accordance with the requirements of the Companes entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that stancard
ACt 2906 and, as reqards the Group finanaal were provided,
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Reguiation Lo the extent
applicable

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS CF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key audic matters are those matlers that, 1n our professional judgement, were of most significance i the audit o e
finarcral staterents and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal missiaiement (whather or not due 10
fragd)igentified by us, iIncludieg thase which rad the greatest effect on. the averalr audi® sirategy, the allocation of
sesources i the audit, and drecung the efforts of the engagement ieam We summanse helow the key augit matters
{unchanged from 2020). 0 decreasing order of avdit significance, 17 arving at ouf audil ooirion ahove, together wiip
our key audit procedures 1o address thase maiters and, as required for public interest enuities, aur 1esulis froim 1hose
procedures These matters were addrassec, and our resu’s are hased 0n procedores undertaien, w the contexi afl. and
salely far the purpase of, our audit o the finanaa! stater-erts as a whale. and 0 forming our epinior trerean, ard
consenuerily areinadental to that opmor, and we do ro: provide a séoarate opinion on hese maiters

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



independent auditor’s report 15 0

Valuation of direct
property investments

{Group and Parent
Company)

(£33 1 millior,
2020, £94.5 mithon)

Refer to pages 58 10 60
(Audit Commitiee Report),
page 74 and 75 (accounting
policy), and note 10 on
pages 82 to 85 (inancial
disclosures)

Subjective valuation:

5690 (2020 75%0) of the Group's
tolai assets (by vatue) are held in
inyvestment properties

The fair value of each property
requires significant estrmation,
in particular with regand to

the key estimated rentsl

value and yield assumptions
The key assumptions will be
impacted by a number of factors
inciuding qualty and condition
of the bullding and tenant
covenant strength

The effect of these matters

15 thal, as part of our nsk
assessment, we delermined
that the valuation of investment
properties has a high degree of
EsUmHton uncertamty, with a
polential range of reasonabie
oulcomes greater than our
matenalty for the finandal
statements as 4 whole The
ftnarcial staterments (note 103
disclnse the sensity estimated
by the Group

we performed the detalled lests below rathes than
seeking to rely on controls, because Lthe natuie

of the balance 15 such that we would expect 1o
obtain audit evidence pnmarly through the detailed
procedures descrnbed

Our procedures mcluded

— Assessing valuer’s credentials: Lsing our own

property valuation specialist. we evaluated the
competence, expenence and independence ol the
external valuer,

Tests of Detail: We compared the information
provided by the Group to its external property
valuer for a samypile of properties. such as rental
incame and lenancy data to supporting documents
including lease agreements,

Methodology choice: e held discussions wath
the Group's external property valuea (o determing
the valuation methodolog, vsed Wencluded our
own prapety valuation speashst (0 assist us 1n
citically assessing the results of the valuers repor
by checking that the valuations were in accordance
with the RICS Yaluation Professional Standards

the Red Book and iFRS and that the methodology,
adopted was appropnate by reference 1o
acceptable valnation prachce,

Benchmarking assumptions: '#ith the
assistance of our own property valuation specalist,
wie held discussions wath the Goup's exlernal
praperty valuer to understand rovermnents in
property values For a sample of propesties, we
assessed the key assumptions used by the valuer
upan which the valuations are based. including
thase relating to estimated rental value and vield.
by making 4 companson to our own understanding
of the market and to mdustry henchmarks;

Assessing transparency: We also ronsidered the
adequacy of the Group’s distosures aboul the degree
of estimation and sensitivity to key dssumption made
when valuing the direct praperty investments

Our results:

we found the valuation ol ivestment properties to
be acceptable (2020 acceplabie}
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Carrying amount of listed
investments

{Group and Parent)

{(£1,317.4 muthon,
202¢. £1,060 1 mitlion}

Refer lo pages 58 1o 60
(Audit Committee Repart],
page 75 {accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 82
to 35 (hnancial disclosures)

Low risk, high value:

The Group’s portfolo of quoted
level 1 investments makes up
B8 20 (2020- 33 420} of the
Group's total assets (by value)
and s one of the key divers of
resulls We do nat consider these
investments to be al a ugh nsk
of significant misstatement, or
to be subject 1o a sigmhicant
level of judgement becouse
they comprise lquid, quoted
investments. However, due (o
thew matenality in the context
of the financial statements as a
whole. they are considered o
be one of the areas which had
the gieatest effect on owr overall
audit strateqy and allocation

af resources in planning and
completing our qudit

We performed the detailed ests below rather than

seeking to rely on controls, because the nature of

the balance 1s such that detaled testing 1s determined
to be the most effective manner of oblaining

audit evidence.

Our procedures included

- Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation af 100%sof
level 1listed investments in the portfolic Lo
externally quoted prices, and

- Enquiry of custodians: Agreaing 1004% of level
Uhisted investment holdings i the portfolio to
independently recened third party confirmalions
from investment custodians

Our results

- we found the carrying amaunt of listed
ivestments Lo be acceptalite {2020 acceplabie)

3. QUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
CVERVIEW OF THE STOPE OF DUR AUDYHT

Matenalily for the finanaal statements as a whole was
set al £149m (2020 £12 5m), determined with reference
lo 2 benchmark of 1ola: assels, of which ot represents
10% {2020 1 04%;)

fateriahty for the Parent Company financiat statements as
A whole was al £147m (2020 12 0m) gelermined as (9%
of the 1otal assets of the parent company (2020 (0 9%),

Inhine wath our audit methodology, our proceduwes on

indmvicduat account belances and disclnsures were performed

to a lower threshold, performance matenality, so as o reduce

to an accaptable level the nsk that ndividually inmatenal
misstaternents in ndrduat sccount balances add up to a matenal
arnount across the finanaal staternents as a whale Perlormance
natenality was set at 75% (2019 75%;) of matenality for the
financial steterments as & whale, which equates w £11m {2020
£2.4rmy for the Group and £105m {2020 £50m) far the Parent
Compeny We anpled ths percentage In our determination of
serformance matenanty hecause we did notidentty any ‘aciors
indicaing an elevated level of nsk

I additior. we appied matenalty of £2 0m (2023
£3.2my and perlormance matenality of £7 5 (2020
£2.4m) 1o mvestment ingome, othear pperating ncome,
qrass rental incame, service charge Income and net
returns on coniract far differences for which we helieve
Tisstatements o iessel amourts than maienality for
the linanciai statements as a whoie coula reasonanly

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

be expecled to influence the Coinpany’s members’
assessmens of the finanaial performance ol the Company

We agreed Lo report 10 the Audit Commitlee any corrected of
uncorrected identified rmisstaternents exceeding £0 75m
(2020 £0 63m) 10 eddition to other identified misstatements
that warranted reparting on duahiative grounds

Our audit of the Company was undertaken 10 tne
matenatity level specified above ard was perlormed by a
single audil team

The audit tearn perlormed the audit of the Group as i it was

a single aggreqated set of finanaal miormation This approacn
15 unchanged from the priot year The audit of the Group was
performed using the Graup matenality level set out ahove

Total Assets
£1,491m (2020. £1,256m]

Group Materiality
£14.9m {2020 £12 5m)

£14.9m

Whole firarcial
staterments matenality
(2020° £12.5m)

£14.1m

Parent Compary
Matenality
12020: £12 Qi

£0.75m Misstatements
reported to tre audit
committee (2020
£063m)

Tora Assat



Independent auditor’s report (o0 ey

4. GOING CONCERN

The Duectors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they de not intend to quidate
the Group ar Company or to (ease 1ts operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group or Company's
financial posttion means that this is realistic. They have
also concluded thal there are no matenal uncertanties
that could have cast significant doubt over its ability Lo
conkinue as a going concern for al least a year from the
dale of appioval ol the [ihanaal staternents ('the gaing
concern penod”).

we used our knowfedge of the Group, 1ts industry, and the
general economic environment to idenuly the inherent
risks to its business model and analysed how those nisks
might affect the Group or Company's financial rescurces

of abilily to confinue operations over the going concer
penad The risks that we considered most likely Lo
adversely affect the Group or Comparny's available financial
resources and 1ts ability to operate over this penod were

— Theimpact of a sigmilicant reduction in the valuation
of investments and the implications for the Group o
Company's debl covenants,

- The hquidity of the investment portfolio and s ability
to meet the liabilities of the Group as and wher Lhey
falt due, and

— The operatioral resilience of key service organisations

We cansidered whether these iisks could plausibly affect
the hquidity 1n the going concain pencd by assessing the
degree of downside assumption that, individualty and
collectively, could result in a hguidity 1ssue. taking into
account the Group or Company’s curient and projected
cash and hguid mvestment position {and the results of
their reverse stress testing)

we considered whether the going concern disclosure 1n
note 110 the finanaal stalements gves a full and accurate
description of the Directors” assessment of quing concers,
mcluding the identified risks and related sensitivities

Our conclusions based on this work

— we consider that the Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
finanaial statements 1s approprate,

We have notl identified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment thal there 1s not, a matenal uncertainty
related to evenls or conditions that, ndrvidually o
coilectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
the yoing concern period,

— we have nothing mdtenal to add or draw attention to
in relation to the Directors” stalement in nole 1to the
financial stalements on the use of the going concern
basis ol accounting with no matenal uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group or Company's
use of that basis for the going cancern perod, and
we found the going concern disclosiie i nnte 110 he
acceplable; and

B
z

— The related statement under the Listing Rules set aut
on pages 41 and 42 15 matenally consistent with the
financal statements and our audit knowledge

Howeves, as we cannot predict all fulure events or
conditions and as subsequent events may 1esull In
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements hat
were reasonable at the ume they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group or
Cornpany will continue in operalion

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

Identifying and responding o nsks of matenal
mmisstatement due 1o fraud

To idenufy nisks of matenal misstatement due to fraud
{“fraud nsks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive o pressure to commit fraud
of provide an opportunity to commut fraud Our nsk
assessinent procedures included

— Enquinng of Diectors as to the Group's high-level
policies and procedures Lo prevenl and detect fraud. as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud,

— Assessing the segregation of dulies in place between
the Directors, the Administiator and the Group's
Investrent Marager, and

— Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes

As requirad by audiling standards, we perfarm procedures
to address the nsk of management avernde of controls,
in particular Lo the risk thal management may be 1n

a position 1o make inappropriate gccounting entrnies

We evaluated the design and implementation of the
controls gver journal entnes and other adjustments and
made inquines of the Administrator about nappropiate
or unusial actnaty relating Lo the processirg of journal
entries and other adjustments We substantively tested all
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matenal post-dosing entries and. based on the resuits of
oui risk assessment procedures and understanding of the
process, inciuding the segregation of dulies belween the
Directors and tne Administrator, ne further high-nsk journal
enties or other adjustments were 1dentified.

on this audit we have rebulted the fraud nsk iefaled

Lo revenue recognition because the revenue 1s Non-
Judaemental and strarghtforward, with imiled opportunity
for manipulalion We did notidentify any significant
unusual transactions or additional fraud risks

identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement dus to non-compliance with laws and
requlations

we identified areas of laws and regulations thal could
reasonably be expected o have a matenal effecl on the finangial
staternents from our general commeraal and sector expenence
and through discussion with the Directors, the Investment
tanager and the Administrator {as required by auditing
standards and discussed with the Directors the palicres and
procedures regaiding comphiance with laws and requlations.

The potential effect of these taws and requlations on the
hnancial statements vanes considerably

Firsthy, the Company 15 subject to laws and requlations

thot directly affect the finaraial statements including
fimancial reporting feqslation (including 1elated companies
legislationy, distnbutanle profits tegistation, and its
gquahfication as an 17vestment Trust under UK taxation
iequsiation, any breach of which could lead o the Group
losing vanaous deductions and exemplions from UK
corpolation tax, and we assessec the extent of compliarce
witl these laws 2nd regulabions as pai of our proredures
on the related financial statement iterns

Secondly, the Group 1s subject to many other laws and
requlations where the consequences of nen-complhiance
could have a matenal effect on amounts or disclosures

N the iinanaal siatements, for instance through the
iposition of fines or hhigation We identified the fo ovsirg
areas as those most likely to have such an ef’ect maorey
1aundenng, date pratection. brbery and coruotion
legis'atiair and ceriain aspacts of company legislation
recagnizing the finaraal natue of the Group's activities
andits legal form Auditing standards amit the reaquired
audit procedures to 1dertify non-comphance with these
lavss and requiaiions to enquiry of the Direclors and the
Administrator ard 1nspection of requlaiory and leqal
correspondence, 1f any Taesreforef a breach of coesaliongl
requlalions s not disciosac te us of eviden: fram relevant
corressoadance, an aadit wall not detect hat breacn
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
bieaches of law or requlation

Owing to the inherent irmitations of anr audil. there 15 an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detecled some
ratenal misstatements in the finanual stalements., even
lhough we have properly planned and performed our
audil In accordance with auditing standards Far example,
the further remaved non-comphance with faws and
regulations ts from the events and transactions reflected
i the financial statements, the less hkely the inherently
limited procedures required by audiling standards would
identify it

in addition, as witn any audit, there rernained a higher nsk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional ormissions, misiepresentations, ar the
overnde of intemnal controls Our audil procedures are
designed to detect matenal misstalemnent We are not
responsible for prevesing non-comphance of fraud and
carno! be expected to detect non-compliance with ali
lvws and requlations

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

[he Dueclors are responsiple for the other information
presented in the Annual Reporl logether with the financial
staterrentls Ou opinion an tne financal statements does
not cover the other infermdation and, according'y, we da
not express an audit apinion of, except as exphatly stated
beiow, any form of assurence conctusian thereon

Our responsibiaty 15 1o read the other information aad,

10 doing so, consider whethel, dased on ouf financial
statements audit work, the information theren 1s
matedqally musstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledae Based solely on that
work we have notidenufied matenal misstatements in the
ather information

Strateqie ragort and Directors report
Based salady on our work 01 toe other information

we have nol identifiec matenal misstalemrenis in the
Surateqic ceport ard the Directors” report,

1N our spinior the irfarmation gryen 1 thasa 1enons
for e finanaial year 1s consistent sath the fmencia
staterenis, and

— 1N aur apiron those reparts have been prepered in
accorcance wiin the Comoanies Act 2006



Independent auditar’s report b oo

Directoss” remuneration reporst

In our epinion the parl of the Birectors  Remuneration
Report to be audited has been property prepared (n
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viabidity

We are required 1o perform procedures to identify wnetner
there 15 a matenal inconsisiency between the Directors’
disclosures i respect of emerging and pringpal risks and
Lhe vighniity statement, and the financial statements and
our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have nothing matenal to
add or draw attention toin relation to:

— the Directars” confirmation wathin the viability Staterment
on pages 33 and 34 that they have camed out a robust
assessment of the emerging and prnaipal nsks facng the
Graup, including those that would threaten its business
model, fulure performance, solvency and liquidity;

the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
descnbing these nisks and how emerqing rsks are
identified, and explaining how they are being managed
and mitigated, and

- the Directors” explanation m the viabilty Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over what period they have done so and why they
considered that period to be appropnate, and then
statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in aperation and meet its liabilities as they fak due
over the perniod af their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing atlention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

We are also required Lo review the Viability Statement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules Based an
the above pracedures, we have concluded that the above
disclosures are materally consistent wiih the financiai
staternents and our audit xnowledge.

Our work 1s hmited to assessing these matlers in the
context of only the knowledge acquired duning o
firancial statements audit s we cannot predict all future
events or conditions and as subsequent events may

resull in oulcomes that are 1nconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable at the Ume they were made, the
absence of anything to report on these statements 1s not a
quarantes as to the Company's longer-term viabiity.

Corparate governance disciosures

Wwe are required to perform procedures (o 1dentify whether
there 15 a matenal nconsistency between the Direclors’
corporate governance disclosures and the financal
slaternents and our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have concluded thal each
of the following is matenally consistent with the financial
statements and our audit knowledge;

— the Direclors’ statement that they consider that the
annual report and financial stalements taken as a
whole 1s fanr, balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s posilion and performance, business
maodel and strategy,

- the secton of the annual report describing the work of
the Audil Commuittee, including the significant 1ssues
that the audit committee censidered in relation to
the hinanaial statements, and how these issues were
addressed, and

— the section of the annual report thal descnbes
the review of the effectiveness ol the Group’s nisk
management and internal contral systems.

We are required to review the part of Coiporate
Governance Statement relating to the Group’s complance
with the provisions of e UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Lising Rules for our review We have
aothing to repoft 1n this respect

7. WTE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Companies Acl 2006, we are required 1o repor!
lo you if, In our opinion.

— adequale accounting records nave not been kepl, of
returns adequale for our audit have not been receved
from branches nol wisited by us, or

— the financial statements and the part of the Birectors
Remureration Report to be audited aie not 1n
agreement with the accounting records and returns, o

— certain disciosures of Directors’ remuneration spediiiec
by law are nol made; oi

— we have nol recerved all the information and
explanations we require for aur audit

Wwe have nothing to reporl in these respecls.
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on
page 61, the Duectors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements including being satished that
they qive a true and fair view, such interal contiol as
they determine 15 necessary o enable the preparation

of financial statements that are fiee from matenal
misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, assessing
the Company’s ability Lo continue as a qoing concern,
disclosing, as apphcable, matters related o going concem,
and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess
they either intend to hquidate the Campany or Lo cease
cperalions, or have no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Jint abjectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a wnoie are free from
material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud of errol, and
Lo (s5ue our opInien 1N an auditor's 1eport Reasonable
assurance 15 a high tevel of assurance, but coes not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15AS
(UK} will always detect a matenal misstatement when it
2xisls Misstatements car anse from fraue or error and are
considered matenal ¥, indmidually orin aggregate, they
could seasanably be expected to miluence the ecoromic
decisions of users taken on the sasis of the inanaal
staterments

A fuller description of our responsialities 1s proviaed an

the FRCS wabsiie at
wiww frc arg uk /auditorsiesponsibiliies
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2. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND 10O
WHOM WE QWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report 1s made solely to the Group’s members, as

a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 ol the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company Our audit waork has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Group's members those malters we
are required 1o state (o themin an auditer’s ieport and for
ro other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we Jo not accept or assume respansibility to anyone other
than the Group and the Group’s members, as 4 body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have
formed

Rithard Kaily (Senior Statutory Auditor)

ior and oo behalf of KPMG LR Statutory Auditas
Chartered Accountants

Saltire Court

15 Canada Square

Lordon

£14 561

3 June 2071



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes

Revenue
Return
£000

income

investment income 2 36,557
Other operating income 4 67
Gross rental income 3 3,185
service charge incuine 3 1,051
Gains/(losses) on investments held at

fair value 10 -
Net rovement on foreign exchange;

investments and loan notes -
Net movement on foreign exchange;

cash and cash equivalents -
Net returns on contracts for difference 10 3,320
Net retura on total return swap 0 -
Total tncome 44,180
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 {1,556)
Direct property expenses, rent payable

and service charge costs (1,321)
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,231)
Total operating expenses (4,108)
Operating profit/{loss) 40,072
Finance costs 7 (a16)
I—'t_ofitl(lo§s)~f_rom operations before B

tax 39,656
Taxation 8 (767)
Total comprehensive income 38,889
£amings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9 12.25p

T E
Return
£000

196,582
(3144)

(1,479)
17,978
_(138)

209,754

(14,328)

(604)
(14,932)

194,822
{1,969)

192,853
2,667
195,520

. 6161p

Year ended 31 March 2021

Year ended 31 March 2020

Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return

£000 £'000 £000 £000
36,557 47112 - 47112
67 35 - 35
3,185 3,415 - 3415
1,051 1,786 - 1,786
196,582 - (153,614) (153,614)
(3,144) - 11,296 11,296
{1,474) - 302 302
21,298 5,724 (41,276) (35,552)
- (188) - (3,808) (3,808)
253,934 58,072 (187,100) {129,028)
(15,884) {1,570) {7392) (8,962)
{1321) (1,984) - {1,984)
(1,__835_)_ (1,398) (615) o {2,013)
{19,040) {4,952} (8,007) (12,959)
234,894 53,120 (195,107) (141,987)
(2,385) (814) (2,443) (3.257)
232,509 52,306 {197,550) (145,244)
_1%00 (5.912) 3,149 (2.763)
234,409 46,394 (194,401)  (148,007)
73.86p 14.62p {61.26)p (46.64)p

The Tota! column of this statement represents the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accordance with IFRS. The
Revenue Return and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Association of

Investment Companies. All itemns in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statenent therefore “Total comprehensive

income” is also the profit for the year.

Alt income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these tinancial Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
far the year ended 3t March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£°000 £000 £7000 £°000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,91 969,982 3,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 7 - - - (44,429) {44,429)
At 31 march 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - {44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the yeat ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 4397 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Dividends paid 17 - - - {43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,91 969,982 1,136,453
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Eatnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43,162 43,97 1,161,783 1,328,254
Tetal comprehensive income - - - (148,007) {148,007)
Dividends paid 7 - - - (43,794) {43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,358 43,162 43,971 965,982 1,136,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financiat Statements.
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Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £000

Non-current assets

investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295

investments ia subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

Deferred taxation asset 12 686 686 - -

o 1,401,202 1,484,514 1,155,295 1,205,724

Current assels

Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59,972

Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29112 40129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100,223 100,099 -

Current liabilities 13 (107,280) (150,120) E9m) (10,076) =3

Net current (fiabilities)/assets ©(z176)  (60,488) 40,512 ©917) 53

Total assets less current liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807 @

Non-current liabilities 13 (57,593) (57.593) (59,354) (59.354)

Net assets ’ 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,97 43,971 43,971
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982
Equity shareholders' funds 11,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Net Asset Value per:

Crdinary share 19 417.97p 417.97p 358.11p 358 Mp

These financial stalements were approved by the directors of TR Property investment Trust ple (Company No:84492) and authorised for
issue on 3 June 2021,

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 31 Maech 2021

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000
Reconciliation of profit/{loss) from operations before
fax fo net cash outflow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 {145,244) (145,244}
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value threugh profit or loss (214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,711
et movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes {179) (179) 859 859
{(increase)/decrease in accrued income {102) {(102) 584 584
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,81 316,841
Purchases of investments {(370,49¢6) (370,496) {383,674) (383,674)
Decrease/(increase) in sales settlement debtor 4,753 4,753 (a7 (.07}
{Becrease)/fincrease in purchase settlement creditor (5,781) {5,781) 4,501 4,501
{Increase)/decrease in other debtors {1,436) {11,436} 4,447 4,447
Increase/(decrease) in other creditoss 2,451 (4,007) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends included in investment income and net
returns on contracts for ditference (8,489) B (8,489) (3,818) (3.818)
Net cash outfiow from operating activities before o -
interest and taxation (15,590) (15,590) (2,919) (2,919)
Interest paid {2,607) {2,607) (3,421) (3,427)
Taxation paid - (915) ) (1,915) (2,321) (2,321)
Net cash outflow from operating activities {20,112) (20,112) (8,661) {(8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) (44,429) (43,794) (43,794}
Drawdown of loans 55,000 55000 40000 40,000
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 10,571 1057% G794 (3194
Decrease in cash - (9,541) (9,541) (12,455) {12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents {1,474) i (14714} 30z 302
tash and cash equivalents at end of year ) 29,1;1 29,112 40,129 40,27
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received 45 45 37 37

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Unicen and in confermity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financiat statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), “Financial Statements of Investment Trust Cornpanies and venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it is consistent with (FRS.

In assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its lizbilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investrnent
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential effects
of the current and likely ongeing economic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operaticnal
resilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues ta monitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

In tight of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current liability position of the Group and Parent Company (which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid level 1
investments), the Directars are satisfied that the Company and Group have adequate financial resaurces to continue in operation

for at least the next 12 months following the signing of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentaticnal currency.
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic enviranment in which the Group operates.
Values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where atherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the tinancial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calcutation of estimates, These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an ongaing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actuat results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the vaiuation of investment
propesties. See section {f) of this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial staterments of the Company and sts subsidiaries to 31 March 2021, All the
subsidiaries of the Company have been ¢ansclidated in these financial statements.

In accordance with tFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
+ It obtains funds from investors and provides those investors with investment management services;

- It commits to its investors that its business purpese is to invest solely for returns from capitat appreciation and investment
inceme; and

It measures and evaluates performance of substantially ali of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidraries of the Company was established for the sote puepose of operating or supporting the investrment operations of
the Company {including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that ir the case of controlled
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiasies are cansclidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue
1o be consalidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial staternents are based on tonsistent accounting palicies. Al intra-group balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previaus years.

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where ne ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable cn of before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital retums of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed
returns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on each such security.
Interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the erd of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless ary shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
which case the proportionate commissien received is deducted from the cost of the investment.

Recogniticn of property rental income is set aut in section (1) of this note.

Recognition of incorne from contracts of difference is set out in section {g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

<) Expenses
All expenses and finance costs are accounted for or an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into
revenue and capital items is given in note 16. In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as follows:

- £xpenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposal of an investment;

«  Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated, this includes irecoverable VAT incurred on costs refating to the extension of residential
leases as premiums received far extending or terminating ieases are recognised in the capital account;

+  One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capital return to reflect the
Board's expectations of lang term investment returns. All performance fees are charged to capital retuin;

» The fund adminisiration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in rote 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital.

d) Finance costs
The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capitat return.

e) Taxation
Current tax assets and lizbifities are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The tax effect of ditferent items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group’s effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
tempaorary differences between the treatmenl of certain itemns for taxation and accounting purpases.

in accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the “marginal basis”
Under this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return column of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected 1o be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liabifity method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be availzble against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company is an investment trust under 51158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax on capital
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax.

f) Investment property
investment property is measured initially at cost includirg transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, prafessional
fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cast of replacing part of an existing investrnent property at the time that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
uncanditicnal contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent 1o initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains of losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the Graup Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Investment properly is derecognised when it has been disposed of of permanently withdrawn frem use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its dispasal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the year of dispesal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
canying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice 3 year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Campeehensive Income. The Group engaged Knight frank LLP as independent
valuation spedialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021,
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has beers prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation - Global
Standards (The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a wilfing
seller in an arm'’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeabiy, prudently and
without compulsion”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants profiles, future revenue streams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2021, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only relied solely on historical transactional comparables. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 1G (g).

Rental income
Rental incorme receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rentaf income which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees to enter into Jease agreements ar other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Prerniums received to terminate or extend leases
are recegnised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Incame arfising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the retevant
market, the investments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group's investrnents are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or foss but are also
described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value.

All investrnents are designated upon initial recognition as teld at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair vaiue, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stack Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market including all the FTSE All -Share and the most liquid AlM constituents. Unquoted investrments of investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the genera! economic climate.

in its financial statements the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
assel value. The subsidiaries have historically been holding vehicles for direct property investment or financing vehicles. No
assels are currently held through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income. On dispasal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comnprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and fosses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are freated as capital.
Cantracts for Difference ("CFDs”) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underiying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract (e.g. notional dividends, financing costs, interest returns and capitat
changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP. Notional dividend income or expenses arising on lang or short positions
are appertioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions s apportioned between revenue
and capital in accordance with the Board’s long term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% 1o capitai reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price movements of securities in relation
to CFD exposures are alfocated wholly to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
All foans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideratian received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amartised cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount of premium on settlement. The costs of aranging eny interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency translation
Transactions invalving fareign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency ronetary assets and liabilities are transiated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) tash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amartised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
(nterim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and finat dividends are recognised when approved by
shareholders.

) Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous consolidated financial stalements except as noted below.

IFRS 3 amendments. The amendments pravided more guidance on the definition of a business to assist in determining
whether a transaction fesults in an assel of 3 business acquisition. The amendments have aot had an impact on the Group's
financial statements.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7. The amendments provided temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty befare the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a material impact on the Group's
financiat statements.

amendments to I1AS 1 and |AS 8 - Definition of Material. The International Accounting Standards Board 1efined its definition of
“material” and issued practical quidance on applying the cancept of materiality. The amendments have not had a material impact
on the Group's financial statements.

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard however its purpose is to outline
a set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accaunting policies

and assistance to others in understanding and inteepreting the standards. The Framewark has not had a materia! impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued befare the reporting date that become effective afier 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Gioup has not early adopted any new intesnational Financial Reporting
Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but nat yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group’s financial statements are listed below:

1AS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current {effective date amended to 1 January 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-cugrent. The amendments are not expecied 1o
have a material impact on the Group’s financiai statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments require an entity to disclose
its matenal accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financiat statements.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023) The amendments define accounting estimates
as “monetary amounts in Financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The amendments also dlarify the
interaction between an accounting poiicy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are ot expected 1o have a materiat
impact on the Group’s financiat statements.

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments intend fo clarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendments are not expected ta have a material impact on the Group’ financial statements,
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

IAS 37 Amendments - Cnerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling contract (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarify that for
the purpose of assessing whether a contract is enerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract incfudes both the incremental costs
of fuliilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfitling contracts. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 39, IFRS 4, 7. 9 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2027) IBOR reform refers
to the gfobal reform of interest rate benchmarks which indludes the replacernent of some interbank offered rates {IBCR) with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy, additional information on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instrumments subject ta IBOR reform is required. tn additian, details of the company’s
progress in cormpleting its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 47, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvements 2018-20 Cydle (effective 1 january 2022) The minor improvernents,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements, to the standards noted were endarsed in
Septernber 2020.

iFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 1 january 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scope of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 27, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceplual Framework}
to identify the liabifities it has assumed in a business combination. in addition, IFRS 3 new contains a statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS § Deferral (effective 1 January 2023) The option far companies whase business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact an the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Refated Rent Concessions (effective 1 April 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optianal practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct cansequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 17 Amendments - Amendments 1o IFRS 17 (effective 1 January 2023) In June 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 were issued
which are intended to make financiai performance easier to explain and reduce comnpliance casts by simplifying some
requirernents in the standard. The amendments are net expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £000

Dividends from UK listed investments 3,753 4,91
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
Scrip dividends from listed investments 7,482 3,370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

i a 36557 amz

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£000 £000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415
Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Ditect propesty expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,321} {(1,984)
o e - 2,915 3,217

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 77



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its property pertfolic. Commescial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market
conditions. Some leases contain options to break before the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals under non-cancelfabie operating leases as at 3T March are as foflows:

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Within 1 year 3,000 2,950
Aftec 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
- i 32,000 28,550

4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

£000 £'000
Interest receivable 1 32
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 44 3
Underwriting commission 22 -
- S e 3w

Underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee companies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of commission is received. The
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in whick it is prepared to increase its
hoelding should that be the outcome. The commission earned is taken to revenue unless any securities underwritten are required to

be taken up in which tase the proportionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investrnent. During the year the Company
participated in ane (202C: nit) underwriting and all commission earned was taken to revenue and shown under Other operating income.

5 MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

201 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Retusn Returmn
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4,709 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7,392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreernent is given in the Report of the Directars on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

021 2020
£'000 £'000

Directors' fees (Directors' Rernuneration Report on pages 55 to 57) 232 209
Auditor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statements 80 80
legal fees 15 3
Taxation fees 69 103
Other administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
irrecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,23 1,398
Expenses charged to Capital 604 615 a2
- —_ —
1,835 2,013 23
gz
&

Other administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; ane quarter to income and three quarters to capital. Totat other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797,000 (2020: £796,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors” National insurance and recruitment, Registrars and
fisting fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are tharged salely to the
fevenue account.

VAT on costs incurfed in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE CO5TS
2021 2020
£000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1,391
HMRC interest: release of Fil GLO provision (240) -
2,385 3,257
Amount allocated to capital return (1,969) (2,443)
Amount allocated to revenue return ” o 116 814
8 TAXATION

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
UK corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) 1,989 (1,989) - 3,362 (3,149) 213
Qverseas taxation 866 - 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 (1,981) 874 5,968 (3,149) 2,819

(Over)/undes provision in respect of prior
yeais {1,980) - {1,980) {406) - {a06)

875 (1,981) (1,106) 5,562 (3,149) 2,413
Deferred taxation . {108)  (686)  (794) 350 - 350
Current tax chasge for the year 767 {2,667) {1,900) 5912 (3,149) 2,763
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8 TAXATION continued
b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower {2028: lower) thar: the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a iarge company of 19%

(2020: 19%).
The difference s explained below:
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Net profit/(loss) on ordinasy activities

before taxat[pn 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197.550) (145,2&
Corporation tax charge at 19% (2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44177 9,938 (37,535) {27,597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - {37,351) (37,351) - 29,187 29187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,204) (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - {1,038) (1,038}
Non-taxable returns (23) (3,380) {(3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends {972) - {972) (1,043) - {1,043)
Nan-taxable averseas dividends (4,573) - {4,573} {5,540} - (5.540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment (108) (686) (794) - - -
{Gver)/under provision in respect of prior

years (1,980) - {1,980) (406) 5 {401}
Disallowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Deterred tax not provided k) 1,084 1,087 288 (87 201

767 (2,667) (1,900) 5,912 (3,149) 2,763

The Group has not recognised delerred 1ax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nil} arising as a result of losses carried forward.

It is considered loo uncertain that the Group witl generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available 1o

offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s stalus as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to obtain
appraval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation or

disposal of investments.

¢) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Jotal
Return Return Return Retutn

£'000 £°000 £000 £000 £000

Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108

Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {636) - - -
Shown as:

Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued
Company

2021 201 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Retura Return
£'000 £°000 £'0¢0 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutifised losses carried forward - (686) {636) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) {686) 108 - 108
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenye Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 {350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - {108) 1 350 351
Unutilised fosses carried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {686} {686) 108 - 108
Company
2027 0N 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) (s86) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - (686) (686) 108 - 108
9 EARNINGS/(L0SS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
the eamings/{loss} per Qrdinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.
Year ended Year ended
31 march 2021 31 Maich 2020
£'000 £000
Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/{loss) 195,520 (194,401)
Net total profit/{loss} 234,409 (148,007)
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue earnings per share 12.25 14.62
Capital earnings/(loss) per share 61.61 (61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 (46.64)

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Qrdinary share, Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share are the same.
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a) Analysis of investments

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

16 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

2021

Company
201
£'000

Group
2020
£'000

Company
2020
£000

Listed in the United I(ingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506

Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682

Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597

investment properties 83,07 83,01 94,510 94,510

investments hetd at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295

Investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429

1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting

GIOSS Gross

valuation Net (@ valuation revenue revenue

31 march  additions/ appreciation/ [EEINLETN ) 31 March 31 March

2020  (disposals)  (depreciation) 20n 202 2020

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964

Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,877} 17978 (141) 3,320 5,724

Total return swap (3,808) 3,9% {188) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 215973 1,317,304 39877 52836

Direct property segment 94,510 (9,838) (1,601) 83,0M 4,236 5,201

R 1160185 25818 214372 1,400,375 4413 58,037

In seeking 1o achieve its investment abjective, the Company invests in the shares and securilies of property companies and property
refated businesses internaticnally and also in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there

are two distinct reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allocation of

resources. The Board, which is the prindpal decision maker, receives infarmation on the two segments on a requiar basis. Whilst

revenue streams and direct property costs can be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannct be

split to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above.

The property costs included within nate 3 are £1,321,000 {2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs fram the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,000 (2020: £3,217.000) for the direct property reporting segment.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net V8 Valuation revenue revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ JEEINCEN 31 March 31 March

2020  {disposals}  (depreciation) 2071 2021 2020

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,615) 73,286 194,176 10,265 16,963

UK unlisted equities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct property’ 94,510 {5,838) {1,601) 83,0711 4,236 5,201

Continental European listed equities 708,597 89,093 124,11 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

UK contracts for difference? 50N {13,708) 8,61 S84 1,242 2,4
European contracts for difference? 3,627 (13,709) 9,357 (725) 2,078 3,010 a3
=
UK total returmn swap® (3,808) 3,996 (188} - - - £3
1,160,185 25,818 214,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037 E 2

included in the abeve figures are purchase costs of £741,000 (2020: £460,000) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £195,000).

These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company feceived £329,018,000 (2020: £367.977,000) from investments, including direct property, sold in the year. The bock cost
of these investrnents when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317,581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/iosses were included in the fair value of the investments.

* nNet additions/(disposals) includes £465,000 (2020: £981,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/(depreciation) includes
arounts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying positions
held. The appreciation/(depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year.

¥ The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movernent in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or more of any class of capital in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements. See nate 21 on pages 96 and 97 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair vaiue (investments}) or the balance
sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the reievant asset as follows:

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (f) and 1 (g).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets out fair value measuremnents using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,01 83,0M
Contracts for difference - (141) - (1)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (1107) - (1,107)
- 1,315,977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785
Investment properties - - 94,510 94,510
Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total return swap - (3,808) - (3,808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - (5,609) - (5,609)
o ) B 1060103  (719) 95192 1,154,575

The table above represents the Group’s fair value hierarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 (2020: £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7117.000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair vaiue in the year,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the release of a corporation tax provision of £348,000
in 3 subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2021 was £1,443,828,600 (2020
£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 201 31 March Appreciation /JEEIN EIC
2020 Purchases Sales (Depreciation)

£'000 £000 £000 £000
unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,468
lavestment pioperties o
- Mixed use 52,623 315 {303) {4,658) 47,977
- Dffice & Industrial 41,887 150 (10,000) 3,057 35,094
) 94,510 465 (10,303) (,601) 83,071
o 95,192 465 (10,303) (815) 84,539

All appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above relates to movernents in fair vaiue of unlisted equity investments and investment
properties held at 31 Match 2021.

the Group held one unquoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were ng transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment properties are;

® tstimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft {2020: £6.5- £65)
® C(apitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% {2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases {decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in isolation would result in & significantly higher (lower)
fair value measurement_ A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in a significantly lower
(higher) fair value measurement.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by markel rate condition. The
sensitivity of the valuation te changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office & "
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial EX]
£'000 £/000 Tz
zk
=2
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 -
Decrease in rental value by 5% (250) (1,610) (25) (1,885)
Increase in yield by 0.5% {4,040) {5,835) {925) (10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at office &
31 March 2020 arising from Retail Industrial Other Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% {1,225) {1,720} - (2,945)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (5,025} (6,005) {950} (11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the fong term in the pursuit of the Investrment Objectives set out on
page 24. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group faces in its portfolio managernent activities are:
® Market risk {comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk)

® Lliquidity risk

® Credit risk

The Manager's policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continved

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager Tyns a diversified portfclio and reports to the Board on the portfolio activity and perfoimance at each Board meeting.
The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

The Group's exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolio, was as

follows:
201 2020
£'000 £°000
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,135,295
CFD long gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS long gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Policies cn page 25, there are quidelines to the amount of exposure 10 3 single company, geographical
region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of expasure to individual or sector price fisks. As an
investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price movements across the property
asset class as 4 whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The fallowing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation far the year and the value of shareholders funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The level of
change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group’s equity. fixed interest,
CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variabies held constant.

Ficra) 2021 2020 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£000 £°000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive income - profit after tax

Revenue return {103) 103 (77} 77
Capital return 209,801 {209,801) 173,817 (173,817)
Change to the profit after tax for the yeai/shaszholders' funds 209,698 (209,698) 173,740 {173,740)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p {54.75)p
11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group’s portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by
maovements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the propoertion of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, £uros or other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movements outside the Eurozone by funding investments in overseas
securities with ynsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
Al the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Sterting has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 270%
Euro 51.0% 53.0%
swedish Krona 13.0% 11.0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following table sets cut the Group's total exposure to fareign currency risk and the net exposure to fareign currencies af the net
monetary assets and liabilities:

Swedish an

sterling Krona EES

0n £/000 £'000 z3

22

Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,262 10,668 561 299 “
Cash at bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts {95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokerss, accruals and other creditors) {10,142) (1,031) - -
FX forwards (61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items (94,636) o :|3,976 15,059 47,825
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-current liabilities (15,000) {42,593) - -
Total currency exposure o 370,365 679351 ' "7170,694 ) 106,023
Swedish

sterling Euro Krona Other
2020 £000 £000 £000 £000
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 31,552 27,495 634 113
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 11,922 962 1,643
Bank fvans, loan notes and overdrafts {40,000) - - -
Payables {due to brokers, accruals and other creditoss) (8,026) {6,076) - -
FX forwards {133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency exposure an net monetary items (124,603) 95,355 2411 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-current assets {15,108) (44,246) - -
Total currency exposure ' 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824

Foreign curfency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assumes the following changes in exchange fates:”
® Steding/tura +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Swedish Keona +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Other +/- 15% (2020:15%)
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If $terfing had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect:
Year ended March 2021 vear ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £°000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income -

profit after tax

Revenue return {2,726) (589) (250) (3,016) (340) (99)
Capital return (83,243) (20,269) (7,579) (71,091) {13132) (7.317)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds (85,969) {20,858) {7,829) (74,107) 13,472) (7.416)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share (36.13)p (29.93)p

If sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect:
Year ended march 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£°000 £000 £000 £'000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive income -
profit after tax

Revenue return 3,411 732 318 4971 423 H3

Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909

Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022

Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p N.24p

11.3 interest rate risk
Interest rate movements may affect.

® the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities;

@ the fair value of the loan notes;

@ the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
@ the fevel of interest expense an any variable rate bank !oans; and
@ the prices of the underlying securities held in the postfalios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into account when
making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themsefves and the (evel of gearing and structure of its
debt portfolio is & key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
set out in note 13. In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-cureency revolving loan facilities which carry variable
rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus 3 margin. These facilities total £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt o the batance sheet of the Group (i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabifities of the underlying investments, when consicering the
investment portfolio. These gearing levels are reported reqularly ta the Beard.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group’s financial assets are not directly
subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevaiting levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to;

@ tloating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

® fixed interest rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group’s exposure 16 fioating interest rates on assets is £80,027,000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000}.

The Group’s exposure to fioating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nil).
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Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

® interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR o its foreign currency equivalent
(2020: same).

® interest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan facilities, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan (2020: same).

#® The finance tharges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at interest rates af 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between
floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2021 2021 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Change to shareholders funds (1,176) 1,176 (317) 317
Change to total earnings per Cedinary share {037)p 0.37p {0.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holds.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unguoted investrents in the portfolic are subject to liquidity risk. The Group hetd one unquoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditions, the liquidity of direct property investments may be reduced. At 31 March 2027, 6% (2020: 8%) of the
Group’s investment portfolio was held in direct property investments.

Al 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfolic is heid in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are short term revalving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain. toan
notes of €£50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile

within Within within Within More than
1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5yeals 5 years Total

At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans™ 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan netes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 110 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717
Within within Within within within  More than
1 year 12 yeass 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
Al 31 March 2020 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59,246
Projected interest tash flows on
bank 2nd loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 1,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,812
Other creditors 294 - - - - - 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

* A £60n multicurrency facility with RBS was cenewed for one year in February 2021, £50m (2020: £10m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A
£30m ane year facifity with ING Luxembourg was renewed in July 2020. £30m (2020: £30r) was drawn on this facifity at the balance sheet date. A £40m facifity
was renewed with ICBC in November 2026, £15m (2020: £nil) was drawn on this faulity at the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sels guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set

out in the Investment Policies an page 25. All unquoted investments with a value over £1m and direct praperly investments with a

value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewat discussions commence weil ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongeing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure of 3 counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed 1o was within Debtoss and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periadically by the Manager,
and fimits are set on the amount that may be due from any one braker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In surnmary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Balance  Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£000 £000 £'000 £°000

Debtors 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,114 40,129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected credit losses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 {31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its cenliactual rights and to secure rights that will hefp the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter inte an ISCA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its OTC derivative contracl counterparties. An tSDA Master Agreerment
is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OFC derivatives and fereign exchange contracts and typicaily
contains, arnong other things, collateral posting terms and nelting provisions in the event of a default and/or termination event. Under
an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instruments
payables and/or receivables with callateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default induding

the bankruptcy or insclvency of the counterparty. However, bankruptcy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction rmay impose
restrictions on or peshibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insofvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the foliowing tables inctude financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement of similar agreement.

AL 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counlterparty) are as follows:
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Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£°000 £'000 £000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs (147) 50,913 8,698 31,525
T (147) 50,913 8,698 31,525
1RS position: R
ING - - (3,808) 7,997
- - (3,808) 7997
FX forward contracts: N
Bank of Montreal - - (2.582) -
Barclays - - (2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC {1,107) - - -
Westpac - - 9) -
@ - (5,609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13), the fais values of the financial assets and
finantial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet amount is a
reasonable approximation of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdiafts, accruals and prepayments).

The fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or fast traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out abave and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year.

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Baok) valuation of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

There was one unguoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Alrato, with a lotal value of £1,468,000 (2020: Atiato, £682,600).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in uniisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investrents including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for
the year was & gain of £214,372,000 (2020: ioss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

® 1o ensure that it wilt be able to continue as a going concem; and
@ to maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not regard the foan notes and loans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to 2 minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
® the Adjusted NAV shall not be less thar £260,000,000.

12 DEBYORS

Group  Company Group Company
201 20 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Securities and properties sold for future setilement 267 267 5,020 5,020
Tax recoverable 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income’ 5,176 5176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 7997 7,997
Other debtors 403 403 358 358
a ' ) o 60,990 60,520 60094 59972

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

' Includes amaunts in respect of rent tree periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
20 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £°000

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdralts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 194 194 5,975 5,975

Amounts due 1o subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 1M 141 - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Jax payable 9 9 213 213

Accruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3,783

Foreign exchange forward contracts for settlemnent 1,107 1,107 5,609 5609 v

Other creditors 10 104 294 286 § %
107,280 150,120 59 110,016 g 3

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Defersed taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59354 59,354
ioan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.92% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Eurc Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000} and the 3.59% G8F Loan Notes was £15,215,000
(2020: £15,553,000) at 31 March 2021.

Using the IFRS 13 fair vaiue hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of finandial covenants, indluding:

@ iotal Borrowings shail not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Vaiue;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Bosrowings; and
® the Adjusted NAY shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the lean notes agreemnent thioughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, revolving short-term loan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2020: £110,000,000) at
31 March 2021, At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2020: £40,000,600).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4,
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Short term

Long term

£'000 £000

Group and Company

debt debt Total

opening liabilities irom tinancing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:

Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement on foreign exchange {1.653) - (1,653)
closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 a 57593 95,000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
ordinary share capital

The balance classified as Ordinary share capilal includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Crdinary equity share

capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p,

Issued, allotted

and fully paid
Number £000

ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2020 317,350,980 79338
At 31 March 201 317,350,980 79,338

The vating rights are disclosed in the Repaort of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Grdinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelied.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
Share premium account

The balance classified as share premium includes the premiurn above nominal value from the proceeds on issue of the equity share

capitel comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.
Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve is used to recard the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s own

shares in order to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

Group Company Group Cornpany

2021 2021 2020 2020

£000 £000 £'000 £000

Investment halding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,531
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 “902,996

Revenue reserve 67,222 63,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 565,982 969,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unlisted investments and

gains of £45,201,000 (2620: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.
Company investment haolding gains at 31 March 2027 include gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,697,000) relating to unlisted and

subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain (2020. £50,742,060) relating to investment properties. Dividends are

only distributable from the revenue reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
20 2020

£'000 £'000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 27,292
(2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

: 5,20p) per Ordinary share 16,5 ,
_(2020: 5.20p) per Ordi h 6,502 16,502
44,429 43,794

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27,927

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financiat statements in accordance with IAS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”
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Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the reguiremnents of 5.1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
plirl] 2020

£000 £000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 march 2021 of 5.20p

{2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary shate o 28,562 27927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Cornpanies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Income. The net profit after taxation of the Cormpany dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,409,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset vafue per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and an 317,350,980 (2020: 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AL 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no contingent fiabilities (2026: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are registered and operating in Scotiand, England and Wales:

Name

New England Properties Limited
The Colonnades Limited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Developments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate investment Trust Limited

The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited

Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited
Tsust Union Properties (Number Five) timited
Tryst Union Properties (Number 5ix) Lirnited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Unior Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Numbes Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Eleven) timited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Fourteen) timited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Tryst Union Properties {Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited

Trust Union Properties {Number Twenty-Two) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
Skillion Finance Limited

Trust Union Finance {1991) Pic

FGH Developments Limited

FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited (E18030)
FGH {Newcastle} Limited

NEP (1994) Limited

New England Developments Limited

New England investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England (Southern) Limited

Sapeo One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Unien Finance Limited

TR Property Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Reg. Number
788895
2826672
2500726
2365375
2415846
2416015
2415843
2416017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2415806
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416031
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
5(68799
1466619
977481
1385909
2613945
1447221
1787371
803940
2134624
1233998
2415941
2420097

Principal Activities
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nen-trading company

Propesty investment
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
investment financing
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Nan-trading company
Non-trading company

Investment holding and finance company
Investment halding and finance company

Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued

The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption from the requiremnent
of an audit, in line with the requirements of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2006,

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the holdings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hanover Street, London, W1S 1¥YQ with the exceptior of FGH Devetopments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festivat Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consclidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

20 2020
£000 £000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619 3z

) o EE

TR Property Finance Limited 20,281 27743 ZZ

New England Properties Limited (20) (20) = z
42,880 50,342

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant tategories
specified in IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors” Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered 1o be a related party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Movements in directors’ sharehoidings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 57.

Dividends totalling £17,000 (2020: £10,0600) were paid int the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directors.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Perfarmance Measures are numerical measures of the
Companry’s current or historical performance, financial position ar
cash flows, other than the financizl measures defined ar specified
in the Financial Statements.

ihe measures defined below are considered 1o be Alternative
Performance Measures {hey are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended investment
companies.

Total Return

the NAY lotal Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends
In the assets of the Campany from the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividends are deemed to be reinvested on the ex-dividend
date as this 1s the protocol used by the Company’s benchmark
and other indices The Share Price Tatal Retumn 15 calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the
relevant ex-dividend date

NAY
NAV/share price per share at
31 march 2020 358M 175
NAV/share price per share at
31 March 2021 417.97 392.5
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Return for the year 20.7% 28.3%

Net Debt

Net debt 1s the total value of foan notes, lgans {Including notional
exposure to CFDs and TRSs) less cash as a proportion of ret asset
value

Ihe net gearing has been calculated as foilows:

Loan notes 57,593 59246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFD positions (notional exposure} 146,001 56,728
TRS paosition (notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (29,114) {40,129)
Less: Cash collateral (included
within ‘Other debtors’in Note 12) {50,913) (39,522)
218,567 86,728
Equity sﬁareholders’ funds 1,326,433 7,136,4573
Net gearing 16.5% 7.6%
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Qngoing Chungis

The Ongaing Charges atio has been calculated in accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the total of investment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Asset Values throughout the year
Ihe definitian of administrative expenses daes include property
related expenses, the Ongoing Charges calculation 15 shown
inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majanity of Investment Trusts which do not hold any direct
property investments

Excluding
Performance
fees &

Direct
Property Costs
£000

including

Excluding
Performance Performance
Fees Fees

£000 £000

Management fee

{note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recureing

expenses - - -
17,989 8.330 8,060

Average Net 1283051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Ongaing Charge 0 o o

2021 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Gngoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% £.59%

2020

The Gngoing charges ratio provided in the Campany’s Key
Infarmation Document 15 calcelated :n hine with the PRIIPS
regulations which 1s different 1o the AIC methodclogy above,

Key Performance Indicators

Ihe Baard assesses the perfermance of the Manager in meeting
the Irusts abjective against a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are considered to be Alternative Performance
Measures. [hese are set out on pages 26 and 27 of this report
together with informaticn about any catculations of the source of
data



Glassary and AVFMD disclasure “nvieuis

2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

The Alternative rund Managers Direclive 15 Furopean legisiation
which created a European wide framewark for requlating the
managers of “alteinative investment funds” (Alks) 1t 15 designed
to regulate any fund which 15 not 3 UCITS (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) fund and which
Is managed or marketed in the EU.

AlC
1he Association of Investrnent Compames  the AlC s the
representative body for closed-ended investrnent companies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance or finanoal pasition
ather than a finanual measure defined or specified i the
accounting statements.

Discount

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
investment trust 1s [owet than the Net Asset Value per share
expressed as a percentage of the NAV per share

Key Information Document

under the PRIIPs Requiations a shart, consumer friendly Key
information Document 1s required setting out the key features,
risks, fewards and casis of the PRIV and 15 intended ta assist
investors to belter understand the Trust and make comparnisons
between Tiusts

the document Includes estimates of investment performance
under a number of scenarios 1hese calculations are prescibed
by the requiation and are based purewy an recent historical data
Itis important for investors to note that there 1s no Judgement
apphed and these do not In any way reflect the Board ar
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator “KP1”

AKPI" s a quantliable ineasure that evaluates how sutcessul
the trust :s i meeting its objectives The Trust’s KPIs are
discussed ar pages 26 and 27

MiFID

The Markets In Financial Instruments Directive 15 the U
legisiation that regulates firms who provide services to clients
linked ta "finarcial instruments” (shares, bonds, umts in coilective
mnvestment schemes and denvalives) and the venues where
thase instruments are traded

Net Assat Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less iiabilties (intluding burrowings)
dwided by the number of shares in issue

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD"”)

In accordance with the AIRMD, information in relation to the
Company’s leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AlbM,

F&C Investment Business Limited, 1s required Lo be made
avallable tg nvestors, Detalled requlatary disclosures including
thase on the AIFM's remuneration policy are available on the Fat
website or from FaC on request. the numerical rernuneration
disclosures in relation to the AlFM's first relevant accounting
perod will be made avallable it due course

Leverage
Under the AIFM Directive, 1t 1s necessary for Airs to disclose their
leverage n accordance with prescrbed calculations.,

Although leverage 1s ofien used as anather term for gearing,
under the AlFMD leverage 15 specifically defined. Two types of
leverage calculations are defined; the gross and commitment
metheds These methods summarily express leverage as a ralio
of the exposure of the AlF against its net asset value ‘Exposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties
subject to martgage, non-Stetling currency, equity of currency
hedqging at absolute notional values (even thase held purely
for nsk reducticn purposes, such as forwarc fareign exchange
tontiacts held for currency hedging} and denvative exposure
(converted nto the equivalent undertying positions) The
commitment method nets off dervative instruments, while the
grass methad aggiegates them.

The 1able below sets out the current maximum permitted himit
and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020

Gross  Commitment
Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 124% 118%

the teverage himits are set by the AIFM and approved by the
Board and are 10 ine with the Timits set aut in the Company’s
Articles of Asscaiation.

This should not be confused with the gearing set aut in the
Financial Highlights which 1s caltiiated under the traditiona
method set cut by the Assauation of investment Companies. The
AiFM 15 alse requ red to comrply with the gearing pararmelers set
by the 3oard in relatan to borrowings
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are 1n any doubt as to the action you should take you
should seek your own advice from a stockbroker, solictar,
accountant or other independent professional adviser who s
authonised under the Financial Seivices and Markets Act 2000 1f
you are resident mn the United Kingdom, or +f not, from another
apprapriately authornsed independent financial adviser

If you have sold or atherwise transferred all of yaur shares,
please pass this dorument. tngether with the accnmpanying
documents to the purchaser, ar trianslferee, or to the person who
arranged the sale o1 transter so they can pass these documents
Lo the person who now halds the shares

Qur preference 1s to welcome shareholders in person to our 2021
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced 1in 2020 due 1o
the COVID-19 pandemic The Company 1s cantinuing te monitor
the current COVID-19 legislation and public health guidance 1ssued
by the UK Goverament

we have prepared far this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Government’s roadmap cut of lockdown at the date
of the meeting. It 15 expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as normal as a physical meeting

However, It may be necessary to adapt our arrangements 1o
respand to any changes i crcumstances, including the possibility
of a delay to the further easing of restrictions Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change tc the tocation
of the AGM} will be communicated to shareholders before the
meeting, including through our website (www trpioperty.com)
and via an RNS announcement

Ihe meeting wiil be conducted i accordance with legisiation
and public health guidance in force at the time of the meeting
Depending on the tircsmstances at the time of the meeting, it
may be necessary to imit physical attendance by shareholders
we regret that 1t will not be possible to provide efreskments
In the usual way if new restrictions are imposed, 1t 1s possible
that we will not be in a position to accommaodate shareholders
beyond the mimmum required to hald a quorate meeting

Reqardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
tc proceed as planned, we strongly encourage all shareholders
tc vote in advance by proxy and appoint the Chairman of the
meeting as their proxy rather than any other named person,
who may not be permitied to attend the AGM. This will ensure
that their vote will be counted if they {(or any ather proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not able to attend the meeting. All
resalutions wiil be voted on by a poll

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to register
their intention as soon as practicable by email to the following
dedicated address- cmuk-tipropertyinvestment@linkgroup co.uk

Shareholders who are not able or de not wish to attend the
meeting in person (regardless of an easing of restrictions) wili be
able to watch a live webcast of the meeting. This will include the
formal busiress of the meeting, the Manager’s presentation and
questions and answers The webcast will not enable shareholders
to participate in the meeting or vote However, sharehalders will
be mvited ta submit questions through our website, by 12.00
noon on 26 July 2021. Questions of a very similar nature may be
grouped tagether to ensure the orderly running af the AGM.
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Shareholders are asked to consult the website in the period
leading up to the event where any restrictions or changes will
be set qut and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitted at that time.

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual General Meeting cf

TR Property Investment Tryst pic {the “Company”) will be held
at 2.30 pm on 27 July 2021 at the Royal Autamabile Club, 89/%1
Pall mMall, Londan SW1Y 5HS for the purpose of transacting the
fallowing business:

To cansider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resalutians,

of which Resolutions 1 to 11 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Special
Resolutians.

lo receive the Report of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 21 March 2021

To apprave the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the
part containing the irectors’ remuneration policy) for the year
ended 31 March 2021

To declare a final dwvidend of 90Cp per Qrdinary share.
To re-elect Simon Marrisan as a Diuector

lo re-elect David watson as a Directar

10 re-elect im Gillbanks as a Director

lo re-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director

To re-elect Sarah-jane Curtis as a Director.

To re-appomt KPMG LLP (the "Auditor”) as Auditcrs of the
Company ta hold office until the conclusron of the next Annua:
General Meeting of the Campany

To authornse the Directors to determine the remuneration of
the Auditors

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary resolution

" THAT, in substtuian for all such existing authorities, the
Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 557 of
the Compantes Act 2006 (Lhe "Act”) to exercise all
the powers ol the Company to allol shares in the
Company anid to grant nghts to subscnbe for, of to
convert any secunty mto, shares in the Company up to
a nominal value of £26181,455 (being approximaiely
33% of the totalissued share capital of the Company
as at the {atest practicable date prior to pubheation of
this Netice) provided that this authonty shall expire
at the date of the rext Annual General Meeting of
the Company {or 1if earlier, at the close of business
on 27 Qctober 2022), save that the Company shall
be entitied to make offers or agreements before the
expiry of this authonty which would or might require
shares to be allotted or nghts to be granted after
such expiry and the Direclors shall be entitied to allot
shares and grant nghts pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as If this authonly had not expired



Notice of Annual General Meeting

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

(a) (in substitution far alf such existing authonties and subject
ta the passing of Resolutian 11 set out abave) the duectors
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and Section 573 of
the Acl to altot equity secunities {as defined in Section 560
of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred
by Resolution 11 above and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as treasury shares for cash as  Section 567(1) of
the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that
this power shall be limited to.

(1) the allotment of equity secunties and sale of treasury
shares for cash in connection with an offer of, or
invitation to apply for, equity securities:

(#a) to shareholders in proporticn (as nearly as may be
practicable) ta their existing holdings, and

(bb} ta holders of other equity securities, as required
by the rights of those securities, or as the Board
olherwise cansiders necessary,

and so thal the Board may impose any hmits or restnctions
and make any aniangements which 11 considers necessary
or appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, recard dates, legal, requlatory or practical
problfems in, or under the faws of, any territory or any other
matter, and

(i in the case of the authonty granted under Resolution
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
for cash, 1o the allotment (atherwise than under
paragraph (1) above) of equity secunties or sale of
treasury shares up to a nominal amount of £3,966.887
(being approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
prior to publication of the notice of meeting},

(b} the pawer given by this resolution shall expire upon the
expiy of the authanty conferred by Resciution 11 abave,
save that the Company shail be entitled to make offers or
agreements befose the expiry of such power which would
or might reguire equity secuntes ta be allotted after such
expiry and the directars shall be entitled to allot equity
secuiies pursuant to any such affer or agreement as 1f the
‘power conferred hereby had rot expired

THAT the {ampanry be and 1s kereby generally and
uncondiionally authonsed in accordance with Sectian 701
of the Act to make market purciases (wathin the
meaning ol Seclion 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares
o’ 25p 2ach In the capiat of e Company on suck 27ms
2nd n such manner as the directors may irom time to
time determire proviced thal

() the maximum rumber cf Ordinary shares hereby
autkorsed to be purchased shall be 14 99% of the
Ccrrpany's Ordinary shares in 1ssue al the date of the
Arrial Gereral Meeling (equiva-ent Lo 47.570,911 Ordirary
shares of 25p each at 3 june 2027, the latest practicable
gate pr.or to publication of this Notice),

{by the maxsmurm price {extlusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall not be more than the
higher of-

{13 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the Company
agrees o buy the shares concerned, and

{iiy the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid far an Ordinary
share In the Company on the trading venue where the
purchase 1s canied out at the relevant time,

(c) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Ordinary share; and

(d) the autharity hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
in 2022 (or, if earlier, at the close of business an 27 October
2022}, save that the Compary shall be entitled to enter
itto a contract to puichase Ordinary shares which will, ol
may, be completed o1 executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase Ordmary
shates pursuant to such contract as if the power canferred
hereby had nat expired

IHAL with effect from the conclusion of this meeting,

the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and
imitialled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of
identification be hereby approved and adopted as the Articles
of Association of the Company, n substitution for, and to the
exclusiar of, the existing Artictes of Assaciatian.

Registered Office

Registered in England Ne: 84492 1 12 Hanover Streel
London

WIS 1YQ

By Orcer of the Board

tor ard on behalf of

Link Lompany Mattars Limitad
Secretary

3 Jure 2027
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Naotice of Annual General Meeting .

NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled to altend and vate at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 15 entitled 10 appont one

or more praxies to exercise all or any of the nights of the
member to attend, speak and vate in his or her place.
Shareholders are strongly encouraged to appont the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
persan who may not be permitted to attend the AGM In the
event of restrictions or lrmits on altendance. A proxy need

not be a shareholder of the Company. [o appoint more than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photocopied and the
name of the proxy to be appainted indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such proxy 15
appointed in respect of Completion and submission of a proxy
nstruction will not preciude a3 member from atlending and
voung in person at the AGM {subject to any restrictions on
physical atlendance).

10 be valid any proxy farm or otker instrument appointing

a praxy must be retuined by past, by couner or by hand to
the Cormpany's Reqistrars, Compultershare Investar Services
PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 &7, al
alternatively, by going to www.eproxyappaintiment com

and following the instructions provided All proxies must

be appotnted by no later than 48 hours before the me of
the AGM In the case of jaint holders, where mare than one
of the jaint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appointment submitted by the mast senior holder will be
accepted Senionty 1s determined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear ir the Company’s register
in respect of the jont halding {the fust named being deemed
the mast seniar}.

I arder to be able ta attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned meenng (and also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes a person may cast), a person must have

fis af her name entered on the Reqister of Members af the
Company by 2 30 pm on 23 July 2021 (ar 6 00 prn on the
date two days before any adjourned meeting). Changes to
entnes on the Register of Members after this time shall be
distegarded in determiming the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting

yoting will be conducted on a pall at the Meeting On a poll
vote every shareholder wili through their proxy have one vate
for every ordinary share of which he or she 1s the holder

shareholders shouid note that it 15 passible that, pursuant fo
requests made by shareholders of the Company under Section
527 of the Campanies Act 2008, the Campany may be reguired
to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter
relating ta: (1} the audit of the Company’s accourts {including
the auditor's repart and the conduct of the audit) that are to
be laid befare the AGM, ar (i) any arcumstarce connected
with an auditar of the Company ceasing to hold office since
the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were laid 1in accordance with Sectian 437 of the Companies
Act 2006
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The Company may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication to pay its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the Campanies Act 2006 Where
the Company Is required to place a staterment on a website
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, 1t must forward
the statement to the Company's auditar not later than the
time when 1t makes the statement avaiable on the websile
The business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes
any statemment that the Company has been required under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to publish an a
websile

Any corporation which 1s @ member of the Company can
appaint one ar more corporate representatives who may
exercise on its behalf all of 1ts pawers as a member provided
that they do not do so in relation ta the same shares.

The right to appaoint a praxy does not apply to persens whose
shares are held on (heir behalf by another persen and who
have been nominated to receive communication from the
Company In accordance with Section 146 of the Companies At
2006 ("nominated persans”). Nominated persans may have

a night under an agreement with the registered shareholder
who hoids shares on their behalf to be appainted (ar to

have surnecne else appointed) as a pioxy. Alternatively, if
nominated persons do not have such a nght, or do pot wish
10 exerqise it, they may have a rnght under such an agreement
to give instructions to the person hoiding the shares as ta the
exercise of voting nghts

CREST members who wish Lo appoint 8 proxy of proxes
through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service

may do so for the AGM to be held on 27 July 2027 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures descibed in
the CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members who have
appointed & voting service provider should refer to ther CRESI
5pansors of voting service provider(s), wha will be able to
lake the appropniate action on ther behalf

In order for 3 proxy appomtment or nstruction made by
means of CRESI to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

(a "CRESI Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated 1n
accardance with Euraclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contain the infermation required for such
instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message
must be transmitted so as te be receved by the Company’s
agent, Computershare Investar Services PLC (CREST Partiipant
1D: 3RAS0), no later thar 48 hours before the time appointed
for the meeting. For this purpose, the time of recespt wilt

be taken to be the tme (as determined by the time stamp
applied to the message by the CREST Application Hosl) from
which the Company’s agent 1s able to retneve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsor of
voling service provider should note that Euroclear LK & Ireland
Limited does not make avallabie special procedures in CREST
for any particular messages.
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Normal system timings and imitations will therefore apply

in relation 1o the input of CRESI Proxy Instiuctions. 1t 15 the
responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take for, if
the CREST member 15 a CREST personal member or spansored
member or has appointed a voting service provider, to procure
that fis or her CRESI sponsor of vating service provider

takes) such action as shail be necessary to ensure that a
message 1s transmitted by means of the CRESI system by any
particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CRES1 sponsor of voting service provider are
referred In particular 1o those sections of the CRESI Manual
concermning practical hmetations of the CREST system and
timings. The Company may treat as invahd a CRESI Proxy
Instructian in the circumstances set out In Requlation 35(5)(a)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001,

Any member attending the meeting (subject to any
restrictions in place at the tme ol the meeting) has the nght
to ask questions The Campany mysl cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business beng dealt with at
the meeting but no suck answer need be given 11 {3) 1o do so
would interfere unduly with the preparation lor the meeting
or invalve the disclosure of confidential information, {b) the
answer has aiready been given on a webs:te in the farm af an
answer to a gquestion; or {C) It 1s undesirable in the mterests

of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the
question be answered. Questions aof a very simiar nature may
be grouped together ta ensure the arderly runring of the
AGM .

A copy of this rotice, and other information required by
section 311A of the Comparies Act 2006, can be found at
www Lipioperty com

termbers satisfying the thresholds in secticn 338 of the
Companies Act 2606 may require the Company 16 give, 10
members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, natice of a resolution which thaose members mintend 1
maove (and which ray properly be moved) at the AGM A
resolution: may properly be moved at the AGM unless

(1)1t would, f passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of
any incensistency with any enactment or the Compdany’s
constitution or ctherwise); (1) 1t 15 defamatory of any person;
of (i) 101s frivolous of vexatious. A request made pursuant
to this right may be 1n hard copy or electionic form, must
igentify the resoiution of which notice 1s to be given, must
be authenticated by the person(s) making it and must be
recelved by the Company not later than six weeks belore the
date of the AGM

. Members satisfy'ng the thresholds in secticn 338A of the
Companies ACl 2006 may request the Cormpany 1o incluce

i the business 1o be dealt with et the ACM ary matter

{(cther than a propesed rese:ution) which may properly be
incicded in the business at the AGM A matter may properiy
be included n the business at the AGM ynless. (1) t1s
defarnatory of any perscr, or (i) it s fi volows or vexatious
Arequest made pursuant tc this right may be in hard copy

ar electronic form, must identify the matter tg be incluced In
the busaness, must be accompanied by a statement setting
out the grourds for the request, must be authenticated by tre
person(s) making it and must be received by the Compary nat
iater than six weexs before the date of the AGM

Biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 39 aof the Annual Report & Accounts.

© As at 3 june 2021 (heing the latest practicable day priot

to publication of this Notice), the ssued share capital of

the Company is 317,350,980 QOrdinary shares of 25p each
herefore, the total number of voting rights in the Company at
3 June 202115 317,350,980.

- The terms af reference of the Audit Committee, the

Management tngagement Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the New Articles of Association and the Letters of
Appointment for directors will be avaiiable for inspectian for
at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Company’s AGM.

- You rnay not use any electronic address provided either in

this Natice or any related docurnents to communicate for any
purpases other than those expiessly slated.

*. The Company may process personal data of attendees at the

Annual General Meeting. This may include webcasts, photos,
recarding and audio and video links, as well as other tarms
of personal data The Company shail process such personal
data n accordance with its privacy policy, which can found at
hitps-//www irproperty com/legal
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RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

These are the resofut:ons which deal with the presentation of
the audited accaunts, the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dividend

The vote to approve the Rermuneration Report 1s advisory only
and will not require the Company to alter any airangements
detailed in the report should the resolution not be passed

Ihe Board 1s praposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 March 2021 of 9.00p per ordinary share If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
lo those shareholders an the Company's register at the close of
business on 18 June 2021

RESOLUTIONS 4,5, 6, 7, AND B: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

These resoiutions deal with the re-election of Siman Marnsan,
fim Gitlbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah Jane
Curtis. In accardance with the UK Corporate Governange Code, all
directors will retire on an annuat basis and have contirmed that
they will offer themselves for re-elect:on.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directors continues fo be
effective and demonstrates thew commitment to therr role

Thesr biographical detalls, which are set cul an pages 38 and

39, demonstrate how the Board has the appropnate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledge to lead the
Company's long term sustamable success. Accordingly, the Board
unanimously recommends their re-election

RESOLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappaintment of the Auditors, KPMG
LLP and the authonsation for the directors to determine they
remuneration

RESOLUTION 11: ALLOTMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL

Qur Board considers it appropriate that an authonity be granted

to allot shares in the capital of the Company up lo @ maximum
nomunal amaunt of £26,445,915 {representing approximately one
thud of the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 3 june 2021,
being the latest practical date pror to publication of this Notice of
the meeting) As at the date of this nolice the Company does not
hoitd any shares in treasury

The directors have no present intention of exercisng this
autharity and would only expect to use the authcrity if shares
could be 1ssued at, or at 2 premium to, the Net Assel Value per
share

This autharity wilt expire at the earlier of close of business
on 27 Gctober 2022 and the corclusion of the Annual Geneta:
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2622
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RESOLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION Of STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

This resoluticn wouid give the directors the authonty o allat
shares (or sell any shares which the Campany elects to hold
In treasury) for cash without first offening them ta existing
shateholders in propartion to therr existing shareholdings

This authonty would be imited to alloiments or sales in
connection with pre emptive offers and offers to holders of
other equity secunities If required by the nghts of those shares
or a5 the board otherwise considers necessary, or atherwise 1
to an aggregate normnal amaunt of £3,966,887 This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total 1ssued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2021, the latest practicable date
priof to pubilcation of this Notice. In respect af this aggregate
nominal amount, the directars confirm their intention 1o follow
the pravisians of the Pre-kmption Group’s Statement of Principles
regarding cumulative usage of authorities within a rofling
3-year penod where the Principles provide that usage in excess
of 75% should not take place without prici consultalion with
sharehaolders

The authonty will expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022

RESOLUTION 13: AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

Al the AGM held 1n 2020, a special resolution was propased and
passed, giving the directars authanty, until the concusion of the
AGM 10 2021, 1o make market purchases of the Company’s gwn
issued shares up to a8 maximum of 14 99% of the 1ssued share
capital

Your Board 1s propos:ng that they shauid be given renewed
authority ta purchase Ordinary shares in the market, Your

Board believes that to make such purchases i the maiket at
appropriate times and prices 1s & sutable method of enhancing
shareholder value. the Company would, within guidelines set
from time tc time by the Board, make either a single purchase or
a senes of purchases, when market conditions are surable, with
the aim of maximsing the benefits to shareholders

where purchases are made at prices belaw the prevailing Net
Asset value per share, this will enhance the Net Asset value

for the remaining sharehoiders 1t is therefore intended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset Value
Your Beard considers that 1L will be most advantageous to
sharehalders for the Company to be able to make such purchases
as and when 1t considers the Uming to be favourable and
therefore does not propose 1o set a timetable for making any
such purchases

The Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Ireasury Shares)
Requlations 2003 enable comparies i the Urited Kingdom to
hold in treasury any of their own shares they have purchased
with a view to possible resale at a future date, rather than
tancetling them If the Company does re purchase any of 1ts
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shares, the directors do not curiently intend to hold any of the
shares re-purchased in treasury The shares so re-purchased will
continue to be cancelled.

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Autharity himit the maxunum
price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share. It shall not be more than the higher of:

(") 105% of the average of the middle market quatatiors for an
Ordinary share as taken from the Lordon Stock kxchange Daily
Official List for the five business days immediately preceding
lhe date on which the Company agrees to buy shares
concerned; and

{iy the hugher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary share in
the Company con the trading venue where the purchase is
carried out

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share {being the nominal value). The Listing Ruies also lirmit

a histed company to purchases of shares representing up te
15% of 1ts 1ssued share capita in the market pursuant to a
general authonty such as this For this reason, the Company 15
limiting 1ts authanty to make such purchases to 14 99% of the
Company’s Ord.nary shares in 1ssue at the date of the AGM; this
15 equivalent to 47,570,911 Ordinary shares of 25p eath (nomiral
valle £11,852,727) at 3 june 2021, the latest pracuicable date
prior to publication this Notice The authonty w Il last until the
Annual General Meeting of the Company fo be held in 2022

RESOLUTION 19: ADOPTION QF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

Resolution 14 relates to the adopton of new Articles of
Associaton (the “New Articles”™) in order to update the
Company’s curnent Articles of Assac:ation (the “Current Articles”™),
which were adopted or 14 December 2012 The New Articles
reflect developments in best practice, and provide additianal
clarfication ang flexibility 1he ma:n changes :n the New Articles
are summarised In the Appendix on pages 106 ard 107 QOthet
changes, which are of 3 minor, technical or diarfying rature have
not been noted in the Appendix ke New Articies showing all
the changes to the Current Articles are available for inspection,
at www triproperty com and will also be available at the Anrual
General Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board helieves that the resolutions contained in this Not ce
ot Annual Gereral Meeing are n the best interesis of the
Comrpany and sharehalders as a whole ard recommenrds that you
vote in favour of ther as your Directars intenc to do 1n respect of
their benefica’ sharekcldings

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigma Shares and Deferred Shares

The New Articles amend the Current Articles to remove
provisions ard references relating lo Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares. This reflects that on 14 Decemnber 2012 all Sigma Shares
were consolidated and redesignated as Qrdinary Shares, and
the resulung Deferred Share was purchased by the Campany for
rancellatinn The Company now has a single class of Orginary
Shares.

untraced shareholders

The New Artictes amend the pesition in relation to untraced
shareholders. Rather than requinng the Company to take out
two newspaper advertisernents, the New Articles require the
Company to use reasonable effarts to trace the sharehalder
‘Reasonable efforls’ to race a shareholder may include, 1f
considered appropriate, the Campany engaging a professicnal
assel reunification company or other tracing agent to search far
a3 shareholder who has not kept ther shareholder detalls up lo
date

In addition, the New Articles pravide that money frem the saie
of the shares of an untraced shareholder will be forieited f not
claimed after two years, rather than six years

Ihese changes reflect best practice and provide the Company
with appropnate flexibility in connection with locating untraced
shareholders.

Sub-division of shares

Ihe New Articles cianty that any shares resulting from a sub
division of the Campany’s existing shares may, In addition to
having any preference ar advantage as compared with the
Company’s cther shares, also have deferred or other ights. ths
change makes administering any sub-division of shares mote
straightforward.

Operation of general meetings

the New Articies contain specific pravisions to clanty that the
Compary can hold “hybnd” general meetings (including annual
general meetings) and Lo sel out how such meetings are to
be conducled Under the New Articles, the Company may held
“hybnd” general meelings in such a way that enables members
to attend and participate in the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electronic faciity voting at hybrid meetings wril, by default, be
decided an a potl Hybnd meetings may be adjourned mn the
event of a technological faillure

The New Articles aflow the Company, where appropiiate, to make
charges to the arrangements for general meetings (including the
mtroduction, charge or tancetlation of electronic facilities) after
natice of the meet.ng has been 1ssued. The Ccmpary may give
notice of any such changes 1n any manner considered appropnate
(rather than via an acdvertisement In two national newspapers)
The New Articles atso exphicitly allow the Company to introcuce
heaith and safety arrangements at its meetings

These changes were introduced to provide Lhe Board greater
flexibility to align with technological advances, changes in
imvestor sentiment and eveolving best practice, particularly in ight
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of the Covid-19 outbrezk and the uncertain duration of social
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings. 1he Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakeholder engagement over the coming years In a way
thal 1s more convenient for all parties. Absent exceptional
arcumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company in person
In line with the views expressed by the Invesiment Association
and Institutional Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permil meetings 1o be held exclusively on an electronic basis, so
a physical meeting will still be required In deaiding whether and
how to hold a hybnd general meeting 1n future, the Company
will have regard Lo the views ol shareholders and institutional
governance bodies at the relevant ume as well as to relevant
quidance of codes of best practice.

The New Articles also specifically refer Lo the passibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use aof cverflow
rooms. Satellite meetings are legally valid even without such a
provision but it has been added for clanty

These changes are pnmanly contained in articles 47, 48, 50
and 53 1n the New Aiticles A number of ather cansequential
amendments have been made to the New Articles.

Dbjections or £rrors in Voting

in relation to the statutory requirement that a proxy must vote
i accordance with any instructions given by the member by
whom the proxy 1s appointed, the New Aruicles state explicitly
that the company 15 net required to check that proxies and
rorporate representatives have voted in accordance weth their
instructions or that their failure to do so waould vitiate the result
of a sharehalder vote

Mumber of directors
Ihe New Articles reflect the statutory minimum of two directors,
and introduce a maximum ot 10 directors.

Reappointment of directors

In fine with the requirerments of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors to retire {and should
they wish ta remain in office, seek re-election) at each annual
general meeting This requirement does not apply to directors in
therr first year of appointment whe were apponted :n the penod
between the AGM notice being issued and the AGM itself. 1his
confirms existing Cormpany practice

Directors” fees

The Current Articles provide that the aggregate of all fees paid

10 directors shall nat exceed £250 000 per annum Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount ta £300,000 to reflect the
amount approved by resolution of the Company on 22 July 2014,

Borrowing Powers

The New Articles inciude in the def:nition of “borrowings” the
mingrity proportion of moneys borrawed by a member of the
group ard owing to a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
{(with “the mirorty proporton” meaning a proportion equal to
the proportion cf 1he issued share capital of 2 partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which 1s not attr:bulable lo @ member of
the group)
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Forfeitura of unciaimed dividends

the Curient Aricies provide that 'f a dividend of other payment
due to members has not been dlaimed for twelve years after
being declared or becoming due, 1t will be forfeited to the
Company. Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this perod from
twelve tg six years

Payments of gividends and cther amounts

Ithe New Articles give the Board greater flexibility to determine
the appiopnate method(s) 1t pays dividends (and other sums)
to shareholders This flexibility will help the Board take account
of developments in markel practice and keep down the
administrative cost of making payments The New Arlicles
also provide that where a payment canrot be made because

a shareholder has not provided valid account detalls to the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed until the
sharehalder provides those detaris

Capital Reserve

The New Articles remove Article 132 in the Old Articles, which
was Included to ensure that the campany qualifies as an
investment trust and 15 Ureated as an nvestment Lompany.
Following the modernisation of the investment tiust regime and
arnendments to legislation abolishing the restrction on the ability
to distnbute capital profits, this provision 1s na longer necessary

Strategic report and supplementary materials

The Comparies Act 2006 and the Companies (Receipt of Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2013 allow the Campany to send a copy
of ts strategic report with supplementary material instead of

its full accounts to a member who has elected or tacitly agreed
0 recelve these documents, provided that the Company 15 not
prohibited frem do ng so inits articles Article 129 15 intended to
make 1t clear there 1s ng such prohibition Sharehclders should
note that they can always view the full annual report an the
Company's website or request 3 hard copy from the Company’s
registrar

Gender Neutrat Drafting
The New Articles smend the Cunent Articles so that gender
neutial language 15 used

General

Other changes which are of a minor, technical ¢f dlanfying nature
ot which have been made to iemove pravisions in the Current
Articles which duplicate knglish company law are not noted
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D watsan (Chairman)
K Bolsover

5 Curtis

[ Gitlhanks

S Marrson
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London W1S 1YQ
Telephane: 020 7011 4100

oML LMY

M A Phayre Mudge MRICS

FINCNCE SV UUAGES U v DS T SR A N

J L Elhiott ACA

GERLT o FLND U NS

A Lharneur

@
The Association of
Investment Companies

- TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

DIRECT PROPERTY MANAGER
G P Gay MRICS

SECHRETARY

Link Campany matters Limited

gth Haoor, 65 Gresham Streel
London EC2V 7NQ

RENISTIOAG
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RELEASE OF RESULTS
The half year results are announced in late November The tull
year resulls are announced In early June

ANNUAL GENFRAL MEFTING

The AGM 15 hetd in London in July

TESIDEMD PACMINT 5ATES

Dividends are usually pard on the Ordinary shares as foliows:

Interim January
Finai: August

DIVIDEND PATMENTS

Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers' Automated Cleanng Services), mardale forms for

this purpose are available from the Registrar Alternatively,
sharehalders can wiile to the Regestrar (the address 1s given on
page 108 of this repart) to give their nstructions; these must
include the bank account number, the bank account titie and the
sort code of the bank to which paymerts are to be made.
DIVIDEND RE-IMvESTMENT pLAM L Lt 5

IR Property Investmenrt Irust plc offers sharehoiders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the Company through
the DRIP Please note that following Brex:t sharehalders i Europe
are no longer able o participate i the DRIP DRIP farms may

be abtained from Computershare Investor Services PLC through
their secure website www investorcentre co.uk, er by phoring
0370 707 1694 Charges do apply; dealing commission of 0 75%
(subject to 3 minimum of £2 50) Government starmp duty of
05% aso applies

LERYIEP

SHARE vl L
The market prices of the Corrpany’s shares are puthshed daly
in The hinancigl imes Some of the infarmation 1s published in
other leading newspapers The Finarcal times alsc shows figures

for the estimatec Net Asset Values and the discounts applicable
SHARE Pt dnFoR o yvign

ISIN GBOO090640G/7

SEDOL 0906409

Bloomberg TRY LN

Reuters IRY[
Datastrearn [RY

Hrhopttalie

Detalls of tne henchmark are given in the Strategic Report
or page 24 of this Repart and Accounts. The benchmark ‘ndex 1s
pubsiished daily and car be found on B.ooimberg,

HISE EPRA/NARET Developed turope Cappec Net Total
Retuin Index 1 Sterling
Bloomberqg. [RORAG Index

INTRIMET

Details of the market price and Net Asset Value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company’s website at
www T property com,

Sharehalders wha hold their shares in certificated foim can check
their holdings with the Registrar, Campulershare Investor Services
PLC, via wwwnvestorcentre co.uk. Please note that to gain
access to your details on the Computershare site you wilk need
the holder reference number stated on the top left hand carner of
your share certificate.

DISARIUTY ALY

Copies of this Repert and Accounts and other documents 1ssued
by the Company aie available frem the Company Secretary If
needed, copies can be made available In a vanety of formats,
including Braille, audio tape or larger type as appropriate

You can contact the Reqistrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, which has installed textphones to aliow speech and hearing
impaired people wko have their own textphone to contact

them directly, without the need for an intermediate operator, by
dialling 0870 702 0005 Speually trained operators are available
duning normal business haurs to answer queries via this service

Alternatively 1 you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk” operator
(provided by the Roya! National Institute for Deaf People) you
should dial 18001 fellowed by the number you wish to dial.
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MNOMNEE SHARE CGDE

where notification has been prowvided n advance, the Company
will arrange for copies of shareholder communications to be
provided to the operatars of nominee accounts Naminee
investars may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited 1o do so by the Chairman

CGT L AGE INDST

Tyt oy 3 Rt ot Py g taee oot N
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Upuit & dispusal ul all ur part uf g shiaiehotder’s holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder’s capital gains
tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in 2007 and the
redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 should be considered.

In respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC™) to base
the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost on

the proportian af Ordinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Therefore, It an Ordinary shareholder converted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007 the
capital gains tax base cost af the new Sigma shares acguired
would be equal to 20% af the onginal capnial gains tax base cast
of the Ordinary shares that they held pre-canversion The base
cost of therr rernaining holding of Ordinary shares would then be
80% of the oniginal capital gains tax base cost of their Oidinary
shares held pre-conversion

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into Grdinary
shares in December 2012, a further shareholder’s agreement
was reached with HMRC thal a sharehalders capral gains tax
base costwn their new Ordinary shaies should be equivatent 10
their capntal gains base cost in the pre existing Sigma shares
(1e their capital gains base cost under the existing agreement If
applicahle)

If i doubt as to the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders should consult with their own professignal adwvisars
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PAARKET PURCHASES

The shares of IR Property Investment Trust plc are listed and
traded on the London Stock Exchange Investors may purchase
shares through their stockbroker, bank of other financial
intermediary.

HOLDIM D SHAPES IN (ERTFIDATED FORM

Investors may hoid their investment in certificated form Qui
registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
investors to buy and seli shares quickly and easily online without

a broker or the need to open a trading account. Alternatively the
Investor Centre allows investars 1o manage portfolios quickly and

securely, update details and view balances without annual charges.

Futher detalls are avallable by contacting Computershare on 0370
707 1355 ar visit www computershare com.

IR Property Investrment irust plc now offers shareholders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the company through
the Dividend Re-investment Plan ("DRIP”) through the registrar,
Computershare Shareholders can obtain fuither informatian on
the ORIP through thew secure website www investarcentie cauk,
i by phoning 0370 707 1694, Charges da apply Please note

that ta gaim access to your details o register for the DRIP en the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference number
stated on the top left hand cormer of your share certificate

A TENG STHEMES I3AS AME JTHIE 203Ny,
A number of banks and weaith management arganisations

provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs through which UK clients can
invest in TR Property Investrment Trust ple

ISA and savings scheme providers da charge dealing and othe
fees for operating the accounts, aind nvestors should read the
terms and Conditions provided by these campanies and ensure
that the charges best suit their planned investment profile. Maost
schernes carry annual charges but these vary between prowider
and product where dealing charges apply, In scme cases these
are applied as a percentage of fLnds invested and others as a
flat charge The optimum way to hold the shares will be d:fferent
far each investor depending upon the frequency and size of
nvestments to be made

Details are given helow of two providers offersng shares
IR Property investment Iri:st, but there are many ather aptigns

MRS T R SV § AT S S A

Interactive Investor provide and administer a rarge of se'f select
nvestment plans, .neluding tax-agvantaged ISAs and SIPPs
{Seli-Invesled Persona! Pens cny, and Trading Accounts

For more information, interactive mvestor can be contacted an

0345 607 6C07, of by visit ng PUps /fwww.n co uk/

Interactive investar gffer investers in TR Property and gther
nvestmert trusts & free apt-in onl:ne sharebolger voting and
rfermation service that erab s mvestors to receive sharebolder
communicaticns and, if they w sh, to vote on the skareholdirgs
heic i their account

IR Praperty s also on the nteractive super 60 rated iist

.

PO I RTR

. o [N [ . .
BMO offer a number of Private investar P'ans, investmeant Tryst
and Jupier iSAs and Children’s Investmert Plars investiments

€an be made as lumg sums or trough regular savings For more

ey st nt Tryst ol

mformation see inside the back cover BMO can be contacted on
0800 136 420, or visit www brmagam com.

Please remember that the value of your investments and any
incorre trom thern rnay go down as well as up Past performance
Is ot & guide to future performance. You may not get back

the amount that you invest If you are in any doubt as o the
suitability of & plan of any investmenrt available within a plan,
please take professicnal advice

] iy i A tans e od Do Ao
Forst s ongs DTS 2NE Vb

Following the acguisition of Alliance Trusl Savings by interactive
investar, ATS selt-directed accounts were transferred to the
interactive investor platform on 14th October 2079

In 2012 BNP Panbas closed dawn the part of therr business that
operated Savings Schemes and iSAs Investars were given the
chaice of transferiing their schemes to Alliance frust Savings
("A1S”) or 1o a provider of their awn chaice, or ta close their
accounts and sell the holdings

i investars did not respand 1o the ietters from BNP Paiibas, thei
accounts were lransferred to AIS

tollowing the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investar, ATS self-direcled accaunts were transferred to the
Interactive investor platform on 14 October 2019

SHAND FRAUS AND HO{LES B00M 30AMNS
Sharehalders in 2 number of Investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed

of an opportunity to sell their shares as the company 1s

subject 10 3 takeover bid this 1s nat true and 15 an attempt to

defraud shareheclders The share fraud also seeks payment ¢of 2
“tormnmussion” by shareholders to the parties carrying out the fraud.

Sharehaiders should remain alert to this type of scam and treat
with susp:c'on any contact by telephone offering an attractive
inveslment opportunity, such as a premium price for your shares,
or an ettempt to canvinge you that payment s required 1n order
{0 release a seltlement for your shares These frauds may also
offer to sell your shares in companies which have little or no
value or may offer you bonus shares These so called “boller
room” scams ¢an 2lso invclve ar attempt to obtain your perscnal
and/or banking information with which to commit identity fraug

The caller may be friendly ard reassuring or they may take a
more urgent tone, encoyraging you to act quickly atherwsse you
cotld lose money or miss out on 2 deel

It you have beer tantacted by an vrauthonised firm regarding
yoLr shares the FCA would like to bear from you You car report
ar unauthorised firm usirg the FCA helpline an €800 111 6768 ur
By wisiting their website, which afso has ather usefu informatior,
3l www fca org uk

If you receve ary unsolicited investmert advice make sufe you
get the carrect ngme of the perscn ard organisation If the calis
persist, hang up If you deal with an unacthanised f.rm, yoL will
not be eligible o 1eceive paymrent under the Financa: Services
Cocmpensation Scherre

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone calls of such a nature to
shareholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



BMO I5A

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with a lump sum from £100 or regular
savings from £25 8 month. You can alse transfer any
existing 1SAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO JUNIOR ISA (JISA)”

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or (TFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO,

BMO LIFETIME ISA (LISA)

for those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home os retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. invest
with 3 lump sum from £100 or regular savings from
£25 a month.

BMO CHILD TRUST FUND ((TF)"

if your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

BMO GENERAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (GiA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£100 lump sum of £25 a month.

BMO JUNIOR INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (§1A)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our
range of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easity be set up under
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficial
owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. investments can be made
from 2 £100 lump sum or £25 a month per account.
You can aiso make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.
“The (TF ard | SA accaurts are cpered by arerts i the child's name

and they hdve access to the money at ege "8 “Calls mey be recordec ar
monitored for trair ng end cuality purposes

oo @

HAY ASSET MAMAGDLT LINTED

CHARGES
Annual management charges and cther charges apply according to
the type of plan,

ANNUAN ACLOUNT CHARGE

pActisA £60+VAI

wit FAD+VAL

AR ACUNTERE £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, ar by direct debit
(in addition to any annual subscription imits)

DEALING THAROGES

£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deais placed through the online BMO
Investar Portal) for ISA/GIA/LISA/}IA and JISA There are no dealing
charges on a CI+

Deabing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
remvestment of dividends or the investment of monthly direct debits

Gavernment stamp duly of 0 5% alse applies on the purchase of
shares (where applicable).

the walue of Investments can go dawn as well as up and you may

nat get back your oniginal iInvestmert lax benefits depend on your
individual arcumstances and tax allowances and reles may chenge
Please ensure you have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy
Palicy and relevant Key Features documents before investing kar
requlatary purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclasure related to the praduct you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Dacuments (KIDs) for the investment trusts
yOu want ta Invest Into.

10 open 3 new BMO plan, apply online al bmogam.com/apply

Online applications are nat avaitable if you are transferring an existing
plan with another pravider to BMC, or 1If you are applying for a new
plan i mare than one name but paper applications are available at
bmonvestments co.uk/documents or by contacting BMO

FE A CUSTORERS

Call DEDIVE S AR L
tmail e Bty N

EOSTIMG PLaM HOLDARS

Call APE P LA
Email: HyeoontGr cnauies CDelg e Lo
By post:

You €an also invest In the trust through anline deaiing platfarms far
private investors that offer share dealing and 15As. Comparees include:
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmoinvestments co uk
¢ facebook com/bmoinvestmentsuk

0345 600 3030, 900arm - 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be recarded
or menitored for training and quality purposes

BMO Assel Managemert Limited s authansed ard requldlec by the hinancie Conduct Authanty anc s @ member of BMO Global Asset Managerrent éMEA of which the

ult mete parent cempary is the Bank of Montrea  /73/510_56_€5/21 UK
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TR Property Investment
Trust plc is managed by

BMO M | A part of BMO Financial Group




